
 TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor John Anderson 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Michelle Cordes 
Councilmember Judy Hughes 

Monday, August 19, 2019 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
August 19, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Bill Hawkins, Karen Wall,
 Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy Hughes. 

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction
of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review
a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of
the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public
unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action.

6. PRESENTATIONS

a. Results of the 2019 Florence Peanut Butter and Jelly Challenge. (Mayor Walter and
Councilmember Cordes)

b. Presentation on the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality Consumer Confidence
Report. (Chris Salas)

7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the
time the agenda item is called.

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



a. Resolution No. 1712-19:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF 
THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 41; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. (Larry 
Harmer) 

 
b. Resolution No. 1713-19:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF 
THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 43; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. Larry 
Harmer)  
 

c. Resolution No. 1714-19:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF 
THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 45; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. (Larry 
Harmer) 

 
d. Approval to purchase one new Z726XKW mower and two new Kubota RTV500-H Utility 

Vehicles from Bingham Equipment Company, in an amount not to exceed $27,547.05. 
(Chris Salas)  

 
e. Authorization to contract with Arizona Generator Technology Inc., for servicing of the 

Town’s generators, in an amount not to exceed $30,000. (Chris Salas)  
 

f. Authorization to contract with Glenn Jones Ford, to purchase stock parts for vehicle repair 
and maintenance, in an amount not to exceed $40,000. (Chris Salas) 
 

g. Authorization to contract with Waxie Sanitary Supply, for operational and janitorial supplies 
and related custodial equipment and services, in an amount not to exceed $40,000. (Chris 
Salas) 
 

h. Authorization to contract with Rottweiler Controls, LLC, for professional services related to 
SCADA Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $50,000. (Chris Salas) 
 

i. Approval of Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with the Copper Basin Railway, 
Inc., for access to the Poston Butte Preserve. (Bryan Hughes) 
 

j. Approval an Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County, for the placement, operation, 
and use of a Community Emergency Response Team trailer at the Florence Fire 
Department. (David Strayer) 
 

k. Ratification of the annual software renewal for the Caselle software, in an amount not to 
exceed $29,423. (Trenton Shaffer) 
 

l. Authorization for the Finance Director to write off old account balances in the amount of 
$15,771.79. (Rey Sanchez) 
 

m. Authorization to dispose of two Police vehicles that are no longer useful and have outlived 
their useful life. (Rey Sanchez) 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
n. Authorization to contract with Hill Brothers Chemical Co., to provide water and wastewater 

treatment and pool chemicals, in an amount not to exceed $87,500. (Chris Salas) 
 

o. Approval of the July 1, July 9 and July 15, 2019 Town Council Meeting minutes. 

p. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. May 16, 2019 Florence Youth Commission Meeting minutes 
ii. January 16 and April 17, 2019 Library Advisory Board Meeting minutes 
iii. April 25, 2019 Parks and Recreation Advisor Board Meeting minutes 
iv. June 6 and June 20, 2019 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting minutes 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Ordinance No. 682-19:  Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
AN OVERLAY FOR FLORENCE GARDENS UNITS A, B, C, D, E, AND F. (Larry Harmer) 

9. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Resolution No. 1715-19: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO 
ESTABLISH A STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT TO PURCHASE ENERGY 
FOR LIGHTING THE PUBLIC STREETS IN THE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT “A” AND 
EXHIBIT “B”, ATTACHED HERETO; DECLARING SUCH IMPROVEMENTS TO BE OF 
MORE THAN LOCAL OR ORDINARY PUBLIC BENEFIT AND THAT THE EXPENSES 
THEREOF BE PAID FOR BY THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
UPON THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF ALL REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY IN A 
CERTAIN DISTRICT TO BE KNOWN AS “ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH LIGHTING 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 4” (THE “DISTRICT”); AND ORDERING THAT SUCH 
IMPROVEMENTS BE PROVIDED FOR UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 48-
572 AND 48-616, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES.  (Lisa Garcia) 

 
b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to contract with Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc., 

to provide electric motor rewind, repair and purchases for water and wastewater projects, 
in an amount not to exceed $100,000. (Chris Salas) 

 
c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to contract with Ferguson Enterprises, Inc., to provide 

parts for water and wastewater projects, in an amount not to exceed $250,000. (Chris 
Salas) 
 

d. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Cactus Asphalt, for asphalt 
maintenance and repair services, for CIP Project T-69 Pavement Preservation, in an not 
to exceed amount $363,653.36.  (Chris Salas) 
 

e. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Zumar Industries Inc., for  the 
purchase of various street signs, poles and  pole accessories in an amount not to exceed 
$35,000. (Chris Salas) 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



10. MANAGER’S REPORT

11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC

12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY

13. ADJOURNMENT

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3).  One or more members of Council may appear for part or all of the meeting including 
Executive Session telephonically.  

POSTED ON AUGUST 14, 2019, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 

***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6a. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Mayor and Council  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mayor Walter and  
                                      Councilmember Cordes 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  PB&J Drive  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  PB&J Drive  Other 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Results of the 2019 Florence Peanut Butter and Jelly Challenge.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The purpose of the Peanut Butter and Jelly (PB&J) Drive is to help combat food 
insecurity in our youth populations.  One in five children across Arizona come from a 
food-insecure household, in Pinal County that statistic is one in four. 
  
The Florence PB&J Drive is a partnership with the United Way of Pinal County (UWPC), 
Florence Unified School District, Florence Chamber of Commerce, the Town of 
Florence and public/private partners and community members.  These entities collected 
PB&J for three weeks.  The Drive ends on Monday, August 19, 2019.  
 
The PB&J Drive started in 2018 in Apache Junction.  They collected 260 jars of PB&J in 
2018 and in 840 jars in 2019.  After announcing the 2019 number, Casa Grande 
Elementary School District participated in a drive and collected 2100 jars. 
  
At the July 1, 2019 Council Meeting, the Town Council challenged Florence Unified 
School District and the Florence business community to create a PB&J Drive with a goal 
of 2500 jars.   
  



Subject:  PB&J Drive  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

The community who brings in the most PB&J will be the winner of the 2019 UWPC 
Golden Sandwich Trophy.  The Traveling Trophy is passed on to the community who 
collects the most PB&J for that year.  
 
Numbers will be announced at the August 19, 2019 Town Council Meeting.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

 Information only 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Information only 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
 None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 None  
 





TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6b. 

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019 

DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 

SUBJECT:  Arizona Department of Environmental Quality 
(ADEQ) Consumer Confidence Report.  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 
Subject:  Presentation on ADEQ Consumer Confidence Report               Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Presentation on the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Consumer 
Confidence Report.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The presentation will discuss the Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) Rule that requires 
all community water systems (Town of Florence) to prepare and distribute a brief annual 
water quality report summarizing information regarding source water, detecting 
contaminants, compliance and education materials. 

The rule is intended to protect public health by providing educational materials to inform 
consumers about potential health risks pertaining to the quality, treatment and 
management of their drinking water. 

To help the CCR, the Town staff consults with the Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality.  The annual requirements are; 

1. By July 1st – Distribution of CCR to customers and state or local primary agency
for report covering January 1 to December 31 of the previous calendar year.

2. By October 1st – the Town must submit proof of distribution to state and local
primacy agency.

3. The Town must post its current year’s report on a publicly accessible site on the
Internet.



Subject:  Presentation on ADEQ Consumer Confidence Report                                   Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

4. The Town must make copies of the report available upon request. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not Applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not Applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Power Point Presentation 
 2018 Town of Florence CCR 
 



Town of Florence

Public Works Department



ADEQ stands for the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality. Our mission is to 
protect and enhance public health and the environment in Arizona. To achieve this, 
we administer the state’s environmental laws and delegated federal programs to 
prevent air, water and land pollution and ensure cleanup.

 Under the Environmental Quality Act of 1986, the Arizona State Legislature created 
ADEQ in 1987 as the state’s cabinet-level environmental agency. ADEQ is 
composed of three environmental programs: Air Quality, Water Quality and Waste, 
with functional units responsible for technical, operational and policy support.

 ADEQ carries out several core functions: planning, permitting, compliance 
management, monitoring, assessment, cleanups and outreach.



 The Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) Rule requires all community water 
systems (CWSs) to prepare and distribute a brief annual water quality report 
summarizing information regarding source water, detected contaminants, 
compliance and educational materials

 The rule is intended to protect public health by providing educational materials 
to inform consumer about potential health risks pertaining to the quality, 
treatment and management of their drinking water supply

 July 1 - Town must distribute the CCR to customers and state agency covering 
January 1 to December 31 of the previous calendar year

 October 1 – Town must submit proof of distribution to state

 A CWS serving 100,000 or more persons must also post its current year’s report 
on a publicly accessible site on the Internet

 All CWSs must make copies of the report available upon request



 Increased consumer knowledge of drinking water sources, quality, susceptibility to 
contamination, treatment, and drinking water supply management.

 Increased awareness of consumers to potential health risks so they may make 
informed decisions to reduce those risks, including taking steps toward protecting 
their water supply.

 Increased dialogue between drinking water utilities and consumers to increase 
understanding of the value of drinking water and water supply services and to 
facilitate consumer participation in decisions that affect public health



 Item 1:  Water System Information

 Item 2:  Source(s) of Water

 Item 3:  Definitions

 Item 4:  Detected Contaminants

 Item 5:  Information on Monitoring for Cryptosporidium, Radon, and Other 
Contaminants (if detected)

 Item 6:  Compliance with Other Drinking Water Regulations

 Item 7:  Variances and Exemptions (if applicable)

 Item 8:  Required Educational Information

















Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
Drinking Water Unit – Holli LaBrie
1110 W. Washington Street, MC 5415B-2
Phoenix, AZ 85007
(602) 771-4866
LaBrie.Holli@azdeq.gov

Town of Florence
Timm Wainscott, Utilities Superintendent
425 E Ruggles Street
Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7619
timm.wainscott@florenceaz.gov
For an appointment please email susan.jonas@florenceaz.gov





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Presented By 

the 

Town of Florence 

 

Consumer Confidence Report PWS ID: AZ04-11017                                                                                                             

June 2019 

     

ANNUAL 

WATER 

QUALITY 
REPORT 

WATER TESTING 
PERFORMED IN 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We are pleased to present the Town of Florence Annual Consumer Confidence Report.  You 

are receiving this report as one of the lucky people who call Florence home.  Through 

decades of planning, strategic action and sustainable practices, the Town of Florence is 

positioned our access of water supplies for many years to come.  The Town of Florence has 

inspectors, technicians, engineers and water treatment specialists that work diligently to keep 

our water system performing properly ensuring the safety of your drinking water. 

We are confident that the information in this report will shed some light not only on the 
quality of your drinking water, but the value of water and how much effort and dedication 
goes into providing you this precious resource.

 

 

 

 

                      
   

 

 
 

 

 

Source Water Information
Sources of drinking water (both tap and bottled water) include rivers, lakes,

streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs and wells, depending on the location.

As water travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, it dissolves 
naturally-occurring minerals and, in some cases, radioactive material, and can pick

up substances resulting from the presence of animals or from human activity.

The source of drinking water for Florence is groundwater.  This water is pumped from 
the Town’s four drinking water wells; No. 1 (55-610432), No. 3 (55-215446), No. 4 

(55-619533) and No. 5 (55-619534) directly into the distribution system and provides 

a consecutive connection source of water.

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, EPA prescribes regulations which 
limit the amount of certain contaminants in water provided by public water systems. 
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regulations establish limits for contaminants in 

bottled water which must provide the same protection for public health.   

 

 

 

 

 

Based on the information currently available on the hydrogeologic settings and

the adjacent land uses that are in the specified proximity of the drinking water 
source(s) of this public water system, the Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality (ADEQ) has given a high risk designation for the degree to which this public 
water system drinking water source(s) are protected. A designation of

high risk indicates there may be additional source water protection measures which 
can be implemented on the local level. This does not imply that the source water is 
contaminated nor does it mean that contamination is imminent. Rather, it simply 
states that land use activities or hydrogeologic conditions exist that make the 

source water susceptible to possible future contamination.

Further source waster assessment documentation can be obtained by contacting 
ADEQ.

 

 

 

What is a water quality report?
The environmental Protection Agency (EPA) created the Safe Drinking 
Water Act (SDWA) in 1974 as a set of regulations to ensure water quality 
across the country.  The SDWA requires that an annual water quality 
report, or Consumer Confidence Report, be created and distributed to all 
water customers to provide them with details about where their water 
comes from, and what it contains, and how it compares to the nation-wide  

standards created by regulatory agencies.  This report acts as a 

snapshot for water quality in the Town of Florence from Jan - Dec 2018.

 

 

 



   

  Why are there contaminants in my drinking water? 
Contamination can come from many sources.   

Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria may come from sewage treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural 

livestock, livestock operations and wildlife.  

Pesticides and herbicides that may come from a variety of sources, such as agriculture, urban stormwater runoff, and 

residential uses.  

Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, can be naturally-occurring or result from urban stormwater runoff, industrial 

or domestic wastewater discharges, oil / gas production, mining or farming.  

Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic chemicals, are byproducts of industrial processes 

and petroleum production and may come from gas stations, urban stormwater runoff and/or septic systems.   

Radioactive contaminants, that can be naturally occurring or be the result of 

oil and gas production and mining activities. 

 

 

 

Are some people more vulnerable to water quality contamination? 
Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the 

general population.  Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be 

expected to contain at least small amounts of some contaminants. The presence of 

contaminants does not necessarily indicate that water poses a health risk.  More 

information about contaminants and potential health effects can be obtained by calling 

the EPAs Safe Drinking Water Hotline at (800) 426 - 4791.  

 

Immuno-compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing chemotherapy, 

persons who have undergone organ transplants, people with HIV-AIDS or other 

immune system disorders, some elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk of 

infections.  These people should seek advice about drinking water from their health 

care providers.  For more information about contaminants and potential health effects, 

or to receive a copy of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the U.S.                  

                                              Centers for Disease Control (CDC) guidelines on  

                                              appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection by  

                                              Cryptosporidium and microbiological contaminants, call the  

                                              EPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline at 1-800-426-4791. 

Information about Nitrate 
Nitrate in drinking water at levels above 10 parts 

per million (ppm) is a health risk for infants of 

less than six months of age. “High nitrate levels 

in drinking water can cause blue baby 

syndrome.”  Nitrate levels may rise quickly for 

short periods of time because of rainfall or 

agricultural activity. If you care caring for an 

infant and detected nitrate levels above 5 ppm, 

you should ask advice from your health care 

provider. 

Information about Arsenic 
If arsenic is less than or equal to the 

Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL), your 

drinking water meets EPA’s standards.  

EPA’s standard balances the current 

understanding of arsenic’s possible health 

effects against the costs of removing 

arsenic from drinking water.  EPA continues 

to research the health effects of low levels 

of arsenic, which is a mineral known to 

cause cancer in humans at high 

concentrations and is linked to other health 

effects such as skin damage and circulatory 

problems.  
 

 

 

 

 



 

  

Information about Lead 
Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials and components 

associated with service lines and home plumbing. If present, elevated 

levels of lead can cause serious health problems, especially for 

pregnant women and young children.  Florence Water Company is 

responsible for providing high quality drinking water, but cannot control 

the variety of materials used in plumbing components.  When your 

water has been sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential 

for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 minutes 

before using the water for drinking or cooking. Information on lead in 

drinking water, testing methods, and steps you can take to minimize 

exposure is available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at 

www.epa.gov/sfewater/lead. 

 

                                                                                     DEFINITIONS 
AL = Action Level: The concentration of a contaminant which, if exceeded, triggers treatment or other requirements.  

Level 1 Assessment: A study of the water system to identify potential problems and determine (if possible) why total coliform bacteria was present. 

Level 2 Assessment: A very detailed study of the water system to identify potential problems and determine (if possible) why an E. coli MCL vio lation 

occurred and/or why total coliform bacteria was present. 

MCL = Maximum Contaminant Level: The highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in drinking water. 

MCLG = Maximum Contaminant Level Goal – The level of contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known or expected risk to health. 

MFL = Million Fibers per Liter 

MRDL = Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level.  The level of disinfectant added for water treatment that may not be exceeded at the consumer’s tap.  

MRDLG = Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal.  The level of disinfectant added for treatment at which no known or anticipated adverse effect 

on health of persons would occur. 

MREM = Millirems per year:  A measure of radiation absorbed by the body. 

MRL=Minimum Reporting Limit:: The smallest measured concentration of a substance that can be reliably measured by a given analytical method. 

NA = Not Applicable: Sampling was not completed by regulation or was not required. 

NTU = Nephelometric Turbidity Units: A measure of water clarity. 

PCi/L = Picouries per Liter: A measure of the radioactivity in water. 

PPM = Parts per Million or Milligrams per liter (mg/L). 

PPB = Parts per Billion or Mircograms per liter (pg/L). 

PPT = Parts per Trillion or Nanograms per liter. 

PPQ = Parts per Quadrillion or Picograms per liter. 

TT = Treatment Technique – A required process intended to reduce the level of a contaminant in drinking water. 

  

 

 

Have questions about the CCR? 
We want our values customers to be informed about 

their water quality.  If you want to learn more about 

public participation or to attend any of our regularly 

scheduled meetings, please contact Timm Wainscott, 

Water Superintendent at 520-868-7619 for additional 

opportunity and meeting dates and time. 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

              WATER QUALITY DATA: 

 

 

 

 

 

Microbiological (RTCR) 
TT 

Violation 
Y or N 

Number of Positive 
Samples 

Positive 
Sample(s) 

Month & Year 
MCL MCLG Likely Source of Contamination 

E. Coli N 0 0 0 0 Human and animal fecal waste 

Disinfectants 

MCL 
Violation 

Y or N 

Running Annual 
Average (RAA) 

Range of All 
Samples  

(Low-High) 
MRDL MRDLG 

Sample 
Month & 

Year 
Likely Source of Contamination 

Chlorine/Chloramine (ppm) N 1.0 ppm 1.0 – 1.0 ppm 4 4 2018 Water additive used to control microbes 

Disinfection By-Products 

MCL 
Violation 

Y or N 

Running Annual 
Average (RAA) OR 

Highest Level 
Detected 

Range of All 
Samples  

(Low-High) 
MCL MCLG 

Sample 
Month & 

Year 
Likely Source of Contamination 

Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) (ppb) N 2.0 ppb 2.1 – 2.2 ppb 60 N/A 2018 By-product of drinking water disinfection 

Total Trihalomethanes (TTHM) (ppb) N 19.0 ppb 10.0 – 19.2 ppb 80 N/A 2018 By-product of drinking water disinfection 

Lead & Copper 
MCL 

Violation 
Y or N 

90th Percentile 
Number of 
Samples 

Exceeds AL 
AL ALG 

Sample 
Month & 

Year 
Likely Source of Contamination 

Copper (ppm) N 0.2 ppm               0 1.3 1.3 2018 
Corrosion of household plumbing 
systems; erosion of natural deposits 

Lead (ppb) N .0 ppb 0 0 0 2018 
Corrosion of household plumbing 
systems; erosion of natural deposits 

Radionuclides 

MCL 
Violation 

Y or N 

Running Annual 
Average (RAA) OR 

Highest Level 
Detected 

Range of All 
Samples 

(Low-High) 
MCL MCLG 

Sample 
Month & 

Year 
Likely Source of Contamination 

Alpha Emitters (pCi/L) N 3.0 pCi/L 3.0 – 3.0 pCi/L 15 0 2018 Erosion of natural deposits 

Inorganic Chemicals  
(IOC) 

MCL 
Violation 

Y or N 

Running Annual 
Average (RAA) OR 

Highest Level 
Detected 

Range of All 
Samples  

(Low-High) 
MCL MCLG 

Sample 
Month & 

Year 
Likely Source of Contamination 

Arsenic1 (ppb) N 3.6 ppb 2.2 – 3.6 ppb 10 0 2012 
Erosion of natural deposits, runoff from 
orchards, runoff from glass and 
electronics production wastes 

Barium (ppm) N 0.0048 ppm 
0.0026-0.0048 

ppm 
2 2 2012 

Discharge of drilling wastes; discharge 
from metal refineries; Erosion of natural 
deposits 

Chromium (ppb) N 3.6 ppb 1.5 – 3.6 ppb 100 100 2012 
Discharge from steel and pulp mills; 
Erosion of natural deposits 

 
Fluoride (ppm) 

N 1.0 ppm .67 – 1.0 ppm 4 4 2012 

Erosion of natural deposits; water 
additive which promotes strong teeth; 
discharge from fertilizer and aluminum 
factories 

Nitrate (ppm) N 10.0 ppm 2.3 – 10.0 ppm 10 10 2018 
Runoff from fertilizer use; leaching from 
septic tanks, sewage; erosion of natural 
deposits 

 Violation Summary (for MCL, MRDL, AL, TT, or Monitoring & Reporting Requirement) 

Violation Type Explanation, Health Effects Time Period Corrective Actions 

Reporting failure 
Late reporting for residual disinfection 
level samples,reported 4/11/2019. 

1st Quarter 2018 Late reporting violation was returned to compliance on 4/12/2019 

  Assessments for the Revised Total Coliform Rule (RTCR)  

 
Coliforms are bacteria that are naturally present in the environment and are used as an indicator that other, potentially harmful, waterborne pathogens may be present or that a potential pathway 

exists through which contamination may enter the drinking water distribution system. If coliform is found, then the system is responsible to look for potential problems in water treatment or 

distribution. When this occurs, the water system is required to conduct assessment(s) to identify problems and to correct any problems that were found during these assessments. 

 
During the past year, we were required to conduct 1 Level 1 assessment(s). 1 Level 1 assessment(s) was completed, we were required to take no corrective actions. 
 

   E.coli are bacteria whose presence indicates that the water may be contaminated with human or animal wastes.  Human pathogens in these wastes can     

     cause short-term effects, such as diarrhea, cramps, nausea, headaches, or other symptoms.  They may pose a greater health risk for infants, young children, the elderly, and people with severely   

     compromised immune systems.  If E. coli bacteria is found, the water system is required to look for potential problems in water treatment or distribution.  When this occurs, we are required to  

     conduct assessment(s) to identify problems and to correct any problems that were found during these assessments. 

   

     During the past year, we were required to conduct 1 Level 1 assessment(s). 1 Level 1 assessment(s) was completed, we were required to take no corrective actions. 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

    

 

S R E L K N I R P S T S U J D A 

T U Q A Z B Y R F C N K I O L M 

N I S H O R T S H O W E R S N P 

A B X E T G C E A L Z L I J M K 

L Q Z U M B A O V L P Z Y I V S 

P X Z J I U M Y U E Q Z E S K K 

E U B V M X L J M C C O V X E A 

V Z O K O A U C R T W N P L M E 

I U N R O E X W H R L E P J C L 

T I M E R S W E P A C S I R E X 

A A B C B Z T E P I C O I R E I 

N V E P I U H V J N L H O X E F 

X M W A T E R D E E P L Y R I S 

 

 

  

 

HOSE NOZZLE 

SHORT SHOWERS 

BROOM 

FIX LEAKS 

NATIVE PLANTS 

COLLECT RAIN 

TIMER 

WATER DEEPLY 

ADJUST SPRINKLERS 

USE MULCH 

XERISCAPE 

Answers 1)D 2)E 3)A 4)C 5)B 



SAVE WATER 

INDOORS

Simple Steps to

Outdoors & In

Plant native or drought-tolerant 
vegetation that thrives in the native 
soil and local weather conditions. Go 
native, and resist the urge to water it 
and just let it go brown during the dry 
season. It will come back, as nature 
intended, when the rains come. 

Check for leaking pipes by reading your meter before
and after a two-hour period when no water is being used. If 
the readings are different, you have a leak. 

Turn off the water while brushing 
your teeth or shaving.

Detect a leaking toilet by adding a few drops of food coloring to the tank. If the tank is 
leaking, color will appear in the bowl within 30 minutes. Replace the bad parts or consider 
upgrading to water-efficient toilets. Avoid flushing the toilet unnecessarily. Dispose of 
tissues, insects and other such waste in a trash can rather than in the toilet. 

By timing your showers to keep them under five minutes and 
installing low-flow shower heads, you can save water. The 
older the shower head, the more water it uses. New low-flow 
shower heads use only 2 gallons of water per minute or less. 
Older fixtures use as much as 5 gallons per minute.

CHECK
YOUR WATER METER

COLOR YOUR WATER

AVOID BUZZ CUTS

LOAD IT UP
TIME
YOUR SHOWERS

Excessive nutrients flowing into our 
waterways  do not only come from big 
industry or agriculture. The use of fertilizer 
and pesticides on our yards results in 
pollutants contaminating the waterways in 
stormwater runoff when it rains. Residents 
are encouraged not to use fertilizers or 
pesticides during the warmer months and to 
use them in the correct amounts during other 
times of the year. 

Water your lawn and landscape only when it is 
actually needed, such as when footprints are left 
when you walk across the grass.

Cut your grass at the highest recommended height for 
your turf species or the highest setting on your lawn 
mower. Cut no more than one-third of the grass length 
at one time to encourage grass roots to grow deeper.

Apply moderate amounts of water to create a healthy, drought and stress-tolerant lawn. For most 
Arizona soils, applying no more than three-quarters of an inch of water per application is enough 
to  revitalize the grass. Use spray heads designed for planting beds. Position the sprinkler so that 
you water only the lawn and shrubs, not paved areas.

Equip hoses with automatic shutoff nozzles for car washing, hand watering, etc.

PLANT
FRIENDLY LAWNS

SPRINKLE WITH CARE

TEST
WITH TRACKS

2%
 Phosphorus or Less is Bes
t.

Set clothes washing machines that 
have variable settings for water volume 
at the minimum amount required per 
load. If load size cannot be set, operate 
the washer with full loads only.

OUTDOORS

TURN
IT OFF

NOZZLE THE NOSE OF YOUR HOSE

FERTILIZE
RESPONSIBLY



 

Town of Florence 

Public Works Department 

Water Division 

P.O. Box 2670 

Florence, AZ 85132 



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a.  

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Larry C. Harmer,  
                                    Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1712-19:  Final Plat for Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Unit 41

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1712-19: Final Plat for AMR Unit 41          Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Property   Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1712-19: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF THE 
FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 41; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Franklin 643, LLC requests affirmation of the unrecorded Final Plat Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch (AMR) Unit 41, a proposed subdivision located within the AMR Planned Unit 
Development (PUD).  This area will be part of the Parkside of the AMR community.  
This request originates from a potential purchase of Unit 41 by a new builder who 
wishes to construct homes in Anthem at Merrill Ranch.  There are no changes to the 
Final Plat that was approved by the Florence Town Council February 5, 2018, by 
Resolution No. 1653-18. 
 
There are 55 single-family residential lots proposed for this 15.25 +/- acre subdivision. 
The resultant density for this unit will be 3.60 dwelling units per acre. Should the Town 
Council approve the three AMR Final Plats on this agenda (AMR Units 41, 43, and 45), 
the resultant overall density for AMR based on Final Plat approvals will be 3.2 dwelling 
units per acre. The PUD zoning permits an overall single-family residential density of 
3.5 dwelling units per acre for the overall AMR development. 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1712-19: Final Plat for AMR Unit 41          Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

Neighborhood streets in this unit are designed and constructed with a 42-foot-wide 
right-of-way (ROW). The 42-foot ROW will be utilized for this subdivision to ensure ADA 
compliance.   
 
The Preliminary Plat Extension for AMR Unit 41 was approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017.  The Town of Florence Public Works and Fire 
Department staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision and support the approval of 
this Final Plat. Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS 
Coordinator and water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities.  
The Town Council initially approved the Final Plat on February 5, 2018. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

That Council has rejected the final plat for any reason whatsoever, the reasons 
therefore shall be recorded in the minutes pursuant to Section 150.233 (B).  The 
applicant would be required to return to the final plat process with the new revisions. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 41 is approved and will be recorded with 
the office of the Pinal County Recorder. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Franklin 643, LLC. will construct the roadways and infrastructure within this subdivision 
to Town standards and will maintain the roadways until the end of the construction 
warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1712-19 
Compatibility Map 
Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 41 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1712-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 41; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS.   

WHEREAS, the Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 41 is consistent with the 
approved Anthem at Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat Extension for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 41 
was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017; and  

WHEREAS, the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 41 was previously 
approved by the Town Council on February 5, 2018 by Resolution No. 1653-18.    

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 

1. Affirm the approval of the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 41 
subject to Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and 
ordinances.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of August 2019. 

______________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  



AMR Unit 41



FINAL PLAT
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 41 (TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ)

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

GENERAL NOTES

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

FRANKLIN 643, LLC
DEVELOPER / OWNER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP, LLC

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

24

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

RECORDER

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

AY

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

141516171813

23
24 19 20 21 22 23

283026

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

14

25

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

P
H

A
S

E
1

&
3

(20
06

-1
66

1 4
7,

P
C

R
)

MERRILL RANCH PKWY, PH 3 (2009-115026 PCR)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 45
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 47
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 38
(PROPOSED)ANTHEM AT

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 43

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 40

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

NOT A PART
211-02-001 R

2007-022748, PCR

SHEET INDEX

TRACT AREA TABLE
TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'

BASIS OF BEARING

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

PCR No.                            AREA (AC)       USAGE PRELIM
IN

ARY



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14 15 16

17 18

1920212223

24 25 26 27 28

2930

313233

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

POB

TRENTON CT.

YORKTOWN CT.

C
A

M
D

E
N

D
R

IV
E

TRACT A

TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 B

TRACT B

TRACT E

TRACT D

TRACT C

LC

21

3

SETBACKS (MIN.) 

KEY LOT DETAIL

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

ROW

LCR
O

W

0

SCALE: 1"=

50 100 200 300

100'

RECORDER

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

S
E

1 4
S

E
C

2
3

T
4

S
R

8E

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

(C
A

B
G

S
LD

141
P

C
R

)

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

NOT A PART
211-02-001 R

2007-022748, PCR

NW 1
4 SEC 25 T4S R8E

SW 1
4 SEC 24 T4S R8E

SHEET 4
SHEET 3

SHEET 3
SHEET 4

MERRILL RANCH PARKWAY, PHASE 3 (2009-115026 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 37
(PROPOSED)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOCAL ROADWAY
(LOOKING NORTH AND EAST)

N.T.S.

54' ROW  ENTRY ROADWAY
(LOOKING NORTH AND EAST)

N.T.S.

S
W

1 4
S

E
C

24
T

4S
R

8E

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 43
(PROPOSED)

PRELIM
IN

ARY



0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

RECORDER

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

M
A

TC
H

S
H

E
E

T
4

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

M
E

R
R

ILL
R

A
N

C
H

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
,

P
H

A
S

E
3

(2009 -115026
P

C
R

)

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

SE 1
4 SEC 23 T4S R8E

SW 1
4 SEC 24 T4S R8E

10' PUFE
(2009-064789, PCR)

10' PUFE
(2009-064789, PCR)

PRELIM
IN

ARY



0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

RECORDER

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 43
(PROPOSED)

SE 1
4 SEC 23 T4S R8E

M
A

TC
H

S
H

E
E

T
3

SW 1
4 SEC 24 T4S R8E

PRELIM
IN

ARY



RECORDER

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

DETAIL "A" DETAIL "B"

DETAIL "C" DETAIL "D"

14

15

TRACT C

23

22

TRACT D

TRACT D

25

24 33

32

TRACT E

PRELIM
IN

ARY



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b.   

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Larry C. Harmer,  
                                     Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1713-19:  Final Plat for Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Unit 43

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1713-19: Final Plat for AMR Unit 43          Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Property   Leadership and Governance     
 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1713-19:   A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF THE 
FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 43; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Franklin 643, LLC requests re-approval of the unrecorded Final Plat Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch (AMR) Unit 43, a proposed subdivision located within the AMR Planned Unit 
Development (PUD).  This area will be part of the Parkside of the AMR community.  
This request originates from a potential purchase of Unit 43 by a new builder who 
wishes to construct homes in Anthem at Merrill Ranch.  There are no changes to the 
Final Plat that was approved on February 5, 2018 by Resolution No.1654-18. 
 
There are 104 single-family residential lots proposed for this 30.03 +/- acre subdivision. 
The resultant density for this unit will be 3.46 dwelling units per acre. Should the Town 
Council approve the three AMR Final Plats on this agenda (AMR Units 41, 43, and 45), 
the resultant overall density for AMR based on Final Plat approvals will be 3.2 dwelling 
units per acre. The PUD zoning permitted an overall single-family residential density of 
3.5 dwelling units per acre for the overall AMR development. 
 
Neighborhood streets in this unit are designed and constructed with a 42-foot-wide 
right-of-way (ROW). The 42-foot ROW will be utilized for this subdivision to ensure ADA 
compliance.   



Subject:  Resolution No. 1713-19: Final Plat for AMR Unit 43          Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The Preliminary Plat Extension for AMR Unit 43 was approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017.  The Town of Florence Public Works and Fire 
Department staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision and support the approval of 
this Final Plat. Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS 
Coordinator and water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities.  
The Town Council initially approved the Final Plat on February 5, 2018 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

That Council has rejected the final plat for any reason whatsoever, the reasons 
therefore shall be recorded in the minutes pursuant to Section 150.233 (B).  The 
applicant would be required to return to the final plat process with the new revisions. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 43 is approved and will be recorded with 
the office of the Pinal County Recorder. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Franklin 643, LLC. will construct the roadways and infrastructure within this subdivision 
to Town standards and will maintain the roadways until the end of the construction 
warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1713-19 
Compatibility Map 
Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 43 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1713-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 43; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS.   

 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 43 is consistent with the 
approved Anthem at Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat Extension for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 43 
was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 43 was previously 
approved by the Town Council on February 5, 2019 by Resolution No. 1654-18. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 

as follows: 
 

1. Affirm the approval of the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 43 
subject to Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and 
ordinances.  

  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of August 2019. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 



AMR Unit 43



FINAL PLAT
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 43 (TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

BASIS OF BEARING

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 45
(PROPOSED)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 47
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 41
(PROPOSED)

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

NOT A PART
211-02-001 R

2007-022748, PCR

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 38
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 40

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

RECORDER

SHEET INDEX

TRACT AREA TABLE
TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

PCR No.                                          AREA (AC)                     USAGE

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1
2  OF SEC 24,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

GENERAL NOTES

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

141516171813

23
24 19 20 21 22 23

283026

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

14

25

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

AY

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'

24

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

P
H

A
S

E
1

&
3

(20
06

-1
66

1 4
7,

P
C

R
)

FRANKLIN 643, LLC
DEVELOPER / OWNER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP, LLC

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020PRELIM
IN

ARY



POB

40

34

30
29

28

26
25

24
23

21

19

18

17

7

6
5

4

3

2

1

55
49 48

47

71
70

686766
6160

59

74
73

72

93
92

104

101

100

98
97

36

37
38

39

45

44

43

42

33
32

31

15

9

8

54 53 52 51 50

65646362

76 75

84

102 96
95

94

56
58

TRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT C

TRACT G

TRACT I

10

11

12

13

14 85 86 87 88 89 90 91

77787980818283

16

20

27

35

41

46

57

69

99

22

103

TRACT
D

DISCOVERY WAY

SARATOGA WAY

C
A

M
D

E
N

D
R

IV
E

PATRIOT WAY

TRACT J

TRACT F

TRACT H

TRACT E

D
R

IV
E

C
A

M
D

E
N

0

SCALE: 1"=

50 100 200 300

100'

RECORDER

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

ANTHEM
AT MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 41
(PROPOSED)

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

NOT A PART
211-02-001 R

2007-022748, PCR

SHEET 3
SHEET 4

S
H

E
E

T
5

S
H

E
E

T
4

N
W

1 4
S

E
C

24
T

4S
R

8E

N
E

1 4
S

E
C

2
3

T
4

S
R

8E

S
W

1 4
S

E
C

24
T

4S
R

8E

S
E

1 4
S

E
C

2
3

T
4

S
R

8E

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

SH
EE

T
5

SH
EE

T
3

MERRILL RANCH PKWY, PH 1 (2006-166149, PCR)

MERRILL RANCH PKWY, PH 3 (2009-115026, PCR)

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1
2  OF SEC 24,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

LOCAL ROADWAY
(LOOKING NORTH AND EAST)

N.T.S.

LC

21

3

SETBACKS (MIN.) 

KEY LOT DETAIL

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

ROW

LCR
O

W

60' ROW  ENTRY ROADWAY
(LOOKING NORTH AND EAST)

N.T.S.

ANTHEM
AT MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 47
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM
AT MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 45
(PROPOSED)

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

P
H

A
S

E
1

&
3

(2
0

0
6

-1
66

1
4

7
, P

C
R

)

PRELIM
IN

ARY



RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

M
A

T
C

H
S

H
E

E
T

4

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 45

(PROPOSED)

MATCH
SHEET

5

NE 1
4 SEC 23 T4S R8E

POB

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 47

(PROPOSED)

SE 1
4 SEC 23 T4S R8E

SW 1
4 SEC 24 T4S R8E

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1
2  OF SEC 24,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

POB

NW 1
4 SEC 24 T4S R8E

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020PRELIM
IN

ARY



RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

M
A

T
C

H
S

H
E

E
T

3

MATCH SHEET 5

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 41

(PROPOSED)

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

NOT A PART
211-02-026 B

2008-085671, PCR

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1
2  OF SEC 24,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SE 1
4 SEC 23 T4S R8E

SW 1
4 SEC 24 T4S R8E

PRELIM
IN

ARY



RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

MATCH
SHEET

3

MATCH SHEET 4

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 47

(PROPOSED)

NOT A PART
211-02-001 R

2007-022748, PCR

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1
2  OF SEC 24,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

S
W

1 4
S

E
C

2
4

T
4

S
R

8E

N
W

1 4
S

E
C

2
4

T
4

S
R

8E

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

10' PUFE
(2009-064789, PCR)

HUNT HIGHWAY PHASE 1 & 3

(2006-166147, PCR)

PRELIM
IN

ARY



RECORDER

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1
2  OF SEC 24,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

DETAIL "A" DETAIL "B"

DETAIL "D" DETAIL "E"

DETAIL "C"

DETAIL "F"

DETAIL "G"

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

21

22

TR
AC

T
J

101

100

TR
A

C
T

H

84

85

TRACT H

83

82

TRACT E

70

71

TRACT F

73

72

TRACT F

93

TRACT G

PRELIM
IN

ARY



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7c.  

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Larry C. Harmer,  
                                     Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1714-19:  Final Plat for Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Unit 45

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1714-19: Final Plat for AMR Unit 45          Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Property   Leadership and Governance     
 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1714-19:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF THE 
FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 45; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Franklin 643, LLC requests re-approval of the unrecorded Final Plat Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch (AMR) Unit 45, a proposed subdivision located within the AMR Planned Unit 
Development (PUD).  This area will be part of the Parkside of the AMR community.  
This request originates from a potential purchase of Unit 45 by a new builder who 
wishes to construct homes in Anthem at Merrill Ranch.  There are no changes to the 
Final Plat that was approved on February 5, 2018 by Resolution No. 1655-18 
 
There are 146 single-family residential lots proposed for this 40.43 +/- acre subdivision. 
The resultant density for this unit will be 3.61 dwelling units per acre. Should the Town 
Council approve the three AMR Final Plats on this agenda (AMR Units 41, 43, and 45), 
the resultant overall density for AMR based on Final Plat approvals will be 3.2 dwelling 
units per acre. The PUD zoning permits an overall single-family residential density of 
3.5 dwelling units per acre for the overall AMR development. 
 
Neighborhood streets in this unit are designed and constructed with a 42-foot-wide 
right-of-way (ROW). The 42-foot ROW will be utilized for this subdivision to ensure ADA 
compliance.   



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1714-19: Final Plat for AMR Unit 45          Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The Preliminary Plat Extension for AMR Unit 45 was approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017.  The Town of Florence Public Works and Fire 
Department staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision and support the approval of 
this Final Plat. Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS 
Coordinator and water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities.  
The Town Council initially approved the Final Plat on February 5, 2018. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

That Council has rejected the final plat for any reason whatsoever, the reasons 
therefore shall be recorded in the minutes pursuant to Section 150.233 (B).  The 
applicant would be required to return to the final plat process with the new revisions. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 45 is approved and will be recorded with 
the office of the Pinal County Recorder. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Franklin 643, LLC. will construct the roadways within this subdivision to Town standards 
and will maintain the roadways until the end of the construction warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1714-19 
Compatibility Map 
Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 45 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1714-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY 
ARIZONA, AFFIRMING THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 45; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS.   

 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 45 is consistent with the 
approved Anthem at Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat Extension for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 45 
was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017; and    
 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 45 was previously 
approved by the Town Council on February 5, 2018 by Resolution No. 1655-18. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1. Affirm the approval of the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 45 
subject to Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and 
ordinances. 
  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of August 2019. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 



AMR Unit 45



FINAL PLAT
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 45 (TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

BASIS OF BEARING

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 43
(PROPOSED)

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 47
(PROPOSED)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

RECORDER

SHEET INDEX

TRACT AREA TABLE
TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

PCR No.                                          AREA (AC)                     USAGE

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

GENERAL NOTES

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

141516171813

23
24 19 20 21 22 23

283026

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

14

25

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

AY

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'

24

FRANKLIN 643, LLC
DEVELOPER / OWNER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP, LLC

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 49
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 51
(PROPOSED)

LDS
CHURCH

2007-138572
200-24-001-Z

SCHOOL
SITE

2013-008580
211-02-026C

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

(2
0

0
6

-166147, P
C

R
)

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

23

PRELIM
IN

ARY



POB

2
1

45 3678914 11 1012131518 16

24

17

23

25

19

31
26

27 2928 353330 3632 34 42

44

37 38
4139

40

45

43

4750
46

51 484953 525456 55

61

58

63

57

62 66 686564 67 69 7170

74
72

76
78

73

77
75

82 81 80 79
84 838587 86

90

89

88

91

92

93

95

94

97

98

99

100

101

103

104

105

109 111110 112
113

114

123 122
125 124126127128129131 130

132 135133 134

137

138

139

141 140143

144 145 146

120

121

118

115

TRACT A

TRACT B

TR
AC

T
C

TRACT I

TRACT M

TRACT M

20

21

22
5960

96

116

119
136

142

TRACT D

TRACT E

TRACT F

TRACT H

TRACT J

TRACT K

TRACT L

TRACT N

TRACT N

TRACT N

TRACT N TRACT N

W
ILLOW

W
AY

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

C
O

U
R

T

106

102

117

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

D
R

IV
E

MERRIWEATHER WAY

W
AY

AUTUMN VISTA WAY

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

D
R

IV
E

CINDER BROOK WAY

D
R

Y
S

D
A

LE
D

R
IV

E
AIRIENOBLE PR

C
K

E
Y

O
M

IS
D

R
IV

E

TRACT G

107

108

C
R

O
S

LE
Y

D
R

IV
E

0

SCALE: 1"=

50 100 200 300

100'

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

LOCAL ROADWAY
(LOOKING NORTH AND EAST)

N.T.S.

LC

21

3

SETBACKS (MIN.) 

KEY LOT DETAIL

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

ROW

LCR
O

W

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

N
W

1 4
S

E
C

24
T

4S
R

8E

N
E

1 4
S

E
C

2
3

T
4

S
R

8E

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 51

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 47

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 43

(PROPOSED)

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

SHEET
7

SHEET
6

SHEET 5
SHEET 7

SHEET 5
SHEET 4

S
H

E
E

T
3

S
H

E
E

T
4

SHEET 6

SHEET 3

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 49

(PROPOSED)

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

F
IB

E
R

O
P

T
IC

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

(0
0

0
0

-0
0

0
0

,P
C

R
)

PATRIOT
W

AY

PRELIM
IN

ARY



73
72

74

70 7169

52 49 4851

46

50
47

43

45

40

39 41

38
37

44

42
3635

9 8 7 6
3

5 4

1

2
TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT CTRACT
D

TRACT
N

POB

CINDER BROOK WAY

D
R

Y
S

D
A

LE
D

R
IV

E

C
O

M
IS

K
E

Y
D

R
IV

E

AUTUMN VISTA WAY

RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

M
A

T
C

H
S

H
E

E
T

4

MATCH SHEET 5

MATCH SHEET 6

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

N
W

1 4
S

E
C

24
T

4S
R

8E

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 47

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 43

(PROPOSED)

N
E

1 4
S

E
C

2
3

T
4

S
R

8E

F
IB

E
R

O
P

T
IC

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

(0
0

0
0

-0
0

0
0

,P
C

R
)

PATRIOT WAY

PRELIM
IN

ARY



60 59

22

21

20

6764 65 686662

57

63

58

61

5556 54 53

343230 3328 29
27

26

31

19

25

23

17

24

16
18

15 13 12 101114

TRACT
E

TRACT
F

TRACT
G

TRACT
N

TRACT
N

C
R

O
S

L
E

Y
D

R
IV

E

AUTUMN VISTA WAY

CINDER BROOK WAY

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

D
R

IV
E

RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

M
A

T
C

H
S

H
E

E
T

3

MATCH SHEET 5

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

PRELI
M

IN
ARY



142

136

96

143
140

141

134133 135132

130131 129 128 127 126 125

97

94

95

93

92

91

88

89

90

8687 85 8384 8182

TRACT
F

TRACT
G

TRACT
H

TRACT
J

TRACT
N

C
R

O
S

L
E

Y
D

R
IV

E

MERRIWEATHER WAY

NOBLE PRAIRIE WAY

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

D
R

IV
E

NOBLE PRAIRIE WAY

RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

MATCH SHEET 4 MATCH SHEET 3

M
ATC

H
S

H
EE

T
6

MATCH SHEET 7

NOT A PART
200-24-703
ARIZONA

PRELIM
IN

ARY



117

119

116

115

118

121

120

139

138

137

124

122
123

79
80

75

77

78

76

T
R

A
C

T
C

TRACT I

TRACT
K

TRACT MW
ILLOW

W
AY

C
O

M
IS

K
E

Y
D

R
IV

E

MERRIWEATHER WY.
TRACT B

RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

MATCH SHEET 3

M
ATC

H
S

H
EE

T
5

M
ATCH

SHEET

7

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 47

(PROPOSED)

N
W

1 4
S

E
C

24
T

4S
R

8E

N
E

1 4
S

E
C

2
3

T
4

S
R

8E

NOBLE

PRAIRIE

WAY

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 49

(PROPOSED)

PRELIM
IN

ARY



107

146145144

114

113

112
110 111109

105

104

106

103

101

102

100

99

98

TRACT
J

TRACT
L

TRACT M

TRACT
N

WILLOW WAY

TRACT
K

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

D
R

IV
E

108

G
R

IF
F

IT
H

C
O

U
R

T

RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

M
ATCH

SHEET

6

MATCH SHEET 5

ANTHEM AT MERRILL
RANCH UNIT 49

(PROPOSED)

PRELIM
IN

ARY



RECORDER

DETAIL "A"
ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SITUATED WITHIN THE NE 1
4  OF SEC 23,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST
OF THE G&SRM, TOF, PINAL CO., AZ

DETAIL "B" DETAIL "C" DETAIL "D"

DETAIL "E" DETAIL "F" DETAIL "G" DETAIL "H"

DETAIL "I" DETAIL "J"

48

47
46 T

R
A

C
T

 D

32 33

T
R

A
C

T
 F

34 35

T
R

A
C

T
 G

83 82

T
R

A
C

T
 F

132

133

TRACT H

143

142

TRACT J

139

TRACT K

122

T
R

A
C

T
 I

144

145

TRACT J
109

110

TRACT L

111

108



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7d.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
                                      
SUBJECT:  Purchase of new mower and two new utility vehicles 
from Bingham Equipment Company 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Bingham Equipment Company                                    Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Approval to purchase one new Z726XKW mower and two new Kubota RTV500-H Utility 
Vehicles from Bingham Equipment Company, in an amount not to exceed $27,547.05. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The existing mower and utility vehicles have outlived their useful life.  Maintenance and 
repair of the equipment is no longer cost efficient.  It is necessary to replace the 
equipment in order to successfully and efficiently care and maintain the parks, facilities, 
open space and right-of-way. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would mean that the Community Services Department would continue to 
utilize the existing equipment until they are no longer able to be repaired.  At that point, 
it will be difficult to carry out routine maintenance. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean that the Community Services Department would get updated 
equipment that would assist in a multitude of tasks and make the department more 
efficient. 
 



Subject: Bingham Equipment Co.                                    Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The cost to purchase shall not exceed $27,547.05. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Bid Tab with quote 

 













 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 7e. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
                                      
SUBJECT:   Arizona Generator Technology Inc. (aka Gen-Tech) 
contract   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Arizona General Technology Inc.  for service of generators  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to contract with Arizona Generator Technology Inc. (aka Gen-Tech) for 
servicing of the Town’s generators, in an amount not to exceed $30,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town of Florence is requesting to enter into a contract with Arizona Generator 
Technology (aka Gen-Tech) through the City of Peoria – Solicitation # P17-0012, 
Contract ACON22217 (on file with the Town Clerk’s Office).  
 
Properly maintained generators ensure that the Town and resources remain 
energized when their use is required. Critical use facilities such as Police Stations, 
Fire Stations, Emergency Operation Centers, Water and Wastewater sites and 
Public Works buildings statutorily are required to have back up power.   
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would mean that the Town’s generators are not going to be serviced this 
fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Arizona General Technology Inc.  for service of generators  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean the Town will have all their generators maintained and/or 
repaired and ready for use at any time. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The cost to provide parts will not exceed $30,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
- Approved Bid Tabulation for Blanket Purchase Order 
- Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract w/ Exhibit 1 
 
 
 





1 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Gen Tech of Glendale 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF THE CITY OF PEORIA SOLICITATION P17-0012, 

CONTRACT ACON22217 EMERGENCY GENERATORS: MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND 
RENTAL. 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 5th day of August, 
2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and Arizona 
Generator Technology Inc – aka Gen Tech (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract 
Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated in the City of 
Peoria Solicitation P17-0012, Contract ACON22217 for Emergency Generators: Maintenance, Repair 
and Rental. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in this Contract collectively as 
the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, material, 
transportation services and equipment to provide per contract specifications described in the 
attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” (the “Goods” or “Services”). 
The Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in Exhibit 
“1”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master Contract including but not 
limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, 
Specifications, Scope of Work, Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own 
cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish all of the equipment, personnel and 
materials necessary to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the 
Town, the Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the Parties that 
should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the Master Contract, or the 
Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the provisions of the Contract Documents shall 
control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said 
Proposal conflicting herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and valuable 

consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/contract for the 
City of Peoria Solicitation P17-0012, Contract ACON22217 for Emergency Generators: 
Maintenance, Repair and Rental is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the 
Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement 
identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: “City 
of Peoria”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence; the 
terms: “Maricopa County” shall be deemed to be and refer to “Pinal County”; the terms: 
“Deputy Finance Director” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town 
Manager; and the terms: “Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” 
shall be deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  
 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract documents, which 
by reference are incorporated herein: 

 City of Peoria Solicitation P17-0012, Contract ACON22217 for Emergency Generators: 
Maintenance, Repair and Rental  

 Cooperative Cover Contract Town of Florence and Gen Tech, w/ Exhibit “1” 
 



2 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Gen Tech of Glendale 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and 
Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), and shall not exceed 
$30,000.00. 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through 
satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services 
and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to the terms of this Contract. 

 
7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 

A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with 
Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town that 

the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually 
obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their 
employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 

Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s 

employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town 
in regard to any such inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment 

records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s 
Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random 
verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached 

the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it 
has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 
274B of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements 
prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of 
Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of 
any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 

8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is 
to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which 
clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that 
progress.  All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town.  All 
invoices are to be emailed to accountspayable@florenceaz.gov. 
 



3 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Gen Tech of Glendale 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may terminate, 
suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s convenience without penalty 
or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed 
and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the 
Goods and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

 
10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent 

contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not 
be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal 
relationship with Town. 

 
11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to 

have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, 
addressed as follows:   

 
Town: Town of Florence    Contractor: Gen Tech of Glendale  
Town Clerk       Peggy Piske 
PO Box 2670      7901 N. 70th Avenue 
Florence AZ 85132; and     Glendale, AZ 85303 
       (623) 937-1719 
 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 
assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, 
from and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate 
proceedings), and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or 
alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the 
Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the 
Goods or Services in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold 
harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, 
damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury 
to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused 
by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this 
Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or 
any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor 
may be legally liable. In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to 
waive all rights of subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees 
for losses arising from the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the 
requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Services will be 
performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of 
Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations 
under this warranty.  If any Goods or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner 
as determined by the Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide 
Goods or redo such Services until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s 
reasonable satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be 
new, unused, of most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in 



4 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Gen Tech of Glendale 

materials and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard 
warranty for at least one (1) year, unless otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance 
with manufacturer’s published specifications. 

 
14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy (the 

“Policy”) govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by this 
reference. Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance with the Policy, including 
demonstrating its lawful presence in the United States. 

15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in 
accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference 
to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The exclusive forum selected for any 
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal 
County, Arizona. 
 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution 
of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this 
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective 
Date set forth above. 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 

        
 
By: __________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk                                Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         

 





 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7f.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
                                      
SUBJECT:  Glenn Jones Ford Contract

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: RCA – Jones Auto Ford Contract  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to contract with Glenn Jones Ford, to purchase stock parts for vehicle 
repair and maintenance, in an amount not to exceed $40,000.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town of Florence is now requesting to enter into a contract with Glenn Jones Ford, 
(aka Jones Auto Center) through the cooperative contract (on file in the Clerk’s Office) 
with the State of Arizona in an amount not to exceed $40,000 for the purchase of stock 
parts for vehicle repair and maintenance. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would delay the much-needed purchase of parts for repairs and 
maintenance.    
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean quicker repairs for the Town vehicles. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The cost to provide parts will not exceed $40,000.  
 
 



 

Subject: RCA – Jones Auto Ford Contract  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 
 Approved Bid Tabulation for Blanket Purchase Order 
 Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract w/ Exhibit 1 
 

 
 





 
   

1
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract 

 
 

 

 
 

   
   

 
 
          
 
   

   
   

 
   
 
   

 
 
     

    
  

   
  

  
 
 

 
 
        
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT (“Contract”), is made and entered into as of 
August  5,  2019 (“Effective  Date”), and  is by  and  between  the Town  of  Florence,  a municipal 
corporation of the State of Arizona (“Town”), and Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP.,
(“Contractor”). The Townand  the Contractor  may  be  referred  to  in  the Contract collectively 
as the  “parties”  and each
individually as a “party”.

RECITALS

  WHEREAS,  the Town desires  to Contract for Public Works  Management  Support  and 
Consulting Services, and Aftermarket Parts and  Services as specified in Exhibit 1
(“Scope of Work” or “Services”);

WHEREAS, Contractor is duly qualified to perform the requested services;

  WHEREAS, Contractor  has  agreed  to  perform  the services as  set  forth  in Exhibit  1 
attached hereto and incorporated herein;

  WHEREAS, Town desires and Contractor agrees that this Contract is entered into by the 
parties, as a cooperative purchase pursuant to the State of Arizona Contract ADSPO16-129368 
between the State of Arizona and Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP, and Contractor 
agrees that the master cooperative  solicitation/Contract documents  issued  by  the State  of 
Arizona for  the  Services (“Master Contract”) is in full force and effect and all terms and 
conditions of the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract.

NOW  THEREFORE,  in  consideration of  the  mutual  promises  and  obligations  set  forth
herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENTS

1.0 DESCRIPTION, ACCEPTANCE, DOCUMENTATION Contractor shall act under the 
authority and approval of the Contract Administrator for the Town, further named herein, to 
provide the professional services required by this Contract.

  1.1 Service Description.  The Contractor shall provide the requested services as set 
forth  in Exhibit  1 and  as  set  forth  in  individual Task  Orders  (the  “Services”).   This Contract 
includes this agreement, including any attachments, and any Task Orders that may be issued 
as  agreed  to  by  the  parties  to  implement  the  services. Task  Order means  a  specific  written 
agreement between the Town and Contractor for work to be performed under this Contract for 
an individual, mutually agreed upon scope of work, schedule and price.  In response to Task 
Orders  that  may  be  mutually  agreed  upon  and  issued  periodically  by  Town, Contractor  shall 
perform the Services, except as may be specified elsewhere in the Contract which will be defined 
and further described as to specific project requirements in each Task Order.  The Services shall 
be performed in accordance with the requirements set forth in each Task Order.  
 
 



 
    

  
 

      
  

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
  
  

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

 

  
 

1.2 Acceptance and Documentation.

  1.2.1 Each deliverable shall be reviewed and approved by the Town Manager or 
his designee to determine acceptable completion.

  1.2.2. The Town shall provide all necessary information to the Contractor for timely 
completion of the tasks specified in Item 1.1 above.

  1.2.3 All documents, including but not limited to, data compilations, studies,
and/or reports, which are prepared in the performance of this Contract are to be and remain the 
property of the Town and are to be delivered to the Town Manager before final payment is made
to the Contractor.

2.0 FEES, CATEGORIES OF SERVICE AND PAYMENTS

  2.1 Fees. Contractor will be paid within 30 days of the receipt of an itemized invoice. 
Monthly payment may be made to Contractor on the basis of a progress report prepared and 
submitted  by Contractor  for  the  Services  completed  through the last  day  of  the  proceeding 
calendar month and for the production of the deliverables as spelled out in Exhibit 1, and the 
individual Task Order approved by the Town.

  2.2 Categories  of  Service. Services  means  in  response  to Task  Orders, including 
Exhibit 1, that may be mutually agreed upon and issued periodically by Town, Contractor shall 
furnish  all  necessary  work  which  will  be  defined  and  further  described  as  to  specific  project 
requirements in each Task Order.

  2.3 Payment Approval. Amounts set forth in Section 1.1 and 2.2 represent the entire 
amounts payable under this Contract and shall be paid upon the submission of monthly invoices 
to  and  approved by  the Town. All  invoices  are  to  be  emailed  to 
accountspayable@florenceaz.gov.

  2.4 Business License. Contractor will purchase and maintain a business license with 
the Town of Florence.

3.0 SCHEDULE AND TERMINATION

  3.1 Project Schedule. The Contractor shall perform the Scope of Work in accordance 
with the schedule attached as Exhibit 1, and any Task Order.

3.2 Termination.

3.2.1 Termination for Cause: Town may also terminate this Contract with seven
(7)  days’  prior  written notice  for  cause  in  the  event  of  any  default  by  the Contractor,  or  if  the 
Contractor  fails  to  comply  with  any industry  standards  and  customary  practices terms  and 
conditions  of  this Contract.  Unsatisfactory  performance  as  judged  by Industry  standards  and 
customary practices, and failure to provide Town, upon request, with adequate assurances of 
future performance shall all be causes allowing Town to terminate this Contract for cause.  In 
the event of termination for cause, Town shall not be liable to Contractor for any amount, and

2
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract



 
    

 
 

 
    

   
    

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

   
 

 
 

    
  

 
 

  
 

  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

   
 

 
    

Contractor shall be liable to Town for any and all damages sustained by reason of the default 
which gave rise to the termination.

  3.2.2 Termination  for  Convenience. The Parties reserve  the  right  to  terminate 
this Contract with or without cause upon 30 days’ prior written notice.  In the event the Town 
terminates this Contract pursuant to this Section 3.2.2, then in that event the Town agrees to 
pay for the work performed prior to the date of termination. Town may terminate this Contract,
or any part thereof for its sole convenience, at any time without penalty or recourse.

3.2.3 Termination for Violation of Law In the event Contractor is in violation of.
any Federal, State, County or Town law, regulation or ordinance, the Town may terminate this 
Contract immediately upon giving notice to the Contractor.

  3.3 Funds Appropriation. If the Town Council does not appropriate funds to continue 
this Contract and pay for charges hereunder, the Town may terminate this Contract at the end 
of the current fiscal period.  The Town agrees to give written notice pursuant to Section 4.13 of 
termination to the Contractor at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of its current fiscal period 
and will pay to the Contractor all approved charges incurred through the end of such period.

  3.4 Terms.  The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through June 
30, 2020. Task Orders may be issued at any time during the term of this Contract.   This Contract 
will remain in full force and effect during the performance of any Task Order.  The contract may
be renewed upon mutual agreement of the parties.

4.0 GENERAL TERMS

  4.1 Entire Contract. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding of the parties 
and  supersedes  all  previous  representations,  written  or  oral,  with  respect  to  the  services 
specified herein.  This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a written document, 
signed by authorized representatives of each party.

  4.2 Arizona  Law. This Contract shall  be  governed  and  interpreted  according  to  the 
laws  of  the State  of Arizona,  without  reference  to  choice  of  law  or  conflicts  of  laws  principles 
thereof.

  4.3 Modifications. Any  amendment,  modification  or  variation  from  the  terms  of  this 
Contract shall be in writing and shall be effective only after approval of all parties signing the 
original Contract.

  4.4 Assignment. Services covered by this Contract shall not be assigned or sublet in 
whole  or  in  part  without  the  prior  written  consent  of  the Finance Director  and Contract 
Administrator. The Town acknowledges the sub-consultant(s) listed in Exhibit 1 and consents to 
the use of that sub-consultant.

  4.5 Successors  and  Assigns. This Contract shall  extend  to  and  be  binding  upon 
Contractor, its successors and assigns, including any individual, company, partnership or other 
entity  with  or  into  which Contractor  shall  merge,  consolidate  or  be  liquidated,  or  any  person, 
corporation, partnership or other entity to which Contractor shall sell its assets.

3
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract

 
 



 
    

    
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  

   
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

  
   

 

4.6 Contract Administrator The Contract Administrator for the Town shall be the Town.
Manager or designee.  The Contract Administrator shall oversee the execution of this Contract, 
assist the Contractor in accessing the organization, audit billings, and approve payments.  The
Contractor shall channel reports and special requests through the Contract Administrator.

4.7 Records and Audit Rights.

  4.7.1 Contractor’s records (hard copy, as well as computer readable data), and 
any  other  supporting  evidence  deemed  necessary  by  the Town to  substantiate  charges  and 
claims  related  to  this Contract shall  be  open  to  inspection  and  subject  to  audit  and/or 
reproduction by Town ’s authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit 
evaluation  and  verification  of  cost  of  the service  or work,  and  any  invoices,  change  orders, 
payments or claims submitted by the Contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution 
of the Contract.  The Town’s authorized representative shall be afforded access, at reasonable 
times and places, to all of the Contractor’s records and personnel pursuant to the provisions of 
this section throughout the term of this Contract and for a period of three years after last or final 
payment.

  4.7.2 Contractor shall require all subcontractors, insurance agents, and material 
suppliers to comply with the provisions of this section by insertion of the requirements hereof in 
a written Contract between Contractor and such subcontractors, insurance agents, and material 
suppliers.

  4.7.3 If an  audit  in  accordance  with  this section,  discloses  overcharges,  of  any 
nature, by the Contractor to the Town in excess of one percent (1%) of the monthly billings, the 
actual  cost  of  the Town’s audit  shall  be  reimbursed  to  the Town  by the Contractor.   Any 
adjustments and/or payments which must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of 
the Contractor’s invoices and/or records shall be made within a reasonable amount of time not,
to exceed thirty (30) days from presentation of Town’s findings to Contractor.

  4.8 Attorneys’  Fees. In  the  event  either  party  brings  any  action  for  any  relief, 
declaratory  or  otherwise,  arising  out  of  this Contract,  or  on  account  of  any breach  or  default 
hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the other party reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and reasonable costs and expenses, determined by the court sitting without a jury, which 
shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be enforceable 
whether or not such action is prosecuted to judgment.

  4.9 Ineligible Bidder. The preparer of specifications is not eligible to submit a bid or 
proposal on the solicitation for which they prepared the specification, nor is the preparer eligible 
to supply any product to a bidder or Contractor on the solicitation for which they prepared the
specification.

4.10 Independent Contractor.

  4.10.1 The Services Contractor  provides  under  the  terms  of  this Contract to  the 
Town are that of an Independent Contractor, not an employee, or agent of the Town. The Town 
will report the value paid for these services each year to the Internal Revenue Service (I.R.S.)
using Form 1099.

4
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract

 
 



 
    

  

 
 

  

   
   

   

 

  
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

   
 

 

  4.10.2 Town  shall not  withhold  income  tax  as  a  deduction  from Contractual 
payments. As  a result  of  this, Contractor  may  be  subject  to  I.R.S.  provisions  for  payment  of 
estimated income tax. Contractor is responsible for consulting the local I.R.S. office for current 
information on estimated tax requirements.

  4.11 Conflict  of  Interest. The Town may  cancel  any Contract or  agreement,  without 
penalty  or  obligation,  if  any  person  significantly  involved  in  initiating,  negotiating,  securing, 
drafting or creating the Contract on behalf of the Town’s departments or agencies is, at any time 
while the Contract or any extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of any other party 
to the Contract in any capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Contract with respect to 
the subject matter of the Contract.  The cancellation shall be effective when written notice from 
the Town is received by all other parties to the Contract, unless the notice specifies a later time

(A.R.S. § 38-511).

4.12 Compliance with Federal and State Laws.

  4.12.1 The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 
American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug 
Free Workplace Act of 1989.

  4.12.2 Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to 
the Town that  the Contractor  and  each  of  its subcontractors  will  comply  with,  and  are 
Contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate 
to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”).

  4.12.3 A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 
breach  of  this Contract and  shall  subject  the Contractor  to  penalties  up  to  and  including 
termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town.

  4.12.4 The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 
Subcontractor’s  employee  who  works  on  this Contract to  ensure  that  the Contractor  or 
Subcontractor is  complying  with  the Contractor  Immigration  Warranty. Contractor  agrees  to 
assist the Town in regard to any such inspections.

  4.12.5 The Town may,  at  is  sole  discretion,  conduct  random  verification  of  the 
employment  records  of  the Contractor  and  any subcontractors  to  ensure  compliance  with 
Contractor’s  Immigration  Warranty. Contractor  agrees  to  assist  the Town  in regard  to  any 
random verifications performed.

  4.12.6 Neither  the Contractor  nor  any subcontractor shall  be  deemed  to  have 
materially  breached  the Contractor  Immigration  Warranty  if  the Contractor  or subcontractor 
establishes  that  it  has  complied  with  the  employment  verification  provisions  prescribed  by 
section  274A  and  274B  of  the  Federal  Immigration  and  Nationality  Act  and  the  E-Verify 
requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A.

  4.12.7 The  provisions  of  this Section must  be  included  in  any Contract the 
Contractor  enters  into  with  any  and  all of  its subcontractors  who  provide  services  under  this 
Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State

5
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract



 
    

of Arizona by a Contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of 
any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 

4.12.8 The provisions of this Section 4.12 must be included in any Contract the 
Contractor enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this 
Contract or any subcontract.  
 

4.13 Notices.  All notices or demands required to be given pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract shall be given to the other party in writing, delivered by hand or registered or certified 
mail, at the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as the parties may substitute by 
written notice given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. 
 
In the case of Contractor: Jones Auto Center 
    Glenn Jones 
    1932 N Pinal Avenue 
    Casa Grande, AZ 85122 
    (520) 836-3100 
 
In the case of Town: Town of Florence 
    775 N, Main Street 
    PO Box 2670 
    Florence, AZ 85132 
     
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

   

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

Attn: Town Manager

Notices shall be deemed received on date delivered, if delivered by hand, or on the delivery date 
indicated on receipt if delivered by certified or registered mail.

  4.14 Force  Majeure. Neither  party  shall  be  responsible  for  delays  or  failures  in 
performance resulting from acts beyond their control.  Such acts shall include, but not be limited 
to, acts of God, riots, acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations imposed after the fact, 
fire, communication line failures, power failures, or earthquakes.

  4.15 Taxes. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any and all tax obligations which 
may  result  out  of  the Contractor’s  performance  of  this Contract.   The Town shall  have  no 
obligation to pay any amounts for taxes, of any type, incurred by the Contractor.

  4.16 Advertising. No  advertising  or  publicity concerning  the Town using  the 
Contractor’s services shall be undertaken without prior written approval of such advertising or 
publicity by the Town Contract Administrator. Written approval is required until such time as the 
project  is  complete  or  any  adjudication  of  claims  relating  to  the  services  provided  herein  is 
complete, whichever occurs later.

  4.17 Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, and 
each originally executed duplicate counterpart of this Contract shall be deemed to possess the 
full force and effect of the original.

  4.18 Captions. The captions used in this Contract are solely for the convenience of the 
parties, do not constitute a part of this Contract and are not to be used to construe or interpret 
this Contract.

6
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract

 



 
   

7
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract 

 
4.19 Subcontractors.  During the performance of the Contract, the Contractor may 

engage such additional Subcontractors as may be required for the timely completion of this 
Contract.  The addition of any Subcontractors shall be subject to the prior approval of the Town.  
In the event of subcontracting, the sole responsibility for fulfillment of all terms and conditions of 
this Contract rests with the Contractor. The Town acknowledges the sub-consultant(s) listed in 
Exhibit 1 and consents to the use of that sub-consultant. 
 

4.20 Indemnification.   
 

4.20.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor, its successors, assigns 
and guarantors, shall indemnify, defend, hold harmless Town of Florence, its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all allegations, 
demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, losses, expenses, including but not 
limited to damages for personal injury or personal property damage, attorney fees, court costs, 
and the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expense, related to, 
arising from or out of, or resulting from any negligent or intentional actions, acts, errors, mistakes 
or omissions caused in whole or part by Contractor relating to work or services in the 
performance of this Contract, including but not limited to, any Subcontractor or anyone directly 
or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and 
any injury or damages claimed by any of Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s employees.  

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Town of Florence, its successors, assigns 

and guarantors, shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, its agents, Representatives, 
officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all allegations, demands, 
proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, loses, expenses, including but not limited to, 
reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings, and all  
claim adjusting and handling expenses, related to, arising from or out of, resulting from any 
negligent or intentional actions, acts, errors, mistakes or omissions caused by the Town of 
Florence relating to work or services in the performance of this Contract.  

 
4.20.2 Insurance provisions set forth in this Contract are separate and independent 

from the indemnity provisions of this section and shall not be construed in any way to limit the 
scope and magnitude of the indemnity provisions.  The indemnity provisions of this sections shall 
not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude and applicability of the insurance 
provisions. 
 

4.21 Changes in the Work. 
 

4.21.1 The Town may at any time, as the need arises, order changes within the 
scope of the work without invalidating the Contract.  If such changes increase or decrease the 
amount due under the Contract documents, or in the time required for performance of the work, 
an equitable adjustment shall be authorized by written Change Order. 

 
4.21.2 The Town will execute a formal Change Order based on detailed written 

quotations from the Contractor for work related changes and/or a time of completion variance.  
All Change Orders are subject to the prior written approval by the Town. 

 



 
    

  
  

 
    

    
  
  

     
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
  

 

  
 

 
  

  4.21.3 Contract Change Orders are subject to the Rules and Procedures within the 
Town’s Procurement Code.

  4.22 Co-op  Use  of Contract. The  Town  and Contractor agree that  this Contract is 
entered into by the parties, as a cooperative purchase pursuant to the State of Arizona Contract 
ADSPO16-129368 between the State of Arizona and Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLP, 
and Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/Contract documents issued by 
the State of Arizona for the  Services(“Master Contract”)  is  in  full  force  and  effect  and  all  
terms  and  conditions  of  the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract.

  4.23 Alternative Dispute Resolution.  If a dispute arises between the parties relating to 
this Contract, the parties agree to use the following procedure prior to either party pursuing other 
available remedies:

  4.23.1 A  meeting shall  be  held  promptly  between  the  parties,  attended  by 
individuals  with  decision-making  authority  regarding  the  dispute,  to  attempt  in  good  faith  to 
negotiate a resolution of the dispute.

  4.23.2 If,  within  30  days  after  such  meeting,  the  parties  have  not succeeded  in 
negotiating  a  resolution  of  the  dispute,  they  will  jointly  appoint  a  mutually  acceptable  neutral 
person not affiliated with either of the parties (the “neutral”), seeking assistance in such regard 
if they have been unable to agree upon such appointment within 40 days from the initial meeting. 
The fees of the neutral shall be shared equally by the parties.

  4.23.3 In  consultation  with  the  neutral,  the  parties  will  select  or  devise  an 
alternative  dispute  resolution procedure  (“ADR”)  by  which  they  will  attempt  to  resolve  the 
dispute, and a time and place for the ADR to be held, with the neutral making the decision as to 
the procedure, and/or place and time (but unless circumstances require otherwise, not later than 
60 days after selection of the neutral) if the parties have been unable to agree on any of such 
matters within 20 days after initial consultation with the neutral.

  4.23.4. The parties agree to participate in good faith in the ADR to its conclusion 
as designated by the neutral.  If the parties are not successful in resolving the dispute through 
the  ADR,  then  the  parties  may  agree  to  submit  the  matter  to  binding  arbitration  or  a  private
adjudicator, or either party may seek an adjudicated resolution through the appropriate court.

4.24 Town Provided Information and Services The Town shall furnish the Contractor.
available  studies,  reports  and  other  data  pertinent  to  the Contractor's  services;  obtain  or 
authorize the Contractor to obtain or provide additional reports and data as required; furnish to 
the Contractor  services  of  others  required  for  the  performance  of  the Contractor's  services 
hereunder, and the Contractor shall be entitled to use and rely upon all such information and 
services  provided  by  the Town or  others  in  performing  the Contractor's Services  under  this 
Agreement.

  4.25 Estimates  and  Projections. In  providing  opinions  of  cost,  financial  analyses, 
economic  feasibility  projections,  and  schedules  for  potential  projects,  the Contractor  has  no 
control  over  cost  or  price  of  labor  and  material;  unknown  or  latent  conditions  of  existing 
equipment or structures that may affect operation and maintenance costs; competitive bidding 
procedures and market conditions; time or quality of performance of third parties; quality, type,

8
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract



 
    

 
 

 
   

 
 
   

  
 

  
 

   
  

 
  

 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

  

management, or direction of operating personnel; and other economic and operational factors 
that may materially affect the ultimate project cost or schedule. Therefore, the Contractor makes 
no  warranty  that  the Town’s actual  project  costs,  financial  aspects,  economic  feasibility,  or 
schedules will not vary from the Contractor’s opinions, analyses, projections, or estimates.

  4.26 Access.  The Town  shall arrange  for  access  to  and  make  all  provisions  for  the 
Contractor to enter upon public and private property as required for the Contractor to perform 
Services hereunder.

  4.27 Third Parties. The services to be performed by the Contractor are intended solely 
for the benefit of the Town. No person or entity not a signatory to this Agreement shall be entitled 
to rely on the Contractor's performance of its services hereunder, and no right to assert a claim 
against  the Contractor  by  assignment  of  indemnity  rights  or  otherwise  shall  accrue  to  a  third
party as a result of this Contract or the performance of the Contractor's Services hereunder.

5.0 INSURANCE

  5.1. General. Contractor agrees  to  comply  with  all Town ordinances  and  state  and 
federal  laws  and  regulations. Without  limiting  any  obligations  or  liabilities  of Contractor, 
Contractor  shall  purchase  and  maintain,  at  its  own  expense,  hereinafter  stipulated  minimum 
insurance  with  insurance  companies  duly  licensed  by  the  State  of  Arizona  (admitted  insurer)
with an AM Best, Inc. rating of B ++ 6 or above or an equivalent qualified unlicensed insurer by 
the  State  of  Arizona  (non-admitted  insurer)  with  policies  and  forms  satisfactory  to Town  of 
Florence. Failure to maintain insurance as specified may result in termination of this Contract at 
Town of Florence’s option. The Contractor is primarily responsible for the risk management if 
its work under this Contract, including but not limited to obtaining and maintaining the required 
insurance and establishing and maintaining a reasonable risk control and safety program. Town 
reserves  the  right  to  amend  the  requirements  herein  at  any  time  during  the Contract.   The 
Contractor  shall  require  any  and  all subcontractors  to  maintain  insurance  as  required  herein 
naming  the  Town  and Contractor  as  “Additional  Insured”  on  all  insurance  policies,  except 
Worker’s  Compensation,  and this  shall  be  reflected  on  the  Certificate  of  Insurance.   The 
Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to all available sources. 
Coverage  provided  by  the Contractor  shall  not  be  limited  to  the  liability  assumed  under  the 
Indemnification provision of this Contract. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor waives all 
rights of subrogation or similar rights against Town, its representatives, agents, and employees. 
All insurance policies, except  Workers’  Compensation,  required  by  this Contract,  and  self- 
insured  retention  or deductible  portions,  shall  name, to  the fullest  extent  permitted  by  law  for 
claims  arising  out  of  performance  of  this Contract,  Town  of  Florence, its  mayor and 
councilmembers,  agents,  representatives,  offices,  directors,  officials  and  employees  as 
Additional Insureds.  The Town  reserves  the  right  to  require  complete  copies of all  insurance 
policies and  endorsements required  by  this Contract at  any  time.  Failure  to  maintain  the 
insurance policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material
breach of Contract.

  5.2 No Representation of Coverage Adequacy. By requiring insurance herein, Town 
of Florence does not represent that coverage and limits will be adequate to protect Contractor. 
Town  of  Florence reserves  the  right  to  review  any  and  all  of  the  insurance  policies  and/or 
endorsements  cited  in  this Contract but  has  no  obligation  to  do  so.   Failure  to  demand  such 
evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements set forth in this Contract or failure

9
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract



 
   

10
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract 

to identify any insurance deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or 
deemed a waiver of, its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the 
performance of this Contract. 
 

5.3 Coverage Term.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and 
effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of this Contract is 
satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the Town of Florence, unless 
specified otherwise in this Contract. 

 
5.4 Policy Deductibles and or Self Insured Retentions.  The policies set forth in these 

requirements may provide coverage which contain deductibles or self-insured retention 
amounts.  Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with respect to the 
policy limits provided to Town of Florence.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for any such 
deductible or self-insured retention amount.  Town of Florence, at its option, may require 
Contractor to secure payment of such deductible or self-insured retention by a surety bond or 
irrevocable and unconditional Letter of Credit. 

 
5.5 Use of Subcontractors.  If any work under this Contract is sub-contracted in any 

way, Contractor shall execute written agreement with Subcontractor containing the same 
Indemnification Clause and Insurance Requirements set forth herein protecting Town of 
Florence and Contractor.  Contractor shall be responsible for executing the agreement with 
Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance verifying the insurance requirements. 

 
5.6 Evidence of Insurance.  Prior to commencing any work or Services under this 

Contract, Contractor shall furnish Town of Florence with Certificate(s) of Insurance, or formal 
endorsements as required by this Contract, issued by Contractor’s insurer(s) as evidence that 
policies are placed with acceptable insurers as specified herein and provide the required 
coverage’s, conditions, and limits of coverage and that such coverage and provisions are in full 
force and effect. 

 
5.7 Required Coverage. 

 
5.7.1 Commercial General Liability.  Contractor shall maintain “occurrence” form 

Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations Annual Aggregate, and 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, independent Contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury and 
advertising injury.  Coverage under the policy will be at least as broad as Insurance limited to, 
separation of insureds clause.  If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of 
this paragraph, such Excess insurance shall be “follow form” equal or broader to coverage scope 
then underlying. 
 

5.7.2 Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain Workers 
Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having 
jurisdiction of Contractor’s employees engaged in the performance of work or Services under 
this Contract and shall also maintain Employers Liability Insurance of not less than $100,000 for 
each accident, $100,000 disease for each employee and $250,000 disease policy limit. 

 



 
   

11
Town of Florence / Glenn Jones Ford, Lincoln, Mercury LLLP – Service Contract 

5.7.3   Commercial Auto Coverage.  Auto Liability limits of not less than $1,000,000 
each accident, combined Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability insurance. Certificate to 
reflect coverage for “Any Auto” or “All Owned, Scheduled, Hired and Non-Owned”.  
 
6.0 SEVERABILITY AND AUTHORITY 
 

6.1 Severability.  If any term or provision of this Contract shall be found to be illegal or 
unenforceable, then notwithstanding such illegality or unenforceability, this Contract shall remain 
in full force and effect and such term or provision shall be deemed to be deleted. 

 
6.2 Authority.  Each party hereby warrants and represents that it has full power and 

authority to enter into and perform this Contract, and that the person signing on behalf of each 
has been properly authorized and empowered to enter this Contract.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by it. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Florence by its Mayor, Tara Walter has hereunto 
subscribed her name this 5 day of August, 2019. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE      
 
 
By:        By:        
      Tara Walter, Mayor 
       Name:        
 
       Its:        
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
 
 
By:        By:        
      Contractor  
       Name:        
 
       Its:        
 
Approved as Form: 
 
 
         
Clifford L. Mattice, Florence Town Attorney 















 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7g.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
                                     Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Waxie Sanitary Supply for operational and 
janitorial supplies, and related custodial equipment and 
services for the Town buildings.

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Waxie Sanitary Supply                                      Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 

Page 1 of 2 

 Community Vitality    Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to contract with Waxie Sanitary Supply through the National Joint 
Powers Alliance (NCPA) Cooperative Contract # 02-27 (on file in the Town 
Clerk’s Office), for operational and janitorial supplies and related custodial 
equipment and services, in an amount not to exceed $40,000 through June 30, 
2019.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
Waxie Sanitary Supply provides janitorial products and equipment, as well as 
free training opportunities for the Public Works - Facilities Maintenance staff.  
Waxie allows the Town to purchase items with no minimum order requirements.  
Staff can purchase items to stock for regularly scheduled maintenances and for 
emergencies with a fast delivery turnaround.  Items include bathroom supplies, 
shop towels, cleaners, disinfectants, gloves, soap, deodorizers, trash liners, mop 
heads, brooms, urinal carts, etc. 
 
The term of the Town contract with Waxie would be the date approved by 
Council, through June 30, 2019.   
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of no would delay purchases of janitorial supplies. Custodial Maintenance 
Workers may not be able to complete their daily assigned tasks on schedule 



 
 

Subject:  Waxie Sanitary Supply                                      Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 

without products readily available or easy to acquire.  Costs would be projected 
higher without a cooperative contract and there may be a minimum amount 
required for purchases with other vendors. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of yes would mean faster turnaround times for immediate needs, 
scheduled maintenance/repairs and other emergencies. 
 
The Town’s Facilities Maintenance Division will be allowed to purchase on an “as 
needed” basis from a competitively awarded contract, allowing staff to have on-
hand access to necessary operational and janitorial supplies, services and 
related custodial equipment. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

 The cost to provide supplies and equipment will not exceed $40,000 from the 
Facilities Maintenance budget.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Town of Florence Cooperative Contract, with Exhibit 1   
 
 

 
 
 



1 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF THE NATIONAL JOINT POWERS ALLIANCE 

SOLICITATION NO. 110415, CONTRACT NO. 02-27 FOR OPERATIONAL AND JANITORIAL 
SUPPLIES AND RELATED EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 19th day of August, 
2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and Waxie 
Sanitary Supply (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract Documents referred to and 
incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated in the National Joint Powers Alliance 
(NCPA), Solicitation No. 08-, Contract No. 02-27 for operational and janitorial supplies, and related 
custodial equipment and services. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in this 
Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  

 
1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, material, 

transportation services and equipment to provide operational and janitorial supplies, and 
related custodial equipment and services per contract specifications described in the attached 
scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” (the “Goods” or “Services”). The 
Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, 
and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master Contract including but not 
limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, 
Specifications, Scope of Work, Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own 
cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish all of the equipment, personnel and 
materials necessary to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the 
Town, the Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the Parties that 
should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the Master Contract, or the 
Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the provisions of the Contract Documents shall 
control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said 
Proposal conflicting herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
1. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and valuable 

consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/contract (National 
Joint Powers Alliance (NCPA), Solicitation No. 110415, Contract No. 02-27 for operational and 
janitorial supplies, and related custodial equipment and services) is in full force and effect, 
“Clean Air and Water Act and Debarment Notice”; “Antitrust Certification Statements”; 
“Contractor Requirements”; “FEMA Standard Terms and Conditions”; “Required Clause for 
Federal Assistance”; “State Notice Addendum”, and all terms and conditions of the Master 
Contract are incorporated by reference into this “Master Contract”, creating an agreement 
identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: 
“National Joint Powers Alliance”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and refer to the 
Town of Florence; the terms: “Maricopa County” shall be deemed to be and refer to “Pinal 
County”; the terms: “Deputy Finance Director” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of 
Florence Town Manager; and the terms: “Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, 
“Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  
 

3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract documents, which 
by reference are incorporated herein: 
 National Joint Powers Alliance (NCPA), Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 110415  



2 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract 

 National Joint Powers Alliance (NCPA), Award letter to Waxie, Contract No. 02-27 
 National Joint Powers Alliance (NCPA), Annual renewal award letter, Contract #02-27, 

expiring April 30, 2020 
 Exhibit 1 – NCPA Waxie Sanitary Supply Price List - Scope of Work 
 Cooperative Cover Contract Town of Florence and Waxie Sanitary Supply  

 
4. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and 

Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), and shall not exceed 
$40,000.00 
 

5. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through 
satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services 
and/or Goods by the Town, or the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2020. Time is of the essence 
to the terms of this Contract. 

 
6. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 

A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with 
Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town  that 

the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually 
obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their 
employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 

Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s 

employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town 
in regard to any such inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment 

records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s 
Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random 
verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached 

the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it 
has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 
274B of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements 
prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of 



3 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract 

Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of 
any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 

7. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is 
to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which 
clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that 
progress.  All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town.  All 
invoices are to be emailed to accountspayable@florenceaz.gov. 
 

8. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may terminate, 
suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s convenience without penalty 
or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed 
and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the 
Goods and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

 
9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent 

contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not 
be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal 
relationship with Town. 

 
10. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to 

have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, 
addressed as follows:   

 
Town: Town of Florence    Contractor: Waxie Sanitary Supply 
Town Clerk         PO Box 748802 
PO Box 2670                          Los Angeles, CA 90074 
Florence AZ 85132; and    (800) 544-8053 
        
 

11.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 
assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, 
from and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate 
proceedings), and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or 
alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the 
Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the 
Goods or Services in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold 
harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, 
damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury 
to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused 
by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this 
Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or 
any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor 
may be legally liable. In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to 
waive all rights of subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees 
for losses arising from the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 



4 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract 

12. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the 
requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Services will be 
performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of 
Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations 
under this warranty.  If any Goods or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner 
as determined by the Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide 
Goods or redo such Services until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s 
reasonable satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be 
new, unused, of most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in 
materials and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard 
warranty for at least one (1) year, unless otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance 
with manufacturer’s published specifications. 

 
13. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy (the 

“Policy”) govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by this 
reference. Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance with the Policy, including 
demonstrating its lawful presence in the United States. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in 

accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference 
to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The exclusive forum selected for any 
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal 
County, Arizona. 
 

15. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution 
of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this 
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective 
Date set forth above. 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 

        
 
By: __________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk                                Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         

 



Item # Item Description MFI UOM Qty Shipped Unit Sell Price Sales Order # Invoice # Customer PO Number Invoice Date

790382 WAXIE SHIELD W8642L NITRILE PF GP GLOVES BLACK LARGE 10/100 790382 CS 3 79.07 237.21 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
851178 WAXIE 1855 CLEAN & SOFT WHITE 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 80/550 566186 CS 2 38.91 77.82 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
170018 WAXIE GERMICIDAL ULTRA BLEACH GL 3/CS 11003428431 CS 1 7.34 7.34 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
161364 WAXIE WAVE 3D URINAL DEODORANT SCREEN COTTON BLOSS 10/BX 6BXCS 3WDS-P-06-AAG77 CS 1 123.45 123.45 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
530990 WAXIE-GREEN LAUNDRY DETERGENT 1.2 OZ PACKET 250/CS 2800164 DM 1 56.77 56.77 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
650041 WAXIE #24 REGULAR COTTON MOP HEAD 12/CS 2312024 CS 1 54.20 54.20 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
700250 WAXIE 36X58 1 MIL BLACK TUFF N STRETCH FLAT PK LINER 200/CS W7258HKI CS 5 52.40 262.00 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
856170 12024402 TORK ADVANCED MINI JUMBO 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 12/751 12024402 CS 15 42.89 643.35 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
856066 290089 TORK ADVANCED MATIC ROLL TOWEL WHITE 6/700 290089 CS 15 55.41 831.15 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
850045 WAXIE 2010 KLEENLINE MULTIFOLD TOWEL WHITE 16/250 (4000/CS) TI18710 CS 2 19.44 38.88 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
574660 WIN 5300 PAPER FILTER BAGS OEM (FITS SENSOR & VSP VACS) 10/PK 9.840-643.0 PK 2 13.55 27.10 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
170110 CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES LEMON SCENT 6/75 CLO15948CT CS 10 36.25 362.50 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
386411 WAXIE-GREEN CLEAN TOUCH LX POMEBERRY HANDWASH 1200ML 2/CS 1916-02-BCE00YL CS 10 38.92 389.20 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
1033190 CLOROX CLEANUP 9/32-OZ CLO35417CT CS 1 37.92 37.92 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
169002 ECOBLUE CUBE BOOSTER 1 LITER BOTTLE 12/CS EB1L CS 1 998.80 998.80 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
169014 ECOBLUE CUBES 25 PER BOX  8 BOXES PER CASE EC25 BX 2 301.17 602.33 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
290470 18-IN COMBO SQUEEGEE/WASHER 71181 EA 1 32.24 32.24 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
820750 WHITE METAL WALL MOUNT RECEPTACLE ND-1W EA 2 14.28 28.56 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
2050911 WAXIE 60 IN WOOD THREAD BROOM HANDLE 70103 EA 5 3.19 15.95 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
950151 WAXIE SPARKLE GLASS & SURFACE CLEANER 19 OZ CAN 12/CS 1015795 CS 2 31.11 62.22 F20JW 77618311 50320 07/27/2018
2051291 WAXIE 54 IN PLASTIC ANGLED UPRIGHT BROOM WITH WOOD HANDLE 60824 EA 5 7.81 39.05 F256C 77622775 50320 07/31/2018
2050911 WAXIE 60 IN WOOD THREAD BROOM HANDLE 70103 EA -5 3.19 -15.95 F26E8 77618311 50320 07/31/2018
386411 WAXIE-GREEN CLEAN TOUCH LX POMEBERRY HANDWASH 1200ML 2/CS 1916-02-BCE00YL CS 10 38.92 389.20 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
386316 WAXIE CLEAN TOUCH LX TOUCH FREE SOAP DISP BLACK/CHROME 1200 ML 1919-04-BCE00YL EA 3 25.00 75.00 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
170110 CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES LEMON SCENT 6/75 CLO15948CT CS 5 36.25 181.25 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
170254 WAXIE KLEEN PINE #5 GL 4/CS 011060401W CS 1 39.84 39.84 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
320014 WAXIE FAST ACT CONCENTRATED CLEANER CITRUS SCENT GL 4/CS 073760401W CS 1 28.29 28.29 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
160384 BREAKDOWN ENZYME ODOR ELIMINATOR 4X1 94291110 CS 1 85.40 85.40 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
650012 RM D253-06 LARGE SUPER STITCH BLEND MOP BLUE 6/CS FGD25306BL00 CS 1 69.05 69.05 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
1030200 CREW CLINGING DISINFECTANT TOILET BOWL CLEANER 12X1 QT 04578. CS 2 28.92 57.84 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
160301 WAXIE KLEEN-AIR MOUNT MIST DRY AIR FRESHENER 10 OZ CAN 12/CS 1040305 CS 2 50.88 101.76 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
856066 290089 TORK ADVANCED MATIC ROLL TOWEL WHITE 6/700 290089 CS 10 55.41 554.10 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
856170 12024402 TORK ADVANCED MINI JUMBO 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 12/751 12024402 CS 10 42.89 428.90 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
1030610 WAXIE-GREEN CSL CALCIUM SCALE & LIME REMOVER QT 12/CS WNCAQT_CASE CS 1 111.22 111.22 F94WY 77698274 50320 08/31/2018
386316 WAXIE CLEAN TOUCH LX TOUCH FREE SOAP DISP BLACK/CHROME 1200 ML 1919-04-BCE00YL EA 5 25.00 125.00 F99CP 77698909 50320 08/31/2018
386316 WAXIE CLEAN TOUCH LX TOUCH FREE SOAP DISP BLACK/CHROME 1200 ML 1919-04-BCE00YL EA 8 0.00 0.00 GD784 77743472 50320 09/21/2018
262041 WAXIE KLEENLINE 20 IN TAN BURNISHING PAD 5/CS 50048011597688 CS 2 16.48 32.96 GD784 77743472 50320 09/21/2018
700560 WAXIE 24X32 .6 MIL BUFF INSTITUTE FLAT PK LINER 500/CS W4832MTI CS 10 34.51 345.10 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
700250 WAXIE 36X58 1 MIL BLACK TUFF N STRETCH FLAT PK LINER 200/CS W7258HKI CS 10 52.40 524.00 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
161364 WAXIE WAVE 3D URINAL DEODORANT SCREEN COTTON BLOSS 10/BX 6BXCS 3WDS-P-06-AAG77 CS 2 123.45 246.90 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
950151 WAXIE SPARKLE GLASS & SURFACE CLEANER 19 OZ CAN 12/CS 1015795 CS 1 31.11 31.11 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
2060671 6310 RM TOILET BOWL BRUSH WHITE FG631000WHT EA 12 2.47 29.64 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
1030211 CREW HD TOILET BOWL CLEANER 12X32-OZ 04560. CS 1 50.86 50.86 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
190010 METAL DUST PAN - 12-IN 4212 EA 3 5.12 15.36 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
790382 WAXIE SHIELD W8642L NITRILE PF GP GLOVES BLACK LARGE 10/100 790382 CS 2 79.07 158.14 GH3A0 77777307 50320 10/05/2018
650081 WAXIE #24 REGULAR RAYON MOP HEAD 12/CS 2272024 CS 1 78.59 78.59 GL2DK 77800510 50320 10/17/2018
650041 WAXIE #24 REGULAR COTTON MOP HEAD 12/CS 2312024 EA -11 4.52 -49.68 GL22H 77618311 50320 10/17/2018
856066 290089 TORK ADVANCED MATIC ROLL TOWEL WHITE 6/700 290089 CS 20 55.41 1,108.20 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
856170 12024402 TORK ADVANCED MINI JUMBO 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 12/751 12024402 CS 5 42.89 214.45 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
851178 WAXIE 1855 CLEAN & SOFT WHITE 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 80/550 566186 CS 2 38.91 77.82 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
170018 WAXIE GERMICIDAL ULTRA BLEACH GL 3/CS 11003428431 CS 1 7.34 7.34 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
160301 WAXIE KLEEN-AIR MOUNT MIST DRY AIR FRESHENER 10 OZ CAN 12/CS 1040305 CS 2 50.88 101.76 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
160116 WAXIE-GREEN FRESH MIST LIQUID MICROBES GL 4/CS WEFMG_CASE CS 1 130.08 130.08 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
160384 BREAKDOWN ENZYME ODOR ELIMINATOR 4X1 94291110 CS 1 85.40 85.40 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018
232445 8850 4X6 BROWN HEAVY TRAFFIC CARPET MAT 885046BR EA 0 0.00 0.00 GN6AN 77827067 50320 10/30/2018



232445 8850 4X6 BROWN HEAVY TRAFFIC CARPET MAT 885046BR EA 2 233.52 467.04 GN6AN 77888650 50320 11/27/2018
1030200 CREW CLINGING DISINFECTANT TOILET BOWL CLEANER 12X1 QT 04578. CS 2 28.92 57.84 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
850045 WAXIE 2010 KLEENLINE MULTIFOLD TOWEL WHITE 16/250 (4000/CS) TI18710 CS 2 19.44 38.88 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
790382 WAXIE SHIELD W8642L NITRILE PF GP GLOVES BLACK LARGE 10/100 790382 CS 2 79.07 158.14 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
170110 CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES LEMON SCENT 6/75 CLO15948CT CS 10 36.25 362.50 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
386411 WAXIE-GREEN CLEAN TOUCH LX POMEBERRY HANDWASH 1200ML 2/CS 1916-02-BCE00YL CS 20 38.92 778.40 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
320895 WAXIE ULTRA CLEAN WOOD FLOOR CLEANER GL 4/CS WS320895 CS 1 63.76 63.76 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
160116 WAXIE-GREEN FRESH MIST LIQUID MICROBES GL 4/CS WEFMG_CASE CS 1 130.08 130.08 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
1070663 WAXIE-GREEN ENCAPSULATING CARPET PRE-SPRAY GL 4/CS WS128SBN SPT CS 1 89.11 89.11 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
1070661 WAXIE-GREEN ENCAPSULATING CARPET SPIN BONNET SHAMPOO GL 4 WS128SBN SHP CS 1 82.13 82.13 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
651814 WAXIE FAST GLIDE 18-INCH MOPPING SYSTEM 651814 EA 1 47.57 47.57 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
652140 18-IN BLUE MICROFIBER LOOPED WET MOP PADS 652140 DZ 1 42.14 42.14 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
260401 WIN TAZ 19-IN CARPET ENCAPSULATION SCRUB PADS 5/CS 8.637-466.0 BX 3 33.45 100.35 GV55Z 77898160 50320 11/30/2018
950151 WAXIE SPARKLE GLASS & SURFACE CLEANER 19 OZ CAN 12/CS 1015795 CS 2 31.11 62.22 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
160301 WAXIE KLEEN-AIR MOUNT MIST DRY AIR FRESHENER 10 OZ CAN 12/CS 1040305 CS 2 50.88 101.76 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
651814 WAXIE FAST GLIDE 18-INCH MOPPING SYSTEM 651814 EA 2 47.57 95.14 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
652140 18-IN BLUE MICROFIBER LOOPED WET MOP PADS 652140 DZ 2 42.14 84.28 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
160476 WAXIE ECO CLIP FABULOUS AIR FRESHENER 12/BX 6BX/CS EBC-P-11-AAG77 CS 1 146.92 146.92 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
160476 WAXIE ECO CLIP FABULOUS AIR FRESHENER 12/BX 6BX/CS EBC-P-11-AAG77 CS 1 146.92 146.92 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
160410 FRESH WAVE - IAQ GEL 12/8 OZ. 545-12 CS 1 53.08 53.08 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
160412 FRESH WAVE - IAQ GEL 2-GALLON REFILL - 2/CS 547-2 CS 1 149.25 149.25 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
790382 WAXIE SHIELD W8642L NITRILE PF GP GLOVES BLACK LARGE 10/100 790382 CS 2 79.07 158.14 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
574660 WIN 5300 PAPER FILTER BAGS OEM (FITS SENSOR & VSP VACS) 10/PK 9.840-643.0 PK 2 13.55 27.10 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
856066 290089 TORK ADVANCED MATIC ROLL TOWEL WHITE 6/700 290089 CS 15 55.41 831.15 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
650935 WAXIE #548 DISPOSABLE DUST MOP 12/CS 52248 CS 0 0.00 0.00 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
161367 WAXIE WAVE 3D URINAL DEODORANT SCREEN FABULOUS 10/BX 6BX/CS 3WDS-P-11-AAG77 CS 1 129.91 129.91 G33J4 77975823 50320 01/08/2019
650935 WAXIE #548 DISPOSABLE DUST MOP 12/CS 52248 CS 1 120.09 120.09 G33J4 77986757 50320 01/11/2019
856170 12024402 TORK ADVANCED MINI JUMBO 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 12/751 12024402 CS 15 42.89 643.35 G60H2 78003450 50320 01/18/2019
574647 WIN 4028 18-IN REPLACEMENT BRUSH STRIP 8.600-164.0 EA 1 11.16 11.16 G619X 78083740 50320 02/22/2019
58WIN86407940 ACCESS DOOR ZINC YELLOW 8.640-794.0 EA 1 18.00 18.00 G619X 78083740 50320 02/22/2019
386907 GOJO MULTI GREEN HAND CLEANER APR-00 7265-04 CS 1 79.97 79.97 HG0R3 78101799 50320 03/01/2019
380367 GOJO PRO 2000 GREY DISPENSER 7200-01 EA 2 0.01 0.02 HG2CV 78102918 50320 03/01/2019
160301 WAXIE KLEEN-AIR MOUNT MIST DRY AIR FRESHENER 10 OZ CAN 12/CS 1040305 CS 2 50.88 101.76 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
161367 WAXIE WAVE 3D URINAL DEODORANT SCREEN FABULOUS 10/BX 6BX/CS 3WDS-P-11-AAG77 CS 1 129.91 129.91 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
170018 WAXIE GERMICIDAL ULTRA BLEACH GL 3/CS 11003428431 CS 1 7.34 7.34 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
160116 WAXIE-GREEN FRESH MIST LIQUID MICROBES GL 4/CS WEFMG_CASE CS 1 130.08 130.08 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
1030200 CREW CLINGING DISINFECTANT TOILET BOWL CLEANER 12X1 QT 04578. CS 2 28.92 57.84 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
950151 WAXIE SPARKLE GLASS & SURFACE CLEANER 19 OZ CAN 12/CS 1015795 CS 1 31.11 31.11 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
650071 WAXIE #16 REGULAR RAYON MOP 12/CS 2271416 CS 1 57.02 57.02 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
700560 WAXIE 24X32 .6 MIL BUFF INSTITUTE FLAT PK LINER 500/CS W4832MTI CS 0 0.00 0.00 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
170110 CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES LEMON SCENT 6/75 CLO15948CT CS 1 36.25 36.25 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
1033190 CLOROX CLEANUP 9/32-OZ CLO35417CT CS 1 37.92 37.92 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
790382 WAXIE SHIELD W8642L NITRILE PF GP GLOVES BLACK LARGE 10/100 790382 CS 2 79.07 158.14 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
386411 WAXIE-GREEN CLEAN TOUCH LX POMEBERRY HANDWASH 1200ML 2/CS 1916-02-BCE00YL CS 10 38.92 389.20 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
350120 3M SCOTCH-BRITE 200CC GRIDDLE SCREENS - 20/PK - 10PK/CS 50048011205071 PK 2 7.54 15.07 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
856066 290089 TORK ADVANCED MATIC ROLL TOWEL WHITE 6/700 290089 CS 20 55.41 1,108.20 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
170254 WAXIE KLEEN PINE #5 GL 4/CS 011060401W CS 1 39.84 39.84 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
180151 LAM 14IN DUSTING HEAD EXTENDS TO 83IN W/ DETACHABLE FLEX HEAD S83EPPD EA 1 7.22 7.22 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
851178 WAXIE 1855 CLEAN & SOFT WHITE 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 80/550 566186 CS 2 38.91 77.82 HG9MX 78119235 50320 03/08/2019
700560 WAXIE 24X32 .6 MIL BUFF INSTITUTE FLAT PK LINER 500/CS W4832MTI CS 10 34.51 345.10 HG9MX 78126676 50320 03/12/2019
170110 CLOROX DISINFECTANT WIPES LEMON SCENT 6/75 CLO15948CT CS 6 36.25 217.50 HJ2WX 78126688 50320 03/12/2019
856170 12024402 TORK ADVANCED MINI JUMBO 2-PLY BATH TISSUE 12/751 12024402 CS 20 42.89 857.80 HJ2WX 78126688 50320 03/12/2019
930054 WAXIE MIRAGE FLOOR FINISH GL 4/ CS 090180401W CS 1 65.24 65.24 HU6MB 78219767 50320 04/19/2019
655305 3M 553654W EASY TRAP 8X6 SWEEP AND DUST SHEETS 125 FT 1 RL/CS 50051125859191 CS 4 76.64 306.56 HU6MB 78219767 50320 04/19/2019



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7h.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Rottweiler Controls, LLC Contract 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Rottweiler Controls - SCADA Concert   Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to contract with Rottweiler Controls, LLC, for professional services related 
to SCADA Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $50,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town required professional services related to SCADA improvements to include but 
not limited to: 
 

 Design of new control panels 
 Design of control panels retrofits or replacements, including site visits to 

develop documentation of existing conditions as required 
 Participate in design review meetings 

 Development of detailed control panel cost estimates 
 Development of control panel shop drawings 
 Development of detailed delivery schedule for control panel assembly 
 Build control panels 
 Perform Factory Acceptance Test, including loading basic PLC program for 

testing purposes 
 Development of final “As-Built” drawings 
 Installation of new control panels 
 Removal of existing control panel components 
 Installation of control panel components in retrofitted panels 
 Perform site acceptance testing 



 
 

 Provide startup/cutover support 
 

The Town will utilize the City of Buckeye’s Cooperative Contract # 31700019 – SCADA 
Improvements and on call services (on file in the Town Clerk’s Office). 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would delay services and repairs to the SCADA system. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean quicker services and repairs to the SCADA system. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The cost to provide services shall not exceed $50,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
 Approved Bid Tabulation for Blanket Purchase Order 
 Town of Florence Service Contract with Exhibit 1 

 





1 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

 
 

 

 
  

    
   

 
 
          
 
   

   
   

 
   
 
   

 
 
     

     
   

  
 

   
 
 

 
 
        
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT (“Contract”), is made and entered into as of 
August 5,  2019 (“Effective  Date”), and  is by  and  between  the Town  of  Florence,  a municipal 
corporation of the State of Arizona (“Town”), and Rottweiler Controls LLC., (“Contractor”). The 
Town and the Contractor may be referred to in the Contract collectively as the “parties” and each
individually as a “party”.

RECITALS

  WHEREAS,  the Town desires  to Contract for Public Works  Management  Support  and 
Consulting Services, Project and SCADA Services as specified in Exhibit 1
(“Scope of Work” or “Services”);

WHEREAS, Contractor is duly qualified to perform the requested services;

  WHEREAS, Contractor  has  agreed  to  perform  the services as  set  forth  in Exhibit  1 
attached hereto and incorporated herein;

  WHEREAS, Town desires and Contractor agrees that this Contract is entered into by the 
parties, as a cooperative purchase pursuant to the City of Buckeye Contract dated June 9, 2017 
between  the  City  of  Buckeye and Rottweiler Controls,  LLC, and Contractor  agrees  that  the 
master  cooperative  solicitation/Contract documents  issued  by  the  City  of  Buckeye for  the 
Services(“Master Contract”) is in full force and effect and all terms and conditions of the Master
Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract.

NOW  THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the  mutual  promises  and  obligations  set  forth
herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENTS

1.0 DESCRIPTION, ACCEPTANCE, DOCUMENTATION

Contractor shall act under the authority and approval of the Contract Administrator for the Town, 
further named herein, to provide the professional services required by this Contract.

  1.1 Service Description. The Contractor shall provide the requested services as set 
forth  in Exhibit  1 and  as  set  forth  in  individual Task  Orders  (the  “Services”).   This Contract 
includes this agreement, including any attachments, and any Task Orders that may be issued 
as  agreed  to  by  the  parties  to  implement  the  services. Task  Order means  a  specific  written 
agreement between the Town and Contractor for work to be performed under this Contract for 
an individual, mutually agreed upon scope of work, schedule and price.  In response to Task 
Orders  that  may  be  mutually  agreed  upon  and  issued  periodically  by  Town, Contractor  shall 
perform the Services, except as may be specified elsewhere in the Contract which will be defined 
and further described as to specific project requirements in each Task Order.  The Services shall 
be performed in accordance with the requirements set forth in each Task Order.  
 
 



2 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

1.2 Acceptance and Documentation.   
  1.2.1 Each deliverable shall be reviewed and approved by the Town Manager or 
his designee to determine acceptable completion. 

 
  1.2.2. The Town shall provide all necessary information to the Contractor for timely 
completion of the tasks specified in Item 1.1 above. 
 

1.2.3 All documents, including but not limited to, data compilations, studies,  
and/or reports, which are prepared in the performance of this Contract are to be and remain the 
property of the Town and are to be delivered to the Town Manager before final payment is made 
to the Contractor. 

 
2.0 FEES, CATEGORIES OF SERVICE AND PAYMENTS 
 

2.1 Fees.  Contractor will be paid within 30 days of the receipt of an itemized invoice.  
Monthly payment may be made to Contractor on the basis of a progress report prepared and 
submitted by Contractor for the Services completed through the last day of the proceeding 
calendar month and for the production of the deliverables as spelled out in Exhibit 1, and the 
individual Task Order approved by the Town.  
 

2.2 Categories of Service.  Services means in response to Task Orders, including 
Exhibit A, that may be mutually agreed upon and issued periodically by Town, Contractor shall 
furnish all necessary work which will be defined and further described as to specific project 
requirements in each Task Order.  

 
2.3 Payment Approval.  Amounts set forth in Section 1.1 and 2.2 represent the entire 

amounts payable under this Contract and shall be paid upon the submission of monthly invoices 
to and approved by the Town.   
 

2.4 Business License.  Contractor will purchase and maintain a business license with 
the Town of Florence.   
 
3.0 SCHEDULE AND TERMINATION 
 

3.1 Project Schedule.  The Contractor shall perform the Scope of Work in accordance 
with the schedule attached as Exhibit 1, and any Task Order. 
 

3.2 Termination. 
 

3.2.1 Termination for Cause:  Town may also terminate this Contract with seven 
(7) days’ prior written notice for cause in the event of any default by the Contractor, or if the 
Contractor fails to comply with any industry standards and customary practices terms and 
conditions of this Contract. Unsatisfactory performance as judged by Industry standards and 
customary practices, and failure to provide Town, upon request, with adequate assurances of 
future performance shall all be causes allowing Town to terminate this Contract for cause.  In 
the event of termination for cause, Town shall not be liable to Contractor for any amount, and 
Contractor shall be liable to Town for any and all damages sustained by reason of the default 
which gave rise to the termination. 
 



3 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

3.2.2 Termination for Convenience.  The Parties reserve the right to terminate 
this Contract with or without cause upon 30 days’ prior written notice.  In the event the Town 
terminates this Contract pursuant to this Section 3.2.2, then in that event the Town agrees to 
pay for the work performed prior to the date of termination. Town may terminate this Contract, 
or any part thereof for its sole convenience, at any time without penalty or recourse.  
 

3.2.3 Termination for Violation of Law.  In the event Contractor is in violation of 
any Federal, State, County or Town law, regulation or ordinance, the Town may terminate this 
Contract immediately upon giving notice to the Contractor. 
 
 

3.3 Funds Appropriation.  If the Town Council does not appropriate funds to continue 
this Contract and pay for charges hereunder, the Town may terminate this Contract at the end 
of the current fiscal period.  The Town agrees to give written notice pursuant to Section 4.13 of 
termination to the Contractor at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of its current fiscal period 
and will pay to the Contractor all approved charges incurred through the end of such period. 
 

3.4 Terms.  The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through June 
30, 2020. Task Orders may be issued at any time during the term of this Contract.   This Contract 
will remain in full force and effect during the performance of any Task Order.  The contract may 
be renewed upon mutual agreement of the parties.  

 
4.0 GENERAL TERMS 

 
4.1 Entire Contract.  This Contract constitutes the entire understanding of the parties 

and supersedes all previous representations, written or oral, with respect to the services 
specified herein.  This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a written document, 
signed by authorized representatives of each party. 

 
4.2 Arizona Law.  This Contract shall be governed and interpreted according to the 

laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles 
thereof.  
 

4.3 Modifications.  Any amendment, modification or variation from the terms of this 
Contract shall be in writing and shall be effective only after approval of all parties signing the 
original Contract. 
 

4.4 Assignment.  Services covered by this Contract shall not be assigned or sublet in 
whole or in part without the prior written consent of the Finance Director and Contract 
Administrator. The Town acknowledges the sub-consultant(s) listed in Exhibit 1 and consents to 
the use of that sub-consultant. 
 

4.5 Successors and Assigns.  This Contract shall extend to and be binding upon 
Contractor, its successors and assigns, including any individual, company, partnership or other 
entity with or into which Contractor shall merge, consolidate or be liquidated, or any person, 
corporation, partnership or other entity to which Contractor shall sell its assets. 
 

4.6 Contract Administrator.  The Contract Administrator for the Town shall be the Town 
Manager or designee.  The Contract Administrator shall oversee the execution of this Contract, 



4 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

assist the Contractor in accessing the organization, audit billings, and approve payments.  The 
Contractor shall channel reports and special requests through the Contract Administrator. 

 
4.7 Records and Audit Rights.   

 
4.7.1 Contractor’s records (hard copy, as well as computer readable data), and 

any other supporting evidence deemed necessary by the Town  to substantiate charges and 
claims related to this Contract shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or 
reproduction by Town ’s authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit 
evaluation and verification of cost of the service or work, and any invoices, change orders, 
payments or claims submitted by the Contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution 
of the Contract.  The Town’s authorized representative shall be afforded access, at reasonable 
times and places, to all of the Contractor’s records and personnel pursuant to the provisions of 
this section throughout the term of this Contract and for a period of three years after last or final 
payment. 

 
4.7.2 Contractor shall require all subcontractors, insurance agents, and material 

suppliers to comply with the provisions of this section by insertion of the requirements hereof in 
a written Contract between Contractor and such subcontractors, insurance agents, and material 
suppliers.   
 

4.7.3 If an audit in accordance with this section, discloses overcharges, of any 
nature, by the Contractor to the Town in excess of one percent (1%) of the monthly billings, the 
actual cost of the Town’s audit shall be reimbursed to the Town by the Contractor.  Any 
adjustments and/or payments which must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of 
the Contractor’s invoices and/or records shall be made within a reasonable amount of time, not 
to exceed thirty (30) days from presentation of Town’s findings to Contractor. 
 

4.8 Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event either party brings any action for any relief, 
declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Contract, or on account of any breach or default 
hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the other party reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and reasonable costs and expenses, determined by the court sitting without a jury, which 
shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be enforceable 
whether or not such action is prosecuted to judgment. 
 

4.9 Ineligible Bidder.  The preparer of specifications is not eligible to submit a bid or 
proposal on the solicitation for which they prepared the specification, nor is the preparer eligible 
to supply any product to a bidder or Contractor on the solicitation for which they prepared the 
specification. 
 

4.10 Independent Contractor. 
 

4.10.1 The Services Contractor provides under the terms of this Contract to the 
Town are that of an Independent Contractor, not an employee, or agent of the Town.  The Town 
will report the value paid for these services each year to the Internal Revenue Service (I.R.S.) 
using Form 1099. 
 

4.10.2 Town shall not withhold income tax as a deduction from Contractual 
payments.  As a result of this, Contractor may be subject to I.R.S. provisions for payment of 



5 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

estimated income tax.  Contractor is responsible for consulting the local I.R.S. office for current 
information on estimated tax requirements. 

4.11 Conflict of Interest.  The Town may cancel any Contract or agreement, without 
penalty or obligation, if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, 
drafting or creating the Contract on behalf of the Town’s departments or agencies is, at any time 
while the Contract or any extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of any other party 
to the Contract in any capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Contract with respect to 
the subject matter of the Contract.  The cancellation shall be effective when written notice from 
the Town is received by all other parties to the Contract, unless the notice specifies a later time 

(A.R.S. § 38-511).  
 
4.12 Compliance with Federal and State Laws. 

 
4.12.1 The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug 
Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
4.12.2 Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to 

the Town that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are 
Contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate 
to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
4.12.3 A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including 
termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 
 

4.12.4 The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 
Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or 
Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any such inspections. 
 

4.12.5 The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 
employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with 
Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any 
random verifications performed. 
 

4.12.6 Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 
materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor 
establishes that it has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 
section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify 
requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 
 

4.12.7 The provisions of this Section must be included in any Contract the 
Contractor enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this 
Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State 
of Arizona by a Contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of 
any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 



6 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

4.12.8 The provisions of this Section 4.12 must be included in any Contract the 
Contractor enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this 
Contract or any subcontract.  
 

4.13 Notices.  All notices or demands required to be given pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract shall be given to the other party in writing, delivered by hand or registered or certified 
mail, at the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as the parties may substitute by 
written notice given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. 
 
In the case of Contractor: Rottweiler Controls LLC 
    Jill Gontarz, Owner 
    3548 E. Mesquite Street 
    Gilbert, AZ  85296 
    (480) 241-0016 
 
In the case of Town: Town of Florence 
    775 N, Main Street 
    PO Box 2670 
    Florence, AZ 85132 
    Attn:  Town Manager 
 
Notices shall be deemed received on date delivered, if delivered by hand, or on the delivery date 
indicated on receipt if delivered by certified or registered mail. 
 

4.14 Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failures in 
performance resulting from acts beyond their control.  Such acts shall include, but not be limited 
to, acts of God, riots, acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations imposed after the fact, 
fire, communication line failures, power failures, or earthquakes. 
 

4.15 Taxes.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for any and all tax obligations which 
may result out of the Contractor’s performance of this Contract.  The Town shall have no 
obligation to pay any amounts for taxes, of any type, incurred by the Contractor. 
 

4.16 Advertising.  No advertising or publicity concerning the Town using the 
Contractor’s services shall be undertaken without prior written approval of such advertising or 
publicity by the Town Contract Administrator. Written approval is required until such time as the 
project is complete or any adjudication of claims relating to the services provided herein is 
complete, whichever occurs later. 

 
4.17 Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, and 

each originally executed duplicate counterpart of this Contract shall be deemed to possess the 
full force and effect of the original. 

 
4.18 Captions.  The captions used in this Contract are solely for the convenience of the 

parties, do not constitute a part of this Contract and are not to be used to construe or interpret 
this Contract. 

 
4.19 Subcontractors.  During the performance of the Contract, the Contractor may 

engage such additional Subcontractors as may be required for the timely completion of this 



7 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

Contract.  The addition of any Subcontractors shall be subject to the prior approval of the Town.  
In the event of subcontracting, the sole responsibility for fulfillment of all terms and conditions of 
this Contract rests with the Contractor. The Town acknowledges the sub-consultant(s) listed in 
Exhibit A and consents to the use of that sub-consultant. 
 

4.20 Indemnification.   
 

4.20.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor, its successors, assigns 
and guarantors, shall indemnify, defend, hold harmless Town of Florence, its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all allegations, 
demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, losses, expenses, including but not 
limited to damages for personal injury or personal property damage, attorney fees, court costs, 
and the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expense, related to, 
arising from or out of, or resulting from any negligent or intentional actions, acts, errors, mistakes 
or omissions caused in whole or part by Contractor relating to work or services in the 
performance of this Contract, including but not limited to, any Subcontractor or anyone directly 
or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and 
any injury or damages claimed by any of Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s employees.  

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Town of Florence, its successors, assigns 

and guarantors, shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, its agents, Representatives, 
officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all allegations, demands, 
proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, loses, expenses, including but not limited to, 
reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings, and all  
claim adjusting and handling expenses, related to, arising from or out of, resulting from any 
negligent or intentional actions, acts, errors, mistakes or omissions caused by the Town of 
Florence relating to work or services in the performance of this Contract.  

 
4.20.2 Insurance provisions set forth in this Contract are separate and independent 

from the indemnity provisions of this section and shall not be construed in any way to limit the 
scope and magnitude of the indemnity provisions.  The indemnity provisions of this sections shall 
not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude and applicability of the insurance 
provisions. 
 

4.21 Changes in the Work. 
 

4.21.1 The Town may at any time, as the need arises, order changes within the 
scope of the work without invalidating the Contract.  If such changes increase or decrease the 
amount due under the Contract documents, or in the time required for performance of the work, 
an equitable adjustment shall be authorized by written Change Order. 

 
4.21.2 The Town will execute a formal Change Order based on detailed written 

quotations from the Contractor for work related changes and/or a time of completion variance.  
All Change Orders are subject to the prior written approval by the Town. 

 
4.21.3 Contract Change Orders are subject to the Rules and Procedures within the 

Town’s Procurement Code. 
 



8 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

4.22 Co-op Use of Contract.  The Town and Contractor agree that this Contract is 
entered into by the parties, as a  cooperative purchase pursuant to the City of Buckeye 
Professional Services Contract dated June 9, 2017 between the City of Buckeye and Rottweiler 
Controls LLC,  and Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/Contract 
documents issued by the City of Buckeye for the Services(“Master Contract”) is in full force and 
effect and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this 
Contract.    

 
4.23 Alternative Dispute Resolution.  If a dispute arises between the parties relating to 

this Contract, the parties agree to use the following procedure prior to either party pursuing other 
available remedies: 

4.23.1 A meeting shall be held promptly between the parties, attended by 
individuals with decision-making authority regarding the dispute, to attempt in good faith to 
negotiate a resolution of the dispute. 

 
4.23.2 If, within 30 days after such meeting, the parties have not succeeded in 

negotiating a resolution of the dispute, they will jointly appoint a mutually acceptable neutral 
person not affiliated with either of the parties (the “neutral”), seeking assistance in such regard 
if they have been unable to agree upon such appointment within 40 days from the initial meeting.  
The fees of the neutral shall be shared equally by the parties. 

 
4.23.3 In consultation with the neutral, the parties will select or devise an 

alternative dispute resolution procedure (“ADR”) by which they will attempt to resolve the 
dispute, and a time and place for the ADR to be held, with the neutral making the decision as to 
the procedure, and/or place and time (but unless circumstances require otherwise, not later than 
60 days after selection of the neutral) if the parties have been unable to agree on any of such 
matters within 20 days after initial consultation with the neutral. 

 
4.23.4. The parties agree to participate in good faith in the ADR to its 

conclusion as designated by the neutral.  If the parties are not successful in resolving the dispute 
through the ADR, then the parties may agree to submit the matter to binding arbitration or a 
private adjudicator, or either party may seek an adjudicated resolution through the appropriate 
court. 
 
 4.24 Town Provided Information and Services. The Town shall furnish the Contractor 
available studies, reports and other data pertinent to the Contractor's services; obtain or 
authorize the Contractor to obtain or provide additional reports and data as required; furnish to 
the Contractor services of others required for the performance of the Contractor's services 
hereunder, and the Contractor shall be entitled to use and rely upon all such information and 
services provided by the Town  or others in performing the Contractor's Services under this 
Agreement. 
 
 4.25 Estimates and Projections. In providing opinions of cost, financial analyses, 
economic feasibility projections, and schedules for potential projects, the Contractor has no 
control over cost or price of labor and material; unknown or latent conditions of existing 
equipment or structures that may affect operation and maintenance costs; competitive bidding 
procedures and market conditions; time or quality of performance of third parties; quality, type, 
management, or direction of operating personnel; and other economic and operational factors 
that may materially affect the ultimate project cost or schedule. Therefore, the Contractor makes 



9 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

no warranty that the Town’s actual project costs, financial aspects, economic feasibility, or 
schedules will not vary from the Contractor’s opinions, analyses, projections, or estimates. 
 
 4.26 Access. The Town shall arrange for access to and make all provisions for the 
Contractor to enter upon public and private property as required for the Contractor to perform 
Services hereunder. 
 
 4.27 Third Parties. The services to be performed by the Contractor are intended solely 
for the benefit of the Town. No person or entity not a signatory to this Agreement shall be entitled 
to rely on the Contractor's performance of its services hereunder, and no right to assert a claim 
against the Contractor by assignment of indemnity rights or otherwise shall accrue to a third 
party as a result of this Contract or the performance of the Contractor's Services hereunder. 
 
5.0 INSURANCE 
 

5.1. General.  Contractor agrees to comply with all Town ordinances and state and 
federal laws and regulations.  Without limiting any obligations or liabilities of Contractor, 
Contractor shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter stipulated minimum 
insurance with insurance companies duly licensed by the State of Arizona (admitted insurer) 
with an AM Best, Inc. rating of B ++ 6 or above or an equivalent qualified unlicensed insurer by 
the State of Arizona (non-admitted insurer) with policies and forms satisfactory to Town of 
Florence. Failure to maintain insurance as specified may result in termination of this Contract at 
Town of Florence’s option.  The Contractor is primarily responsible for the risk management if 
its work under this Contract, including but not limited to obtaining and maintaining the required 
insurance and establishing and maintaining a reasonable risk control and safety program. Town 
reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during the Contract.  The 
Contractor shall require any and all subcontractors to maintain insurance as required herein 
naming the Town and Contractor as “Additional Insured” on all insurance policies, except 
Worker’s Compensation, and this shall be reflected on the Certificate of Insurance.  The 
Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to all available sources.  
Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
Indemnification provision of this Contract. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor waives all 
rights of subrogation or similar rights against Town, its representatives, agents, and employees.  
All insurance policies, except Workers’ Compensation, required by this Contract, and self-
insured retention or deductible portions, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for 
claims arising out of performance of this Contract, Town of Florence, its mayor and 
councilmembers, agents, representatives, offices, directors, officials and employees as 
Additional Insureds.  The Town reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance 
policies and endorsements required by this Contract at any time. Failure to maintain the 
insurance policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of Contract.  
 

5.2 No Representation of Coverage Adequacy.  By requiring insurance herein, Town 
of Florence does not represent that coverage and limits will be adequate to protect Contractor.  
Town of Florence reserves the right to review any and all of the insurance policies and/or 
endorsements cited in this Contract but has no obligation to do so.  Failure to demand such 
evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements set forth in this Contract or failure 
to identify any insurance deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or 



10 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

deemed a waiver of, its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the 
performance of this Contract. 
 

5.3 Coverage Term.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and 
effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of this Contract is 
satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the Town of Florence, unless 
specified otherwise in this Contract. 

 
5.4 Policy Deductibles and or Self Insured Retentions.  The policies set forth in these 

requirements may provide coverage which contain deductibles or self-insured retention 
amounts.  Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with respect to the 
policy limits provided to Town of Florence.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for any such 
deductible or self-insured retention amount.  Town of Florence, at its option, may require 
Contractor to secure payment of such deductible or self-insured retention by a surety bond or 
irrevocable and unconditional Letter of Credit. 

 
5.5 Use of Subcontractors.  If any work under this Contract is sub-contracted in any 

way, Contractor shall execute written agreement with Subcontractor containing the same 
Indemnification Clause and Insurance Requirements set forth herein protecting Town of 
Florence and Contractor.  Contractor shall be responsible for executing the agreement with 
Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance verifying the insurance requirements. 

 
5.6 Evidence of Insurance.  Prior to commencing any work or Services under this 

Contract, Contractor shall furnish Town of Florence with Certificate(s) of Insurance, or formal 
endorsements as required by this Contract, issued by Contractor’s insurer(s) as evidence that 
policies are placed with acceptable insurers as specified herein and provide the required 
coverage’s, conditions, and limits of coverage and that such coverage and provisions are in full 
force and effect. 

 
5.7 Required Coverage. 

 
5.7.1 Commercial General Liability.  Contractor shall maintain “occurrence” form 

Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations Annual Aggregate, and 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, independent Contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury and 
advertising injury.  Coverage under the policy will be at least as broad as Insurance limited to, 
separation of insureds clause.  If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of 
this paragraph, such Excess insurance shall be “follow form” equal or broader to coverage scope 
then underlying. 
 

5.7.2 Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain Workers 
Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having 
jurisdiction of Contractor’s employees engaged in the performance of work or Services under 
this Contract and shall also maintain Employers Liability Insurance of not less than $100,000 for 
each accident, $100,000 disease for each employee and $250,000 disease policy limit. 

 



11 
Town of Florence / Rottweiler Controls LLC – Professional Services Contract 

5.7.3   Commercial Auto Coverage.  Auto Liability limits of not less than $1,000,000 
each accident, combined Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability insurance. Certificate to 
reflect coverage for “Any Auto” or “All Owned, Scheduled, Hired and Non-Owned”.  
 
 
6.0 SEVERABILITY AND AUTHORITY 
 

6.1 Severability.  If any term or provision of this Contract shall be found to be illegal or 
unenforceable, then notwithstanding such illegality or unenforceability, this Contract shall remain 
in full force and effect and such term or provision shall be deemed to be deleted. 

 
6.2 Authority.  Each party hereby warrants and represents that it has full power and 

authority to enter into and perform this Contract, and that the person signing on behalf of each 
has been properly authorized and empowered to enter this Contract.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by it. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Florence by its Mayor, Tara Walter has hereunto 
subscribed her name this 5 day of August, 2019. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE      
 
 
By:        By:        
      Tara Walter, Mayor 
       Name:        
 
       Its:        
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
 
 
By:        By:        
      Contractor  
       Name:        
 
       Its:        
 
Approved as Form: 
 
 
         
Clifford L. Mattice, Florence Town Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT "1"



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 7i. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes 
                                     Community Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with 
the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. for access to the Poston Butte 
Preserve 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Copper Basin Railway Inc. Agreement  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with the Copper Basin 
Railway, Inc. for access to the Poston Butte Preserve. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town Staff negotiated a new agreement with the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. (CBRY) to 
maintain access to the Poston Butte Preserve.  The 160-acre preserve is Town property 
through a Bureau of the Land Management (BLM) patent, or restricted deed, which 
limits the use of the land for recreation or historic monument purposes.  The preserve is 
essentially landlocked, with leased BLM land to the east and west and private land to 
the north, along with a small private parcel on the southwest side.  The southern border 
is the railroad, which is also private land.  The access point along Hunt Highway is the 
long-accepted point of entry, although the Town has only had an official agreement with 
CBRY since 2017.   
 
That initial agreement is scheduled to expire on October 2, 2019.  The new agreement 
would take effect on October 3, 2019 and be in place for up to another two years.  The 
access agreement requires the Town to indemnify CBRY and accept liability associated 
with the public’s use of the access point. 
 
 



Subject:  Copper Basin Railway Inc. Agreement  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

CBRY could eliminate or restrict access through the railroad underpass, denying the 
public access to the hiking trails and Town amenity.  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town would have a one-year agreement, with automatic one-year renewals, with 
CBRY for access, allowing the Town time to pursue other long-term options for access 
and future development. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$1,800 annually for additional railroad protective liability, which is included in risk 
management budget annually. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. 



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

NON-EXCLUSIVE 
REVOCABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
1.  PARTIES: 

 
This Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement (the “Agreement” or “License”), is 
entered into the   19th   day of   August  , 2019 (the “Effective Date”), between the TOWN 
OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Licensee” or “Town”), and the 
COPPER BASIN RAILWAY, INC, a(n) Arizona corporation (the “Licensor” or “Railway”). 
The Town and Railway are sometimes referred to in this License collectively as the 
“Parties” and each individually as a “Party”. 
 

2.  RECITALS: 
 

2.1. Town and Railway have discussed the joint benefits to be derived by 
permitting the Town and members of the public to share in the use and maintenance of 
the railroad underpass path and its adjacent parking (the “Licensed Area” or “Property”), 
and the Parties agree that it is in their mutual best interest to enter into this Agreement 
outlining the terms and expectations for the use and maintenance of the Property by the 
Town and members of the public;  

 
2.2. Licensor, as owner and operator of the Property, including the 

railroad underpass structure, has control of Licensor’s area located on Hunt Highway at 
approximately milepost 957.20, Florence, Arizona 85132 (the “Property”). Licensee 
desires to license from Licensor, on a revocable, non-exclusive basis, the Property 
depicted in Exhibit “A” for the purposes of allowing and inviting the general public to 
traverse under the railway underpass in order to gain pedestrian and bicycle access to 
trails, to allow vehicle parking adjacent to the path, and to allow appropriate signage 
related to such use; 

 
2.3. Licensee acknowledges and agrees to provide maintenance and 

general upkeep for the path and adjacent parking area located on the Licensed Area, 
including appropriate signage; 

 
2.4. Further, Railway understands and agrees that the Licensee may 

utilize Department of Corrections inmate labor for such maintenance tasks described 
herein.  Licensee understands and agrees that the Railway will maintain management 
oversight over the Property, and Licensee agrees to cooperate with the Railway to 
achieve such goals.  Licensee understands and agrees that the Railway will visit, inspect, 
and monitor all or any portions of the Property to ensure its rail operations continue 
unobstructed by the Use; 

 
2.5. Licensor is willing to grant Licensee and Licensee is willing to accept 

a revocable, non-exclusive, License to use the Licensed Area on the terms and subject 
to the conditions set forth below.  

 



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 
3. AGREEMENTS: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and representations, covenants 
and mutual promises herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

3.1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The foregoing Recitals are 
incorporated as agreements of the Parties. 

 
3.2.  GRANT OF NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE. Licensor hereby grants 

Licensee a non-exclusive license to use the Licensed Area for the purposes of allowing 
and inviting the Town and the general public to traverse under the railway underpass in 
order to gain pedestrian and bicycle access to trails, to allow vehicle parking adjacent to 
the path, and to allow appropriate signage related to such use subject to the terms and 
conditions of this License.   

 
3.3.  USE OF LICENSED AREA AND LICENSEE RESPONSIBILITIES. 

 
3.3.1. Use. Licensee shall use the Licensed Area only for the 

purposes of allowing and inviting the Town and the general public to traverse under the 
railway underpass in order to gain pedestrian and bicycle access to trails, to allow vehicle 
parking adjacent to the path, and to allow appropriate signage related to such use subject 
to the terms and conditions of this License (the “Use”). 

 
3.3.2. Compliance with Laws. Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, 

shall comply with all laws, ordinances, orders and regulations of any governmental 
authority, including those adopted by the Licensor, whether now or hereafter in effect, 
with respect to the use of the Licensed Area for the Use. 

 
3.3.3. Licensor’s responsibilities shall include:  
 

1. Maintain and operate the Property. 
2. Permit the Licensee to erect signage explaining to the 

public the rules for use of the Licensed Area.  
 

3.3.4. Town’s responsibilities at the Property shall include: 
 

1. The Town shall maintain the path and adjacent parking 
area and keep the Licensed Area free of garbage and 
debris.  

2. The Town will provide the signage it deems necessary to 
give the public notice of the applicable rules for the Use. 

3. The Town shall have the right to enter the Licensed Area 
at any time to maintain the path and parking area, erect 



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

signage and make repairs or improvements consistent 
with this License. 

4. Licensee will reimburse the Railroad for any taxes levied 
upon Licensees’ improvements and/or all other expenses 
arising from this License. 

 
3.4. TERM/USE PERIOD. 

 
3.4.1. Term. Except as provided in this License, the term of this 

License shall commence on the October 3, 2019 and shall run through October 2, 2020, 
unless earlier terminated (the “Initial Term”).  This License shall be automatically renewed 
for a term of one (1) year at the end of the then current term unless any Party provides 
written notice to the other Parties of its intent not to renew the License at least sixty (60) 
days prior to the end of the then current term (the “Renewal Terms”).  

 
3.4.2. Early Termination by Licensee or Licensor. Any provision of 

Subparagraph 3.4.1. to the contrary notwithstanding, Licensor or Licensee has the right 
to terminate, suspend or abandon this Agreement for cause or convenience.  Licensor or 
Licensee may terminate this Agreement, or any part thereof for its sole convenience, at 
any time without penalty or recourse.   

 
3.4.3. Days/Hours of Use. Licensee shall use and occupy the 

Licensed Area for the Use as a trailhead and parking area as posted. (the “Use Period”). 
 

3.5 FEE. In consideration for this License, the Licensee provides a 
beneficial service to the Railway and the community and therefore, Licensee is required 
to pay $10.00 to Licensor as a one-time fee for use of the Licensed Area. 
 

3.6. RULES AND REGULATIONS. Licensee shall use and maintain the 
Licensed Area in accordance with Licensor’s rules and regulations. 

 
3.7. RESERVED.  
 
3.8.  INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE.  

 
3.8.1. Licensee, recognizing that Railroad’s operation and any use 

of Railroad property, tracks and Right of Way (ROW) involves increased risks, expressly 
assumes and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Railroad from all risk, loss, costs, 
damages, claims, actions, cause and causes of action, suits, demands or expense 
(including a reasonable attorney’s fee) (“Damages”) to, and waives any right to ask or 
demand Damages for, Property of Licensee or any part thereof, at Location of 
Underpass/Pathway including loss of or interference with service thereof, including; (a) 
any fault, failure or negligence of Railroad construction, operation or maintenance of the 
Underpass or in rail operations through the Underpass/Pathway or otherwise; and/or (b) 
any fire, regardless of source or origin thereof.  For this Section, the term “Property of 



 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Licensee” shall include property of third parties situated or placed upon Railroad’s ROW 
by Licensee or by such third parties with the consent of or acknowledgement of Licensee.  
 

3.8.2. Licensee will protect, indemnify and hold harmless the 
Railroad its servants, agents, employees, lessees, successors and assigns against and 
from any and all loss, damages, suits, judgments, claims and expenses of every kind, 
arising from or growing out of, directly or indirectly, (a) the construction, existence, use, 
condition, maintenance or repair of said Underpass/Pathway; (b) injury to or death of any 
person whomsoever may enter upon or use said Underpass/Pathway; (c) loss of or 
damage to property in the possession of any such person while on or about said 
Underpass/Pathway; (d) any accident or collision at the point of ingress/egress; or (e) the 
violation by Licensee, or by any of its invitees, of any of the terms or provisions of this 
License/Agreement. 

 
3.8.3. Licensee and those providing service to the Licensee shall 

procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement General Liability Insurance which 
will insure the indemnity undertakings herein set forth.  Such insurance shall provide 
coverage of at least $500,000.00 dollars for bodily injury per person and $1,000,000.00 
aggregate bodily injury per accident, and $500,000.00 for property damage.  Licensee 
shall furnish the Railroad with a certificate evidencing that such insurance is in full force 
and effect and that the same will not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days advance 
written notice by the insurance carrier to the Railroad.  Licensee will provide certificate of 
insurance and an endorsement showing Railroad as additional insured with waiver of 
subrogation. 

 
3.9.  REPAIRS TO LICENSED AREA. 

 
3.9.1. Licensee’s Repairs. Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall 

promptly repair any damage to the Property resulting from the Use. 
 
3.9.2. The Walk Through. At least 48 hours prior to the end of the 

Term, Licensor and Licensee shall conduct a joint “walk through” of the Property with the 
object of preparing a jointly prepared “punch list” of those items, if any, which are to be 
repaired by Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, resulting from the Use (the “Repair Items”). 

 
3.9.3. Survival. Licensee’s obligations under this Paragraph 3.9 shall 

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License and, in this regard at a mutually 
agreed upon time not to exceed 5 days after the termination or expiration of the Term, 
Licensee shall cause the Repair Items to be completed to Licensor’s reasonable 
satisfaction by a contractor licensed in Arizona and acceptable to Licensor in Licensor’s 
reasonable discretion. 
 

3.10. RESERVED. 
 
3.11. Acceptance of Licensed Area. Licensee has examined the Licensed Area, and 
Licensee hereby accepts the Licensed Area “as is” and “where is”. 



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 
3.12.  DEFAULTS/REMEDIES.   

 
3.12.1. Events of Default. An Event of Default by Licensee shall exist 

upon the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the nonpayment of any sums on its stated 
date due; or, (ii) the nonperformance by Licensee of any other covenant or condition set 
forth herein, which shall not be fully cured, within 14 days after Licensee’s receipt of 
written notice from Licensor of Licensee’s nonperformance. 

 
3.12.2. Remedies. Upon Licensee’s default, Licensor may, at 

Licensor’s option: 
 

3.12.2.1. immediately terminate this License; 
 
3.12.2.2. re-enter and take exclusive possession of Licensed 

Area by legal proceeding or otherwise; 
 
3.12.2.3. in the event of any re-entry, Licensor may remove 

all persons from Licensed Area and Licensor may remove all of Licensee’s property 
located on or about the Licensed Area; 

 
3.12.2.4. re-entry of the Licensed Area shall be construed as 

an election by Licensor to terminate this License; 
 

 
3.13. ENTRY RESERVED BY LICENSOR. Licensor and Licensor’s 

agents, at all reasonable times during the Term, may enter the Licensed Area. Licensor 
will attempt to minimize any interference with Licensee’s use of the Licensed Area. 
Licensee shall not interfere in any way with the Licensor’s entry on the Licensed Area. 
 

3.14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

3.14.1. RESERVED.  
 
3.14.2. Surrender of Licensed Area. Upon the expiration or early 

termination of this License, Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall surrender the 
Licensed Area to Licensor in good condition, free and clear of all garbage and debris. 

 
3.14.3. Assignment. 

 
3.14.3.1. This License may not be assigned or sublet by 

Licensee without prior written consent of the Licensor, to be given or withheld in Licensor’s 
sole discretion. 

 
3.14.3.2. Licensor may assign any or all of Licensor’s rights or 

obligations under this License without seeking or obtaining Licensee’s consent hereto. 



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 
3.14.4. Reserved. 
3.14.5. Notices. Except as otherwise required by law, all notices to 

be given or required under this License shall be in writing and shall be given by personal 
delivery, or e-mail or by deposit in the United States mail, certified or registered, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or any express or overnight delivery service e.g., 
Federal Express service the locality to which addressed, delivery charges prepaid 
addressed to the Parties at the addresses set forth below, or at such other address as a 
Party may designate in writing pursuant hereto. Notice shall be deemed to have been 
given on the date on which notice is delivered, if notice is given by personal delivery or e-
mail, and on the date of deposit in the mail, if mailed or deposited with the overnight 
carrier, if used. Notice shall be deemed to have been received on the date on which the 
notice is received, if notice is given by personal delivery or e-mail or overnight courier, 
and on the 2nd day following deposit in the mail, if notice is mailed: 
 
If to Licensee:    Town of Florence 
      Attn: Town Manager 
      P. O. Box 2670 
      775 N. Main Street 
      Florence, AZ 85132 
 
If to Licensor:    Copper Basin Railway, Inc. 
      Attn: Bobby Blake, General Superintendent 
      P.O. Drawer 
      Hayden, AZ 85135 
 

3.14.6. Additional Acts. The Parties agree to execute promptly such 
other documents and to perform such other acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry 
out the purpose and intent of this License. 

 
3.14.7. Governing Law/Jurisdiction/Venue. This License shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to conflict of laws and principles. Any action brought to 
interpret, enforce, or construe any provision of this License shall be commenced and 
maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for County of Pinal (or, as 
may be appropriate, in the Justice Courts of Pinal County, Arizona or in the United States 
District Court for the District of Arizona, if but only if, the Superior Court lacks or declines 
jurisdiction over such action). The Parties irrevocably consent to jurisdiction and venue in 
such courts for such purposes and agree not to seek transfer or removal of any action 
commenced in accordance with the terms of this paragraph. Should any dispute, 
misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms or provisions contained in this 
Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the Town, and Town shall determine the 
term or provision’s true intent and meaning. 

 
3.14.8. No Liens. Licensee shall not create or permit any liens to be 

placed of record against the Property. 



 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 
3.14.9. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this License. The 

time within which an act must be accomplished, shall be calculated by excluding the first 
day and including the last day. However, if this License requires any act to be done or 
action to be taken on a date which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, such act or 
action shall be deemed to have been validly done or taken if done or taken on the next 
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 

 
3.14.10. Incorporation by Reference. All Exhibits to this License are 

fully incorporated herein as though set forth at length herein. 
 
3.14.11. Severability. If any provision of this License is determined 

to be unenforceable based on a final, non-appealable order of the Court, the remaining 
provisions shall nevertheless be kept in effect.  

 
3.14.12. No Conflicts of Interest. Licensor understands and agrees 

that pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 38-511, Licensee may terminate this License 
within 3 years after execution of the License without penalty or further obligation if any 
person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, draft or creating the 
License on behalf of the Licensee is or becomes, at any time while the License or an 
extension of the License is in effect, an employee of or a consultant to any other party to 
this License with respect to the subject matter of the License. 

 
3.14.13. Construction. The terms and provisions of this License 

represent the results of negotiations between the Parties, each of which has been, or has 
had the opportunity to be, represented by counsel of its own choosing, and neither of 
which has acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic, or otherwise. 
Consequently, the terms and provisions of this License shall be incorporated and 
construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings. The Parties each 
hereby waive the application of any rule of law which would otherwise be applicable in 
connection with the interpretation and construction of this License and that ambiguities or 
conflicting terms or provisions contained in this License shall be interpreted or construed 
against the Party whose attorney prepared or drafted the executed License or any earlier 
draft of the same or any of its exhibits. 

 
3.14.14. Waiver. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

deemed to have been waived by any act or knowledge of any party or its agents or 
employees, but only by a specific written waiver signed by an authorized officer of such 
Party and delivered to the other Party. 

 
3.14.15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or 

more counterparts, and each originally executed duplicate counterpart of this Agreement 
shall be deemed to possess the full force and effect of the original, but all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Parties.  The Parties 
agree that this Agreement may be transmitted between them via facsimile or so called 
“PDF” signature.  The Parties intend that faxed or “PDF” signatures constitute original 



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

signatures and that a fully collated agreement containing the signatures (original, faxed 
or PDF) of the Parties is binding upon the Parties.   

 
3.14.16. Licenses.  Licensee shall maintain in current status all 

Federal, State and local licenses and permits required for the Use during the Term. 
 
3.14.17. Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of 

Licensor and Licensee under this Agreement are not exclusive. 
 
3.14.18. Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the 

Licensor, by execution of this Agreement, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and 
agrees for the duration of this Agreement to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  





 

Page 10 of 10 
 

Exhibit “A”  
to Revocable Non-Exclusive License Agreement 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7j.  

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Pinal County Agreement for the placement, 
operation, and use of a CERT trailer at the Florence Fire Dept.

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Pinal County Agreement for CERT trailer   Meeting Date: August 19, 2019  
Page 1 of 2 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Property    Leadership and Governance   

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Recommend approval an Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County for the 
placement, operation, and use of a Community Emergency Response Team trailer at 
the Florence Fire Department. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Florence Fire Department operates a Community Emergency Response Team 
(“CERT”) to provide response and assistance in times of emergency.  Pinal County has 
purchased a number of trailers with supplies and equipment for emergency response 
and management and it has been determined that placement of a CERT trailer with the 
Florence Fire Department would provide a faster and more comprehensive response in 
the event of an emergency.  Florence wishes to take possession of, maintain and use 
the CERT Trailer.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town would not take possession of the CERT trailer and would not have this 
resource readily available during emergencies. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Town would take possession of the CERT trailer and would have this resource 
readily available during emergencies. 



Subject: Pinal County Agreement for CERT trailer   Meeting Date: August 19, 2019  
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Under the terms of this agreement, Pinal County will provide to Florence one CERT 
trailer with supplies and equipment at no cost to the Town.  In the event that the 
supplies and equipment are used during a CERT activation and response, the Pinal 
County Office of Emergency Management will replace and/or replenish any used 
supplies or equipment. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Agreement 



 

AGREEMENT FOR THE PLACEMENT 
OPERATION AND USE OF CERT TRAILERS 

Between 
PINAL COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made effective this ____ day of _______________, 2019, between 

Pinal County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, (hereinafter referred to as “Pinal”) 
and the Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as 
“Florence”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinal County is authorized by A.R.S. § 26-308A to purchase and distribute 

equipment, materials and supplies for emergency management purposes; and,  

 

WHEREAS, Florence operates a Community Emergency Response Team (“CERT”) to provide 

response and assistance in times of emergency; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Pinal County has purchased a number of trailers with supplies and equipment for 

emergency response and management (“CERT Trailers”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that placement of a CERT Trailer with Florence would 

provide a faster and more comprehensive response in the event of an emergency; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Florence wishes to take possession of, maintain and use the CERT Trailer as 

specified in this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between each and all of the signatories 

hereto as follows: 

 
1. The County will provide to Florence one CERT Trailer with the supplies and equipment 

listed in Appendix A at no cost to the Town.  The Town is not restricted from purchasing 
additional CERT Trailers and equipment with its own funds. 

2. Florence is responsible for the proper storage, use, and maintenance of the CERT Trailer 
during the term of this Agreement.  The CERT Trailer will be kept in a safe and secure 
area that is readily accessible to Florence.  The location of the CERT Trailer must be 
approved by the Pinal County Office of Emergency Management.  

 
3.        The CERT Trailer and contents listed in Appendix A remain the property of the County.   



 

4. A ball-hitch lock will be utilized on the CERT Trailer along with locks on each door of the 
trailer.  Keys will be maintained by the Department and the Pinal County Office of 
Emergency Management in a consistent manner so that 24 hour/7 day a week access is 
maintained. 

   
5. CERT Trailers may be used by Florence to assist neighboring areas during large-scale 

disasters or when other CERT teams are overwhelmed in their response efforts. 
   
6. Any vehicle used to tow the CERT Trailer must be of appropriate size and capacity to 

safely and securely tow the trailer.  
 
7. The CERT Trailer and equipment listed in Appendix A will be maintained by Florence for 

training and/or everyday use during the term of this Agreement.  In the event that the 
supplies and equipment are used during a CERT activation and response, the Pinal 
County Office of Emergency Management will replace and/or replenish any used supplies 
or equipment.  Semi-annual inspections by the County will be conducted to ensure the 
CERT Trailer’s suitability for emergency response efforts. 

 
8. The CERT Trailers are only to be used for CERT response to emergency and disaster 

incidents, CERT training and exercises, and to pick up or drop off CERT related supplies 
and equipment.  Under no circumstance will CERT Trailers by utilized for personal use or 
any personal matters.  Violation of this requirement may result in the removal of the CERT 
Trailer from Florence and/or criminal prosecution. 

  
9. In the event of an accident involving the CERT Trailer, Florence is to immediately report 

the incident to the relevant authorities and then contact the Pinal County Office of 
Emergency Management Duty Officer when it is safe to do so. 

 
10. Each Party (an “Indemnitor”) shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend each other Party 

(the “Indemnified Parties”) against all claims and lawsuits resulting from any claim, 
demand, cost or judgment made against the Indemnified Parties to the extent arising from 
any negligent, reckless or intentional act or omission by any of the Indemnitor’s 
employees, agents, or servants in connection with work or responsibilities performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. Each Party shall be solely responsible for the costs of repair 
of damage to the CERT Trailer or its contents caused by that Party. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, any liability incurred by the Department under or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be limited in amount to that is actually recoverable from the Department's 
insurance so that Department's insurer, and not the Department, actually pays, directly 
or indirectly, any and all liability amounts. The Parties agree they are not joint employers 
for the purpose of workers compensation coverage and that any person assigned by a 
Party to carrying out the obligations of the Agreement shall remain an employee of such 
Party.  



 

11. This Agreement shall be effective for a period of five (5) years and shall thereafter be 
automatically renewed for an additional period of five (5) years unless either party notifies 
the other in writing sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the existing term. 

  
12. During the term of this Agreement, Florence shall maintain insurance necessary to 

adequately cover the value of the CERT Trailer and its contents. 
 
13. Nothing in the provisions of this Agreement is intended to create duties or obligations to 

or rights in third parties not parties to this Agreement or affect the legal liability of any 
party to the Agreement by imposing any standard of care different from the standard of 
care imposed by law. 

 
14. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  The Agreement 

shall not be modified, altered or amended except through a written amendment signed by 
the parties.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
15. The requirements of A.R.S. § 38-511 apply to this Agreement.  The Parties may cancel 

this Agreement, without penalty or further obligation, if any person significantly involved 
in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating this Agreement on behalf of the 
Party is, at any time while this Agreement or any extension is in effect, an employee, 
agent or consultant of Party with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties executed this AGREEMENT the day and year first 

written above. 
 
Town of Florence 
 
 
By: ________________________________
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
Date: ______________________________ 
 
Attest: ____________________________ 
           Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form:  
 
_______________________________ 
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 

Pinal County, a political subdivision of the State 
of Arizona 
 
By: _________________________________ 
          Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
Attest: _______________________________ 
           Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________________
Kevin S. Costello, Deputy County Attorney – 
Civil Division

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7k.  

MEETING DATE:   August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Trenton Shaffer, IT Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Caselle Annual Maintenance (Finance Software) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     
Subject: Ratification of Caselle Contract   Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Ratification of the annual software renewal for the Caselle software, in an amount not to 
exceed $29,423. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Finance Department utilizes Caselle Connect as the sole financial software for all 
Town related finances.  The Finance Department budgets for this annual maintenance 
cost during the budget process.  All Town financial data is entered and tracked in the 
software, including but not limited to vendors, accounts payable, accounts receivable, 
revenues, general ledger, budget, payroll, timekeeping, improvement districts, service 
orders and utilities.  Caselle is critical to the Town’s financial operations. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
The Finance Department and Town staff will no longer be able to use Caselle as the 
Town’s financial software requiring immediate replacement and migration of all the 
Town’s existing data, historical data, reports and systems to a new solution.  Existing 
integrations from other software and payment gateways would need to be switched over 
to a new system. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
The Finance Department will continue to use Caselle as the Town’s financial software. 
 



Subject: Ratification of Caselle Contract   Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:    
 
The Finance Department has budgeted for the Caselle annual maintenance cost within 
the IT Department software budget #010-519-323 for Fiscal Year 2019/2020.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
 
Caselle Invoice 
Caselle Contract 
 



CASELLE, INC. INVOICE

95705
1656 S East Bay Blvd

Suite 100

Provo  UT  84606

Phone: 800-228-9851 Fax: 801-850-5001

Bill To: TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ

Customer No: 1291

Date: 6/01/2019

775 N MAIN ST
PO BOX 2670
FLORENCE  AZ  85232

Terms: Net 25th

Description Net Amount

Annual Support, Maintenance and Upgrades from 07/01/19 to 06/30/20

$30,972.00 less 5% discount (1,549.00) 29,423.00

Amount 29,423.00

Sales Tax

Total Amount 29,423.00

Interest at 1.5% per month will be charged on all accounts 30 days past due.

Cancellation of orders for software are subject to a cancellation fee of 10%, if cancelled within 30 days of order, or 25%, if cancelled within 60 days of order.  
Cancellations after 60 days will receive no credit.

Billing Inquiries:  801-850-5033



SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT AGREEMENT
SOFTWARE ASSURANCE)

CASELLE, INC.   TOWN of FLORENCE

1656 S. East Bay Blvd.     775 N. Main St.

Suite 100 and PO Box 2670

Provo, UT 84606 Florence, AZ 85232

Caselle")   You" or" Your")

agree that Caselle will provide You with unlimited telephone support on Caselle' s Software, for the purpose of answering
Your questions, giving usage instructions, providing updates and attempting to resolve problems on a best efforts basis,
for the consideration of$2,206.00 from January 1, 2017 through June 30, 2017. A discounted payment of$ 23, 160.00 will
be due thereafter, covering the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, thereafter the monthly amount will be

2,400.00, subject to the following terms and conditions:

Availability Payment

Support calls, covered by this Agreement, will be Payment terms shall be monthly in advance in U.S.     ( d) If any provision of this Agreement shall be
answered by Caselle' s Support Center, on the Dollars and shall not be considered received until adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the
designated support telephone number, between Your check clears the banking process. Any charges same shall in no way affect any other provision of
7: 30 am and 5: 30 pm Mountain Time, Monday or costs incurred in the collection of Your check,    this Agreement or the validity or the enforceability
through Friday, except holidays.     due to insufficient funds or any other reason, shall of this Agreement.

be reimbursed by You. Late payments shall be    ( e) All rights and remedies provided herein are

Coverage subject to extra charges. If payment is not received cumulative and are in addition to all other rights and

This Maintenance& Support Agreement covers all when due, Caselle reserves the right to suspend remedies available at law or equity.

Caselle application software licensed to You. It Your support until payment is received. Such    ( 1)In the event either party successfully takes legal

does not cover third party software or products.     suspension will not relieve You of payment action to enforce any provision of this Agreement

Support may, on a best efforts basis, be provided obligation. the non- prevailing party shall pay full costs and

for third party products, such as operating systems expenses of such action, including reasonable

and hardware_ Extended, after hours support may Limitations of Remedies attorneys fees.

be billable at Caselle' s regular hourly billing rate.      Your Remedies. Your sole and exclusive recourse    ( g) Any notice required by this Agreement shall be

and remedy for any loss, including your right to deemed to have been properly given if sent by

Charges recover damages shall be as set forth in this Section.     registered or certified mail to the address stated

Charges cover Software presently installed and Caselle' s liability with respect to any and all actual above or such other address as may be designated in

will remain fixed for one year providing You losses incurred during the Term ( or a Renewed writing by either party.ur

license no new applications. If You license new Term) of the Agreement shall not exceed the    ( h) The waiver of any breach or default of this

applications or change user levels, charges will be amount paid by You to Caselle at the last billing.    Agreement shall constitute a waiver only as to such

modified. Following the first year, charges may be You shall provide Caselle with documentation
particular breach or default and shall not constitute

increased, at Caselle' s discretion.    sufficient to demonstrate any expenses that You a waiver of any other breach or default.

actually incurred for which You seek damages from     ( i) Caselle shall not be held liable for delays in any

Caselle_  Caselle shall not be responsible for any
of its performance resulting from acts of God, war,

Updates civil disturbance, court order, labor dispute or any
Caselle will provideprogram u dates within the loss incurred by You from a claim that is settled or

P
compromised by You without the prior written

other cause beyond its control.

same operating system through normal software
releases at no extra charge. Additional software

approval of Caselle.
The signatures below indicate each party' s

packages,   add-on modules and custom Nv. Liability For Consequential Damages.  In no

acceptance of this Agreement.  Each party has
are not covered bythis Agreement event shall Caselle be liable to You or to any third

programming
and will be billed at current rates. Caselle will party for any indirect, special, punitive, incidental,     caused this agreement to be executed by its duly

determine which enhancements and/ or materials
consequential or compensatory losses, damages,     

authorized representative.

will be part of a software release, add- on package
claims or causes of action in excess of the amount

or custom programming,   
of compensation paid hereunder, including, but not CASELLE, INC.

limited to, those arising from toss of business or
profits or any other economic loss, even if Casette

Upgrades i/bv.,
was aware of the possibility of such damages,  g

Caselle will provide software upgrades within the y'

same operating system at no extra charge if this
General Name& Title: Alan S. Hutchings, President

agreement is still in effect at the time the upgrade    (

a) You shall not assign, sublicense or transfer any

cancelled or terminated

made availableand if

thisinatedfor a period of five ( 5}

agreement is not

of Your rights under this Agreement without the Date: December 22, 2016

years
prior written consent of Caselle.
b) This Agreement shall be governed and construed

Term and Termination
in accordance with the laws of the State of Utah. If

TOWN of FLOREN
any part of this Agreement violates applicable law

This Software Maintenance& Support Agreement that part of the Agreement shall be deemed to be
is effective for one year from the date of the amended to the extent necessary to comply with the
Agreement. Thereafter, it will automatically be law,      By:
renewed monthly, unless either party gives written     ( c) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement p.'
notice of termination, at least 30 days in advance.     between Caselle and You and supersedes any prior

it,     ' 0\ k vl LAIf the Agreement is terminated Caselle will honor agreement or understanding, written or oral relating
5 vcommitments to support You until the date of to support services. Except as provided herein, this Title:      

k30Nik       'N- Vi'\
termination.      Agreement may not be varied,  amended or

a-.
h

supplemented except in writing and properly Date:  f 11j
executed by both parties.   

l

Caselle, Inc.  Confidential



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7l.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Rey Sanchez, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Stale Account Balances-Finance Housekeeping 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Stale Account Balances  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorize the Finance Director to write off old account balances in the amount of 
$15,771.79. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Unclaimed property is a financial asset owned to an individual or business.  Property is 
considered unclaimed when there has been no owner contact for a specified period of 
time, usually between one and three years.  Town Standard Operating Procedure sets 
dormancy at three years.  
 
The purpose of the Unclaimed Property Unit is to efficiently and effectively collect, 
safeguard, and distribute unclaimed property to the rightful owners through prompt and 
courteous service, and to provide education to the public and holders about Unclaimed 
Property Laws.  
 
Unclaimed monies from various sources, such as unclaimed/uncashed checks, 
including customer deposits and payroll checks must be returned to the State of Arizona 
under the Escheatment Process. This is defined under State of Arizona Revised 
Statutes for Escheatment & Unclaimed Property Laws (Title 44, Chapter 3, Article 1).   

Due to the age of the accounts and the inability to identify the owners, we discussed this 
issue with our auditors, and they have given advice to write these old account balances 
off to a revenue line in our funds. 



Subject:  Stale Account Balances  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

The following balances will be written off as follows: 

Uncashed Payroll Checks  $2,514.23  General Fund 

Unclaimed Customer Refunds $2,118.78   General Fund 

Unclaimed Customer Refunds $11,138.78  Water Fund 

     $15,771.79  Total   

 
A new account has been established to track returned checks and is being monitored.  
If a claim is made during the holding period, the funds will be provided to claimant.   A 
person may log on to https://azdor.gov/unclaimed-property to view funds available.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Staff would leave the account balances on the books.   
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
We will include the entries on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 fiscal entries and start the new 
year with zero balances in the account. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
A total of $4,633.01 revenue will be recorded in the General Fund and $11,138.78 
recorded in the Water Fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7m.  

MEETING DATE:   August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance for Police Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Rey Sanchez, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Disposal of Assets 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Disposal of Assets                                                                                      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019  
Page 1 of 2 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to dispose of two Police vehicles that are no longer useful and have 
outlived their useful life.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The departments have vehicles, equipment, or small assets that are no longer needed 
or have outlived their useful life. Two Police vehicles have been deemed as eligible for 
disposal by our Fleet Maintenance Division for the following reasons: 
 

1.  They have been rendered non-serviceable by its normal use in Town operations 
and not cost effective to remain in service and the cost of repair would not result 
in a sufficiently usable asset. 

2. It has no further identifiable use in any Town operation and has not been 
requested for use by any other Town department. 

Item Year VIN# Location
Ford Crown Victoria 2003 2FAFP71W33X132411 Public Works Yard
Ford Crown Victoria 2005 2FAFP71W25X121449 Public Works Yard

 
The Town will dispose of the vehicles as per Policy and the proceeds will be returned to 
the Town for all assets as listed. 
 



Subject:  Disposal of Assets                                                                                      Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019  
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town will not dispose of the vehicles and will keep them on the insurance and 
eventually will sell them at a later date; at which time the value will have reduced. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:  
 
To sell the items at auction and credit the revenue account for the sales, reducing the 
inventory and the insurance costs of items no longer needed or utilized.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The total salvage value of the items is estimated at $1,000 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Titles and disposal forms with authorizations. 
 



















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 7n. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E.  
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Hill Brothers Chemical Co. Contract  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject: Hill Brothers Chemical Contract  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity     Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to contract with Hill Brothers Chemical Co., to provide water and 
wastewater treatment and pool chemicals, in an amount not to exceed $87,500.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town of Florence is requesting to enter into a contract with Hill Brothers Chemical 
Co., through the City of Mesa S.A.V.E. Cooperative Contract #2017128 (Expires 
6.30.2020) (on file with the Town Clerk’s Office), to provide water and wastewater 
treatment and pool chemicals in an amount not to exceed $87,500. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would delay in purchasing chemicals for the water and wastewater 
treatment as well as pool chemicals. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean quicker purchasing chemicals for the water and wastewater 
treatment as well as pool chemicals. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The cost to provide parts will not exceed $87,500.  



Subject: Hill Brothers Chemical Contract  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
 Approved Bid Tab 
 Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract 
 





1 | P a g e  
Town of Florence / Hill Brothers Chemical Co Cooperative Cover Contract 

 
  

   
 

 
    

  

 
 

 

  
     

   
 

  
  

 
 

    
 

 

 

   
  

 
   

  
 

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF CITY OF MESA – S.A.V.E. COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 
#2017128 FOR WATER/WATEWATER TREATMENT AND POOL CHEMICALS.

THIS  CONTRACT  (the  “Contract”)  is  made  and  entered  into  effective  as  of the 19th day  of August, 
2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and Hill Brothers 
Chemical Co. (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract Documents referred to and incorporated 
herein,  is  the  “resultant  contract” contemplated  in  the City  of  Mesa  S.A.V.E.  Cooperative  Contract 
#2017128 for Water/Wastewater Treatment and Pool Chemicals The Town and the Contractor are.
sometimes referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.

1. SCOPE  OF  WORK:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  the  Town all  necessary  labor,  material,
transportation  services  and  equipment  to provide  Water/Wastewater  Treatment  and  Pool 
Chemicals per contract specifications described in the attached scope of materials and services 
set forth in Exhibit “1” (the “Goods” or “Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Goods in 
accordance with the schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including 
all exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms 
and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, Submittals and 
Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish 
all of the equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide in a good and substantial 
manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Goods.

2. PRIORITY  OF  DOCUMENTS. It  is  further  expressly  agreed  by  and  between  the  Parties  that
should  there  be  any  conflict  between  the  terms  of  this  Contract,  the  Master  Contract,  or  the 
Contractor’s  Proposal,  then  this  Contract and the provisions  of  the  Contract  Documents shall 
control  and  nothing  herein  shall  be  considered  as  an  acceptance  of  the  terms  of  the  said 
Proposal conflicting herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein.

3. INCORPORATION: For  and  in  consideration  of  this  Contract  and  other  good  and  valuable
consideration,  the  Contractor  agrees  that  the master  cooperative  solicitation/contract City  of 
Mesa  S.A.V.E.  Cooperative  Contract  #2017128 for  Water/Wastewater  Treatment  and  Pool 
Chemicals Master Contract is  in  full  force  and  effect,  and  all terms  and conditions  of  the  
Master  Contract  are  incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement 
identical in terms between  the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: “City 
of Mesa”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence; the 
terms: “Maricopa County” shall be  deemed to be and refer to “Pinal County”; the terms: “Deputy 
Finance Director” shall be deemed  to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town Manager; 
and the terms: “Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Contractor

under this Contract.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract documents, which
by reference are incorporated herein:

 City of Mesa S.A.V.E. Cooperative Contract #2017128 for Water/Wastewater Treatment and
Pool Chemicals

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and
Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), and shall not exceed $87,500.00

 
 



2 | P a g e  
Town of Florence / Hill Brothers Chemical Co Cooperative Cover Contract 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through 
satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services 
and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to the terms of this Contract. 

 
7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 

A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with 
Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town that the 

Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually obligated to 
comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and 
A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 

Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s 

employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town 
in regard to any such inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records 

of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random verification 
performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached 

the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it has 
complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona 
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 

8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is to 
be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which clearly 
indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that progress.  
All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town.  All invoices are to 
be emailed to accountspayable@florenceaz.gov. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may terminate, 
suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s convenience without penalty 
or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed 



3 | P a g e  
Town of Florence / Hill Brothers Chemical Co Cooperative Cover Contract 

and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods 
and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

 
10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent 

contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not be 
deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal relationship 
with Town. 

 
11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to have 

been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, addressed as 
follows:   

 
Town: Town of Florence    Contractor: Hill Brothers Chemical Co  
Town Clerk       Rusty Mosher 
PO Box 2670      21639 N. 12th Avenue, Suite 100 
Florence AZ 85132; and     Phoenix, AZ 85027 
       (623) 879-9210 
       rusty@hillbrothers.com 
 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 
assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, 
from and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have 
resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the Goods or Services 
in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives 
and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of 
property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this Contract including any 
employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. 
In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from 
the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the requirements 
of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Services will be performed in a good, 
workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided 
by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods 
or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, 
Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless 
otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be new, unused, of most current 
manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless 
otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published specifications. 



4 | P a g e  
Town of Florence / Hill Brothers Chemical Co Cooperative Cover Contract 

 
   

 

 
 

 

 
 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy (the “Policy”)
govern  this  procurement  and  are  incorporated  as  part  of  this  Contract  by  this  reference. 
Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance with the Policy, including demonstrating 
its lawful presence in the United States.

15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in
accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference 
to  choice  of  law  or  conflicts  of  laws  principles  thereof. The  exclusive  forum  selected  for  any 
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, 
Arizona.

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT. Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution
of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective Date
set forth above.

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation
 

        
 
By: __________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk                                Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         

 





MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JULY 1, 2019, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED 
AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Walter, Anderson, Wall, Larsen, Cordes, Hughes 
Absent:  Hawkins 

     
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 1 of 33 

Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the 
jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
  
Ms. Pamela Giss, Launch Development Finance Advisors, on behalf of Merrill Ranch Owner’s 
Agent, LLC, stated that they are not in support of the reduction of the ad valorem tax for Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 because they have submitted a feasibility study and 
the reduction in that ad valorem will ensure that they will not recover their expenditures for 
reimbursable project costs.    
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1. 
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the property tax levy of the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1: Ordinance No. MRCFD1 116-19. 
 
Chairman Walter read Ordinance No. MRCFD1 116-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON 
EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 2 of 33 

AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2020.  
 
Chairman Walter opened the public hearing.   
 
Mr. Rey Sanchez, District Treasurer, stated that the public hearing is for a property tax lev for 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  He requested that the tax levy rate be set at 
$0.42 per $100 net assessed valuation (NAV).  This levy will bring in approximately $124,779 
which will be used for debt service.  He requested an additional $0.30 per $100 NAV for operations 
and maintenance.  This will bring in approximately $83,685.  The combined total levy, if approved, 
will be $0.72 per $100 NAV, and will bring in approximately $208,464. 
 
Chairman Walter inquired why there is a difference of $0.42 and the $3.25 which is what it has 
been in previous years.   
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that the $0.42 is for debt service.  There is no future bonding calculated in 
that total.  
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, District Manager, stated that a law passed that pertains to tax rates, how 
they are set, and what can be taxed based on actual funds that must be repaid.  The MRCFD No. 
1 has not gone to the streets for General Obligation Bond offering in many years.  The policy of 
the Board previously was to maintain the same rates in both Community Facilities Districts.  It 
became clear that they could not do that last year so there was an additional reduction in the rate 
per the State Law requirement.  The recommended reduction this year is to stay in compliance 
with this law.      
 
Mr. Mike Cafisio, Greenburg and Traurig, and Town of Florence Bond Attorney, stated that there 
is a law which does not allow you to levy for more that what is needed to pay debt service on 
outstanding debt, plus planned debt, plus 10% of the debt service due in the current year as a 
reserve cushion.  He stated that based on the current outstanding debt and no planned future 
debt, the $0.42 per $100 NAV is all that is needed.     
 
Ms. Pamela Giss, Launch Development Finance Advisors, on behalf of Merrill Ranch Owner’s 
Agent, LLC, reiterated that they are not in support of the reduction of the ad valorem tax for Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 because they have submitted a feasibility study and 
the reduction in that ad valorem will ensure that they will not be reimbursed for the expenditures 
they submitted under the feasibility study.       
 
Mr. Cafisio inquired what their ownership right in land and in the District is.  He inquired what 
standing they have to raise any sort of issue with taxes being levied.   
 
Ms. Giss stated that their clients, Merrill Ranch Owners Agent, LLC, has property in the District.  
 
Mr. Cafisio inquired if she was their attorney, speaking on their behalf.   
 
Ms. Giss stated that she is representing them as one of their financial advisors.   
 
Mr. Cafisio inquired if she had written authority to speak on their behalf.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 3 of 33 

 
Ms. Giss stated that she has authority to be present and speak on their behalf.  It is her 
understanding that the Merrill Ranch Owner’s Agents, LLC, still owns property, and her 
understanding from them that it is in the District.  
 
Mr. Cafisio stated that it is not correct.  The Merrill Ranch Owner’s Agents, LLC does not own 
land, and there are other entities that are related that own land.   
 
Chairman Walter asked if it is correct that the Merrill Ranch Owner’s Agents, LLC does not own 
land.  
 
Mr. Cafisio responded that it is correct, according to the last title report that they saw.  
 
Chairman Walter closed the public hearing.  
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the proposed final budget for Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 and possible adoption of Resolution No. 
MRCFD1 140-19. 
 
Chairman Walter read Resolution No. MRCFD1 140-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020.  
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that the budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 is estimated to be $3,899,607 in 
expenditure for Capital Improvements, Debt Service and Administrative costs.   
 
Boardmember Cordes inquired if the HOA fees are to be reflected in the budget.  
 
Mr. Sanchez responded that the HOA fees are not part of the Community Facilities District.  
 
Chairman Walter opened the public hearing.  
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the CFD is a separate quasi-governmental entity that is specifically 
utilized to finance infrastructure.  Rates are set for the quasi-governmental entity to pay back debt 
and the budget itself provides for the funds to operate that district on an annual basis.  
 
Chairman Walter closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Vice-Chairman Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. MRCFD1 140-19. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 
October 1, 2018 and April 15, 2019 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Vice-Chairman Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 October 1, 2018 and April 15, 2019 
Special Meeting minutes.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 4 of 33 

ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to adjourn 
from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1. 
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the property tax levy of the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 2: Ordinance No. MRCFD2 216-19. 
 
Chairman Walter read Ordinance No. MRCFD2 216-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON 
EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2020.  
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that the request is for the tax levy to be set at $3.25 per $100 of Net Assessed 
Valuation (NAV).  The levy will bring in approximately $698,767 and the funds will be used for 
debt service.  The request also includes an ad valorem levy for operations and maintenance at 
$0.30 per $100 NAV or $64,501.  The total combined levy is $3.55 per $100 NAV or $763,268. 
 
Chairman Walter stated that the ad valorem is that same as prior years.  
 
Chairman Walter opened the public hearing.   
 
Boardmember Wall stated that the levy is increasing by $0.27 over the previous year.  She stated 
that she noticed the difference on her tax bill.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the CFDs have always taxed at the maximum rate.  Last year, the District 
Treasurer determined that they could do a reduction based on the fact that no additional debt was 
being levied.  He stated that based on their financial analysis including the audit that was recently 
completed, it indicates that we need to continue to assess at the maximum rate. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there was one year where there was a reduction of $0.27 but the rate 
needs to increase to the maximum rate to cover the debt.    
 
Chairman Walter closed the public hearing.  
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the proposed final budget for Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 and possible adoption of Resolution No. 
MRCFD2 237-19. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 5 of 33 

Chairman Walter read Resolution No. MRCFD2 237-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020.  
 
Ms. Sanchez stated that the budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 is estimated to be $4,447,321 in 
expenditure for Capital Improvements, Debt Service and Administrative costs.  
 
Chairman Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comments, Chairman Walter 
closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to adopt 
Resolution No. MRCFD2 237-19. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 
October 1, 2018 and April 15, 2019 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 October 1, 2018 and April 15, 2019 
Special Meeting minutes.  
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments regarding the use of Fiscal Year 2019 
Community Development Block Grant Regional Account/State Special Project funds, as 
required for submission of the grant application.  
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that each year, the Department of Housing of 
Urban Development (HUD) gives communities a certain allocation of funding to be used for 
community revitalization activities.  The money is given to HUD, which in turn works with Central 
Arizona Governments (CAG) to manage the funds and disburse at the local level.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that for many years the Town partnered with the City of Winkelman and applied 
for funds every other year to accomplish the Town’s projects.  This allowed for more funding to 
be utilized on projects.   
 
Ms. Evan stated that this year is different as the Town received a $91,000 allocation for a single 
year compared to $165,000 last year.  The Town decided not to partner with Winkelman as the 
intent is to go under Pinal County and their entitlement allocation next year.     
 
Ms. Evans stated that this public hearing solicits input from the public for this project.  She 
provided a brief overview of the CDBG program: 
- Provides a variety of functions for community 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 6 of 33 

- Assists with revitalizing neighborhoods  
- Able to accomplish economic development activities that create jobs  
- Provides money to improve facilities and services 
 
Ms. Evans stated that one of the three objectives need to be met:  
- Benefits low to moderate income persons  
- Removal of slum and blight 
- Urban need 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the Town typically applies for the low to moderate income benefit.  The 
projects can be housing rehabilitation, waterline improvements, removal of architectural barriers 
such as the installation of ADA compliant ramps, etc.    
 
Ms. Evans stated that there are two members of the public who would like to speak and provide 
their input for the use of funds.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town communicated with CAG that we would not be partnering with 
Winkelman.  At the same meeting, Pinal County did a presentation and Florence will be receiving 
their CDBG funding from Pinal County in the future.   
 
Mayor opened the public hearing.  
 
Ms. Catherine (Cathy) Vargas, Florence Resident, stated that she has resided in Florence since 
1989, purchased her home here in 1992 and has been in the home for 28 years.  She stated that 
she has done some repairs to her home, but due to her chronic illness, she had to remove all of 
the carpeting in her home and replace it with tile.   
 
Ms. Vargas explained her medical condition and explained what ongoing treatment is needed.  
She outlined some of the repairs that are needed, which include: 
- Replace broken tiles 
- Complete block fence 

• Fence is partial block and partial redwood (which is ready to fall down) 
• Original redwood fence was damaged in last year’s storm and insurance only provided 

enough funding to replace a portion of the damaged fence 
• Has pool and the fence is the only barrier  
• Pool was installed to assist with back issues 

- Replacement of roof 
• Some of the roof shingles were lost in same storm 
• Insurance paid; however, she used the money to assist with the installation of the partial 

block fence 
- Heating and air conditioning need to be replaced 

• Heating unit is the original unit installed when the house was built in 1959. 
- Exterior paint is chipping  
- Lost awning in the backyard 
 
Ms. Vargas stated that she has used all of the insurance money and all the damage is documented 
in her insurance claim.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 7 of 33 

Ms. Vargas spoke for Mr. Bob Mack.  Mr. Mack is a veteran of the Vietnam War and is 77 years 
old.  He was not aware of the grant.  He also suffered damage from the same storm.  He lost a 
tree in his front yard as well as his carport awning.  She stated that Mr. Mack’s home has 
foundation problems.  He is unable to complete the form himself.  
 
Ms. Vargas stated that she called Ms. Evans and advised her of Mr. Mack.  She stated that they 
are both seeking rehabilitation.  She stated that she is on disability and he is a veteran.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that Town staff has been discussing several projects.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Ms. Evans and Mr. Chris Salas, Public Work Director, approached him 
with their applied project is to fix the ADA and sidewalk issues that are adjacent to the Florence 
K-8 school which was listed in the Safe Routes to School Plan.  This would be a good way to put 
the funds to use.  The Department of Housing calls it barrier removal projects – fixing known ADA 
issues so people with disabilities can have access to those public improvements.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that there were 38 ramps that were identified that do not meet ADA 
requirements.  The ramps will be removed and replaced with current standardized ramps.  This 
is the same service area in which the waterline project is located.  This area serves approximately 
92 residents in the general area.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that later in the meeting staff will ask Council to consider a resolution allowing 
staff to apply for this project and the second item is to approve a resolution that will commit 
matching funds to the project.  
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired if there is a section near the post office that is not ADA compliant.   
 
Ms. Evans responded that there is a section of sidewalk that is not in compliance as well as other 
sections in the Town core area.  She stated that they focused on the area around the school 
because that area has already had a special survey conducted last year.  The population in the 
area meets the low to moderate income standard for the grant.  She stated that the issues with 
the ramps are documented in the Safe Route to Schools Study.  Those were the primary basis 
for doing a project in that area.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she finds it interesting because the area by the post office is 
an area that everyone uses.  There are people in wheelchairs unable to get to the post office 
because the barrier needs to be moved.  She inquired why this area wasn’t looked at.  She would 
like all projects to be reviewed and suggested by priority.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she does not know how many ramps are not ADA compliant 
in the Town.   
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that Florence has partnered with Winkelman to rotate funding each year.  
Last year was Florence’s year for application.  The Town had an application that was prioritized, 
and it was the 12” water main replacement project.  A special income survey is required as part 
of the grant because the basic data provided in the census does not provide Florence the ability 
to qualify for these funds.  Staff physically has to go door-to-door to do the survey, which takes 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 8 of 33 

two to three months to complete.  Staff must then submit that information to the State and Federal 
Government for review.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town went through that process last year for the project that is 
currently under construction.  Staff did not know what was going to happen on the CDBG funding 
this year.  When Pinal County got designated and CAG started losing entities and the funds 
changed as well as the options to go after the funds, the Town was left with a much smaller dollar 
amount, of approximately $91,000.  The timeframe is also impossible by which to get the 
clearance necessary to apply.  Florence had no intention of applying this year and for all intent 
and purposes, the Town was not going to apply this year.  This left the Town in the position that 
there were very limited projects to apply for.  From the staff’s perspective, it was fortuitous that 
we already had the low to mod survey that was already approved by the State that they were able 
to use.  The project was already included in a recent study that shows the need for the project in 
terms of the barrier removal because of the Safe Routes to School Study.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there are many ADA ramps that are not up to current standard in 
Florence.  This is the only area that the Town could have applied for and met the timeframes that 
are necessary due to the constraints.  
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired if this is opened up to the public to apply for the grant to make 
repairs that they need for their homes, are they aware of the time constraints.  She also inquired 
what information did Ms. Vargas and Mr. Mack need to provide, such as estimates, so that they 
would have a fair shot at the funding. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the program works in a way that staff recommends one project.  Staff is 
recommending the ADA ramp project at this time.  The Town would not do a housing rehabilitation 
program with this particular amount of funding.  At this juncture, Council has the option to approve 
or disapprove the recommended project.   
 
Ms. Evans stated for the housing rehabilitation, there is a qualification process that is led by Town 
staff.  She explained the process including the income thresholds that must be met to be eligible 
to apply for the program.  The construction project itself is managed by Town staff or a consultant.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that Ms. Vargas presented at the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
He inquired how can someone be assured that they will receive funding.  He inquired if they need 
to wait until the following year.  
 
Ms. Evans explained that it is the prerogative of the Town Council to apply for housing 
rehabilitation funding next year.   
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired if the funding can be split between projects.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that it is possible.  She stated that the Town’s experience with housing 
rehabilitation, in which the Town did four years ago, was that one rehabilitation project cost 
approximately $91,000.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that look at what is the largest benefit to the community.  You may have one 
area in which 100 residents will benefit from the ADA compliant ramps. The rehabilitation program 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 9 of 33 

can be limited to one thing such as roofs, electrical, or plumbing and you may be able to do three 
to four rehabilitation projects with the $91,000 funding.   
  
Ms. Vargas stated that she has been waiting for five years for this grant.  She appealed last year 
and filed a new application.  She stated that her income, since she is on Medicare, which 
increases by 3% per year, and also receives Arizona State Retirement.  She submitted her income 
tax statement.  
 
Mayor Walter inquired if Ms. Evans has all of her information over the past five years.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that she submitted last year but the Town did not solicit nor accept it because 
the Town does not have an active housing rehabilitation program.  Staff only accepts applications 
when there is funding available and they have an active program.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if she has documents from the years prior.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the last time the Town received funding was in Fiscal Year 2014 and Ms. 
Vargas did have an application for that grant round.  She was not the Grants Coordinator at that 
time and came in after the construction had started on those projects.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that staff held the required public hearings for this grant application round.  Staff 
has fulfilled all of the meeting requirements and solicited public input.  There were newspaper 
advertisements and notices were posted in the required locations.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if Mr. Mack has gone through the process or if this is the first time he has 
approached staff. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that this is the first time.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that it is her understanding that the Town does not have housing rehabilitation 
funds at this time and funding in the future will be under Pinal County.  It is her understanding that 
the funding amount will be approximately $335,000 to be used for CDBG projects.   
 
Ms. Evans stated the distribution amount has not been determined but it is her understanding that 
the minimum will be $91,000 per year. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it is Pinal County’s intent to set a base amount with the ability through 
population numbers to add to the base amount.  Pinal County will get a much larger sum than 
they have received in the past.  For the last 20 years, Pinal County has received same the amount 
as the cities even though they have far more population.  Now that they manage their own funds, 
they will receive several million dollars instead of $190,000.  Pinal County’s intent is to make a 
larger impact by doing regional projects in cooperation with cities such as regional infrastructure 
projects to help economic development as part of the CDBG program going forward.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that CDBG funding is a grant that the Town must apply for.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that it is a grant; however, it is not competitive.  The Town will receive the 
funding so long as they follow the rules.  The Town must adhere to the public input process and 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 10 of 33 

the project needs to fit within their parameters.  The Town can do infrastructure projects and 
replace pipes, waterlines, sidewalks, etc., but cannot use the funding for equipment.  Staff has to 
be diligent on the projects they are applying for while trying to receive the maximum benefit from 
those projects.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired about the housing component and what would need to be submitted in 
order to purse this.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the Town can pursue this in the future.  Staff has been reviewing the State’s 
five-year plan and how they spend their funding.  Over 50% of their CDBG funding is spent on 
infrastructure projects.  The Town has been inline with their priorities.  They spend approximately 
25% of their funding on housing.  She stated that the Town has the opportunity to start a housing 
rehabilitation program again and there may be other types of funding they can apply for.  Staff 
needs Council direction if that is a priority for the community.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if there are certain criteria that must be met such as the owners’ have to 
live there for a certain amount of time.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that there are certain thresholds of grant funds that require easements, deeds 
of trust, that can range from five years to fifteen years.  She stated that this could be attached to 
the property, depending on the how much public funds are spent on the particular project.  The 
qualification process is stringent.  It has to be an owner-occupied home and the applicant needs 
to be low income and usually a senior (62 and over). 
 
Mayor Walter would like to see this component brought back.  She agrees to infrastructure and 
having to have the most impact for the community as a whole.  She knows that there are needs 
within the community and would like to help out then they can.   
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired if there is flexibility with the funding and if you can place a cap 
on each home or do both type of projects.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that there is some flexibility but would need to look at the overall dollar amount 
being received.  The money may not go very far if the Town tried to do both.   
 
Ms. Cordes inquired if she is understanding this correctly.  The Town has two citizens who are 
applying for a grant that Ms. Evans states they do not qualify for because the Town does not have 
a housing rehabilitation program.  She said she is trying to understand why the public thinks they 
can apply for this grant.  Either she doesn’t understand it, like them, or the Town is 
misrepresenting what the grant is for.  She hates to waste people’s time by going through an 
application process for five years when the Town knows that the individual is not going to receive 
funding because there is no program.  She would prefer that staff tell them from the onset that 
housing does not qualify.  She wants staff to be clear on what they are saying to the public.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that over the last four years, people have called and tried to apply.  For a while 
staff took applications but did not qualify them.  The applications were just held.  She stated that 
she has always been very clear that the Town does not have funding to support this program at 
this time or anytime in the last four years.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 11 of 33 

Ms. Evans stated that both public hearings were to solicit input on how to use the funds.  It was 
not an application process.  It was to allow the public the opportunity to express how they would 
like to see the CDBG dollars used in the community.  She wants to make it clear that the Town is 
not accepting applications nor does the Town have an active program.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that Ms. Evans made the same point at the Planning and Zoning 
Commission that there is not funding available for housing rehabilitation.  He inquired if the 
applicant needed to be 62 years or older.  
 
Ms. Evans responded that the applicant must be 62 years or older 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that based on age, Ms. Vargas would not qualify.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that there is also a component for disability and Ms. Vargas expressed that she 
is disabled.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that Ms. Adams spoke at the first public hearing and the Town did receive her 
input.    
      
Cathy Adams, Florence Resident, stated that she has been involved on the periphery of CDBG 
grant money used for housing before.  When the Town Manager first came on board they had the 
privilege of handing the keys to the homeowners.  She knows two people who were recipients of 
this.  It drastically changed their lives.  She stated that it eliminated blight in the neighborhood and 
a horrible sight to see.  She sits on the Historic District Advisory Commission where they fight 
absentee landlords letting their buildings fall down.  They have two citizens trying to keep their 
homes up.  She strongly advocates for a housing component every year that the Town has CDBG 
funding because where else can they go.  Infrastructure is something that Town can cover.  There 
are other places where one can get infrastructure dollars.  She inquired where can people go 
when they simply can’t keep up.  She thinks that is what CDBG should be all about.  She asked 
Council to consider the impact to the community of doing the homes and not just the individual 
person.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that they are on the same page with bringing back that housing component. 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired of Mr. Billingsley if the Town receives any federal funding for the 
ADA ramps.  
 
Mr. Billingsley responded that the Town does not receive any type of funding for those types of 
improvements.   If the Town were to re-pave, we would be required to make sure all of the ramps 
were ADA accessible.  Many communities use CDBG type funding for these types of 
improvements.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that when you have a housing program it is not as simple as we take care 
of their grant and hire a contractor and they do the work.  The Town would need to hire people to 
run the housing program to handle all of the paperwork.  The Town went away from that, and now 
has an individual who handles our grant program that does other things.  We would have to have 
employees who would directly oversee the program. They would be responsible for the 
paperwork, bidding, awarding the contract, overseeing the contractors, etc. for each of the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 12 of 33 

individual properties.  In the past, Florence hired a consultant to do the compliance and ongoing 
paperwork.  One of the concerns the then Council had was that a substantial portion of the funds 
was not going into the houses.  A substantial portion of the money was going to consultants to 
manage the projects.  The money was not actually going to the individuals but rather a site agency 
to provide services.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that years ago, CDBG was almost entirely housing rehab.  Now it gets 
reduced more and more all of the time because of how labor intensive it is and the bang that you 
get for your buck.    
 
Mayor Walter closed the public hearing.  
 
Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the property tax levy of the Town of 
Florence and first reading of Ordinance No. 676-19 
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 676-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT 
TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100) OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2020. 
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that the Town intends to increase the levy for Fiscal Year 2019/2020.  The 
primary tax rate will see a decrease from this year to last year.  The tax rate will decrease from 
$1.10 to $1.07; however, the levy will increase by 5.62% due to the amount of assessed valuation 
that increased.  The total increase will be $62,130.  The revenue that will be generated will be 
used to pay General Government expenses, primarily Police and Fire.   
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she receives a lot of questions from constituents regarding that 
the Council is increasing the levy but decreasing the tax rate.  She asked that Mr. Sanchez 
elaborate further.  
 
Mr. Sanchez explained that there are two ways to generate revenue.  One way is to increase the 
rate.  For this specific case, they did not need to increase the rate because the amount of total 
valuation of all the properties increased.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired who provides the Town with the number amount of assessed 
valuation for which the Town bases its levy on.    
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that the Pinal County Assessor’s Office provides the assessed valuation 
amount.   
 
Mayor Walter closed the public hearing.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 13 of 33 

Public hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the secondary property tax for the Fiscal 
Year 2019-2020 for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Light Improvement District No. 1, 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Light Improvement District No. 2 and Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch Street Light Improvement District No. 3; and first reading of Ordinance No. 677-19. 
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 677-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICTS (1, 2, & 3) SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR STREET LIGHT OPERATIONS FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2020.  
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that for the last several years the Town has not levied a secondary tax in the 
Districts.  This year, Street Light Improvement District No. 3 has diminished its funds and we must 
levy a secondary tax to provide continued service for the District.  The proposed rate of $.1207 
per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) will result in a charge of $12.07 on a $100,000 home.  
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if there are districts in other parts of the Town.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town currently has three streetlight improvement districts.  In the 
near future, two more will be considered in District No. and District No. 5.   He stated that streetlight 
improvement districts are included in the Development Agreement for Anthem at Merrill Ranch, 
Merrill Ranch and other agreements in order to cover the cost to install the streetlights and pay 
for the power costs.  
 
Mayor Walter asked that the street names be included.   
 
Mr. Billingsley explained the that Sun City Anthem is District No. 1 and a portion of District No. 3.  
Parkside Anthem is in District No. 2 and a portion of District No.3.  Districts No. 4 and No. 5 will 
be south and east of the existing districts.  
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the reason they have not levied a tax on the districts is because the 
Council levied at the maximum rate for three to four years when the districts were first set up and 
the funds collected far out-paced the expenditures on an annualized basis.  The Town has not 
levied in many years; however, in District No. 3 a shortfall is forecasted.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if District 3 is where the new builds are occurring.  
 
Mr. Billingsley responded that it is where the new builds are occurring in Sun City and DR Horton 
along with the location of the new commercial center is located.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that in District No. 1 and No. 2, the levy was higher because the cost of the 
actual infrastructure was included, and the money was set aside for that along with the usage and 
repairs as necessary.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 14 of 33 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated in those areas as they have been developing, there is a lot of infrastructure 
being installed.  Once the Town accepts the streets it becomes the Town’s infrastructure.   He 
stated that in District 3, a lot of the infrastructure has sat fallow for many years and the 
development is just starting to pick up at this time. 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if this will pay for the light bill.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated the cost of the light bill, infrastructure and repair and maintenance is 
included.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired who pays for the light bills downtown.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town pays for the light bills; however, there are far less lights in the 
downtown and historic areas than in the Anthem area.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired about the lights bills in the Florence Gardens area.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he will need to research this and provide follow up to Council.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he does not feel it is fair for the Town to pay for a portion of the 
streetlights for only a portion of the Town.   
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that she is in agreement with Vice-Mayor Anderson.  She does 
not believe the Town should pay for the lighting in the downtown area.  
 
Mayor Walter asked that it be explained the development agreements and how it is that the Town 
only pays for a portion of the Town’s streetlights.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the decision on how the subdivision was built and the infrastructure 
provided would have been very different if the expectation was that the Town was going to pay 
for the maintenance and the ongoing power bill for those lights.  He stated that there would be far 
less lights to the point that we might have been built like some of the subdivisions in other 
communities where there isn’t street lighting and they have a dark sky.  There would be far less 
lighting because the Town would not have the ability to come up the revenue to pay for the lighting 
as it exists there.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that other communities have been faced with similar issues in which part of 
the Town has streetlight improvement districts and they came to the Council and said that they 
did not want to have the districts.  The options were to shut off the streetlights or the funding was 
to come out of the General Fund.  Ultimately, they continued with the SLIDS and the SLIDS paid 
for the light bills.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that if the Town did not have the SLIDS it would be a revenue issue to have 
to pay for the maintenance and the power for the lights.  It would be a huge hit to the General 
Fund. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 15 of 33 

Councilmember Larsen stated that she agrees that she does not like the idea of the SLIDs and 
that they also pay for the streetlights for the rest of the community.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he does not object to the SLIDs, he just feels that there should 
be SLIDS for all parts of Town.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that it would need to be voted on.  She stated that when everyone was 
elected they inquired why they had certain things and other areas do not.  When Anthem was 
developed as a master planned community part of the development agreement outlined the 
amenities that it would offer and outlined the funding mechanism for those amenities.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that they cannot impose it in other areas of the Town without taking it to a 
vote of the citizens.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it would not be an election, but rather a signature petition.  An area 
would be picked and would need to go door-to-door.  There is also an evaluation component and 
property ownership component.  He stated if Council would like to try and do this in the future, 
they can try.  He stated that it would be difficult for a community to tax themselves to pay for their 
streetlights when they do not currently pay for it.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the way that the Town set it up was that new developments with new 
amenities would utilize districts to pay for construction of infrastructure and ongoing maintenance 
of the infrastructure.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that there is a lot of money that flows through Merrill Ranch and 
its community.  Each home that is built there is assessed a $3,000 special assessment.  They 
also pay approximately $380 per quarter for HOA fees.  She stated that every time a home sells 
there is a capital improvement fee, transfer of HOA fees and a 0.25% charge of the sales price 
for every home in Anthem.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she assumed the HOA fees were covering the cost of the 
streetlights, park, pool and staff salaries.   
 
Mayor Walter clarified that the HOA fees are not part of the Town of Florence.  The Town of 
Florence does not offer the facilities in the Anthem community.  She stated that when a person 
purchases a home in Anthem it is clearly communicated all the fees that must be paid, inclusive 
of impact fees.  She inquired if the impact fees are more in Anthem. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that all of the impact fees are the same for the entire Town for new 
development.  There is not a water or sewer impact fee in Anthem area.  The downtown area 
pays more because they have water and sewer infrastructure.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it is important to talk about the different districts.  He stated that the 
$3,000 special assessment fee is for building of the infrastructure such as streets and sidewalks 
in the individual parcels of the subdivisions.  General Obligation Bonds are funds to pay for 
regional infrastructure such as regional routes used to access the subdivision.   
 
Mayor Walter closed the public hearing.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 16 of 33 

 
Public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on the proposed final budget for Fiscal Year 
2019-2020. And Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1700-19. 
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1700-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020. 
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that the final budget has not changed from the Tentative Budget that was 
approved on June 3, 2019 in the amount of $45,251,331. The Expenditure Limitation was adopted 
on June 17, 2019 in the amount of $28,938,392.  He stated that he recently learned that some of the 
projections for the State Shared Revenue will come in slightly lower than projected.   
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comment, Mayor Walter closed 
the public hearing. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hughes, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. 1700-19.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Hughes:  Yes 
Councilmember Cordes:  Yes 
Councilmember Larsen:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Anderson:  Yes 
Mayor Walter:  Yes 
 
Yes:  6; No; 0 
 
United Way Presentation by Allen A. Villalobos, Chief Executive Officer for United Way of 
Pinal County.  
 
Mr. Allen A. Villalobos, CEO for United Way of Pinal County, introduced himself to the Council.  
He has been in his position for two months and excited to be part of United Way.  He thanked Ms. 
Lisa Garcia for volunteering her time as Secretary of Board for United Way of Casa Grande.   
 
Braden Biggs, Community Programs/ VITA Manager, provided a presentation, in which he 
outlined the following: 
 
- Florence Lives United 

• Reading by Third Grade 
o Over 60 sock puppets 
o 50 Literacy Kits donated to Head Start 
o Mentoring young kids with reading 
o Partnered with  
 Town of Florence 
 Florence Woman’s Club 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 17 of 33 

 Florence Rotary Club 
 Florence Unified School District 

• Family Volunteer Day 
o 10 volunteers donated 3.5 hours 
o Value $736 in labor 
o Bagged 125 literacy kits 
o Created 48 sock puppets 
o Partnering with Town of Florence and Disney 

• Feed Pinal 
o September is Hunger Awareness Month 
o October is Hunger Action Month 
o Florence in Action  
o 40 volunteers donated 2 hours 
o $1,975 in labor value 
o Packed 5,000 servings of Minestrone 
o Food Distributed to: 
 Elks Feeding Empty Little Tummies (EFELT) 
 Florence Unified School District 
 Superior Food Bank  
 Apache Junction School District 
 Leftovers were taken by local church to make extra kits 

• Heat Relief Network 
o UWPC /Pinal County/CAG/MAG 
o Over 70 partners 
o Collected and distributed 39 pallets 
o Issued heat warnings 
o Collaborated with APS/SRP for high heat days and cooling stations  

• FFN – Family, Friend and Neighbor Program 
o 300 enrolled family child care providers throughout Pinal County 
o Made up of grandparents and other kinship care providers, foster parents, and those 

who run childcare businesses from their homes.  
o Funded through FTF (State Agency) for up to 350 providers 
o 300 enrolled family child care providers throughout Pinal County 
o Made up of grandparents and other kinship care providers, foster parents, and those 

who run childcare businesses from their homes.  
o Funded through FTF (State Agency) for up to 350 providers 
o Within the training Cohorts we provide Play and Learn events, CPR/ First Aid classes 

and business workshops (Childcare business providers) 
o Quarterly conferences with over 100+ providers (4 – 6 Hours) of learning 
o Providers per city in Pinal County 
 Apache Junction – 24 
 Arizona City – 3 
 Casa Grande – 61 
 Coolidge – 9 
 Eloy – 3 
 Florence – 9 
 Kearny – 1 
 Maricopa – 63 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 18 of 33 

 San Tan Valley – 32 
 San Manuel 3 (All in-home trainings) 
 Superior – 2 
 Queen Creek - 5 

• Volunteer Tax Assistance Program (VITA)  
o 1300 County-wide taxes prepared 
o $1.3 million dollars in refunds 
o 462k in EITC Refunds 
o 100 residents of Florence assisted 
o 181 clients were Veterans 
o 188 classified themselves as disabled 
o 413 were returning clients from previous year (self-reported) 

My Free Taxes (MFT) * Rank out of 1227 Counties Participating 
E-File 180  
EITC 143  

My Free Taxes (MFT) * Rank out of 839 United Ways Participating 
E-File 179  
EITC 151  

 
 Total Refund Amount
Apache Junction  - CAC $24,681.00
Goodwill $388,527.00
MC- CAC $151.450.00
Eloy $113,734.00
San Tan Valley – CAC $89,729.00
Salt River $352,384.00
Apache Junction Public Library $41,760.00
Mountain View Church $97,232.00
Superior Chamber of Commerce $34,889.00
My Free Taxes (MFT) $1,294,386.00

 
Total Returns by City

Apache Junction 109
San Tan Valley 81
Maricopa 217
Eloy 381
Salt River 217

 
- How is the UWPC Funded  

• Annual Giving Campaigns 
• Special Events 
• Corporate Sponsorships 
• Grants/Government Funding 
• Community Donors 
• Volunteers 

- UWPC Income Sources and Distribution 
• Community Fund = $191,981.27 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 19 of 33 

• UWPC Designation = $30,959.94 
• PC Agency Designation = $22,931.56 
• VITA = $26,000.00 

o One donor – Awarded PC Government Grant 
• Dolly Parton Library = $1,822.05 
• Total = $273,694.82 

- Town of Florence Campaign 
• In working with the Town of Florence Staff – Town Manager and Town Clerk the UWPC 

presented to council in mid-February 
• On April 17, 2019, during Employee Appreciation Day the UWPC presented to staff and 

accepted employee payroll deductions 
• Eight staff members are contributing $2,800 for the 2019/2020 campaign cycle. 
• Up from $52 in prior years. An increase of 5400% 

- Top 2018 Campaigns 
• Abbott 
• APS 
• ASARCO 
• Banner Casa Grande 
• Banner Goldfield 
• Banner Ironwood 
• Casa Grande Elementary Schools  
• Casa Grande Valley Newspaper 
• City of Apache Junction 
• City of Eloy 
• City of Maricopa 
• Harrah’s– Ak-Chin Casino 
• Hexcel 
• Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens 
• Pinal County Government 
• SRP – Desert Basin 
• SRP – Customer Service 
• Wal-Mart 

 
Mayor Walter inquired about giving to United Way, specifically by texting 313131.  
 
Mr. Biggs explained the how to donate by text or by going to their website. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that she enjoyed all of the events that the Town has partnered with United 
Way.  She looks forward to future ways to partner.  
 
Councilmember Cordes thanked him for the presentation and for all that they do for Florence and 
the surrounding areas in Pinal County. 
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired why Florence is not part of the peanut butter challenge.  
 
Mr. Biggs asked that the public follow them on Instagram, Twitter and Facebook.  He explained 
that the peanut butter and jelly challenge started two years ago in Apache Junction.  They just 
completed their second year.  The Casa Grande Elementary School District joined the challenge 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 20 of 33 

and turned into an intercity competition.  The reason for challenge is that one in five children in 
Arizona (one in four in Pinal County) come from a food insecure household.  Many school districts 
have many Mckinney Vento Children (displaced, homeless or food insecure households) and 
United Way works with the school districts to ensure that the children do not go 72 hours hungry.  
This would be from the time they leave school on Friday afternoon until the time they return on 
Monday morning.   
 
Mr. Biggs explained that the competition thus far is between Casa Grande and Apache Junction 
with goal of reaching 1300 jars.  He would like to see this grow in other communities as well.  He 
stated that is for a great cause and falls under the Feed Pinal.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she would love to join the challenge.   
 
Mr. Biggs stated that he is designing a Golden Sandwich Trophy and will try to get other 
communities involved.  
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired about the Employee Campaign and asked what basis is used 
for competition.  She asked if there is a goal or if they are competing against someone. 
 
Mr. Biggs stated that it is great to obtain donations; however, he likes to see participation.  The 
competition is which city has the most donors.  He stated that he encourages participation.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she would like to see competition between departments and 
this may encourage more employees to participate.  She stated that as a realtor she participates 
in the Heroes Home Advantage and explained what they do.  She asked him to think of ways to 
tap into the realty agency with regards to obtaining donations.  
 
Mr. Biggs stated that Apache Junction has a realtor roundup and they present at their event.  He 
will definitely look into this further.  
 
Special recognition of Battalion Chief Jim Walter for completing the Managing Officer 
Program through the National Fire Academy.  
 
Mr. David Strayer, Fire Chief, recognized Battalion Chief Jim Walter for completing the Managing 
Officer Program through the National Fire Academy.  The National Fire Academy’s (NFA’s) 
Managing Officer Program is a multiyear curriculum that introduces emerging emergency services 
leaders to personal and professional skills in change management, risk reduction and adaptive 
leadership.  Acceptance into the program is a major step in professional development as a career 
fire/Emergency Medical Services (EMS) manager and includes all four elements of professional 
development: education, training, experience and continuing education. 
 
Chief Strayer stated that students build on foundational management and technical competencies, 
learning to address issues of interpersonal and cultural sensitivity, professional ethics, and 
outcome-based performance.  Upon completion of the fire program fire officers are better 
prepared to grow professionally, improve skills and meet emergency and professional challenges, 
be able to embrace professional growth and development, enjoy a national perspective on 
professional development, understand and appreciate the importance of professional 
development and have a network of fire service professionals who support career development.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 21 of 33 

 
Mr. Jim Walter, Battalion Chief, stated that it took two years to complete the program.  He stated 
that the fire service component was strange because they did not have to do any hazardous 
things.  They did not have to wear a turnout nor were there any fires.  They learned about the 
academic side of fire service.  He learned about community risk reduction and data management.  
These tools will help grow the Fire Department and the community.  He attended the program 
with people from New Hampshire, Washington and Alaska.  It was a great experience to discuss 
our fire departments with other communities and to have gained lifelong friends in the fire service.  
He is looking forward to the next step which is the Executive Fire Officers Program.  He will apply 
and hopefully be accepted.  He thanked the Council. 
 
Councilmember Hughes congratulated Mr. Walter.  
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired what he thought was the best part of the program.  
 
Mr. Walter stated that he still needs to complete the capstone component of the program, which 
is to decrease the cancer risk to the Fire Department by replacement of turnouts, on-scene 
procedures to wash contaminants off prior to getting back in the truck and procedures for when 
they get back to the station. This reduces the Town’s risk and liability.  He stated that one of the 
great things is the people you meet and what you take away from the interactions with others.     
 
Special recognition of Sergeant Phil Riccomini for completing a 10-week course given 
through Northwestern University, School of Police Staff and Command.  
 
Mr. Dan Hughes, Police Chief, stated that Florence is fortunate to have the caliber of employees 
it has.  He stated that Northwestern University is one of two premiere schools that police leaders 
need to go to in order lead a police department.  He stated that the program is for 10 weeks and 
offers college level credits.  It is a compressed curriculum and if taken traditionally, would take 
approximately one and half years to complete.   
 
Chief Hughes stated that the program covers all aspects of roles and responsibilities that a police 
officer needs to be considered as a police leader.  Including himself, there are a total of three 
people who have attended the Northwestern University.   
 
Mr. Phil Riccomini, Police Officer, thanked the Town for investing in his future.  He attended the 
academy with others from around the Phoenix valley and Globe.  One of his big takeaways was 
succession planning.  He learned that what Chief Hughes instills in his employees, mirrors what 
is taught at the academy.   
 
Chief Hughes stated that he along with Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, attended the 
graduation.  He stated that it is good that the personnel attend these academies because they are 
the future leaders.  
 
Proclamation declaring July as Parks and Recreation Month in the Town of Florence and 
to encourage residents to get outdoors and enjoy their community through parks and 
recreation. (Bryan Hughes) 
 
Mayor Walter proclaimed July as Parks and Recreation Month in the Town of Florence.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 22 of 33 

Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, stated that the Town will have the Freedom 
Fest Day Celebration on July 4, 2019, starting with a free swim day at the Aquatics Center with 
several contests taking place throughout the day.  He stated that they are also have a school 
supplies drive and are accepting donations at the aquatics center throughout the event.  Salt River 
Project (SRP provided a $5,000 donation for the event and will be present at the Aquatics Center 
to discuss their water safety program.   
 
Mr. Hughes stated that the celebration will continue at Heritage Park at 5:00 p.m. with plenty of 
games and live entertained planned along with the fireworks show.   
 
Mr. Hughes stated that other events planned throughout July include swim lessons, Kids Summer 
Camp, Teen Night, and Family Night.  Some of the events will continue after the school session 
starts.  He hopes that people come out and enjoy the parks and recreation facilities and events.   
 
Councilmember Cordes asked that peanut butter and jelly be incorporated in the drive.  
 
Mr. Hughes stated that they will consider the peanut butter and jelly donations for next year.  
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Adoption of the Active Transportation Plan.  
 
b. Approval of an Extension of Agreement for Temporary Housing at Florence Fire 

Station 542 by American Medical Response for an additional 12 months.  
 

c. Approval of an Extension of Agreement with Air Methods Corporation for the 
utilization of the helipad at Fire Station 541 for an additional 12 months.  
 

d. Approval of an Inmate Work Contract with the Arizona Department of Corrections 
for a period of five years, with a term to expire June 30, 2024. 
 

e. Approval of the Interagency Service Agreement (ISA) between Arizona State Parks 
and the Town of Florence to manage McFarland State Historic Park through June 30, 
2020.)   
 

f. Approval of entering into a Revocable License/Lease and Professional Services 
Agreement with the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce for McFarland State 
Historic Park through June 30, 2020.  
 

g. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending May 31, 2019, in the amount 
of $2,976,951.39.  
 

On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda as written, with the removal Item e. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 23 of 33 

e. Approval of the Interagency Service Agreement (ISA) between Arizona State Parks 
and the Town of Florence to manage McFarland State Historic Park through June 30, 
2020.  

 
Councilmember Wall inquired how the transfer of funds to the Arizona State Parks will work, 
specifically because the State will then return the Town’s portion back to the Town within five 
days.  She is confused as to how this process will work.  
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that this process is new and has not been done 
before.  There are five partner parts in the system and McFarland State Park will be the first to 
have this type of agreement.  This process was derived by their procurement personnel at State 
Parks.  The employees are new to the agency and cited State statutes as the reason why the 
changes to the agreement were made.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that the funds raised at McFarland State Park Gift Shop and through donations 
do not come to the Town.  They have always stayed with Chamber, who manages the park.  Prior 
to the Chamber, the funds remained with the Main Street Program.  This is an incentive for them 
to run the gift shop.  The agreement is for a one-year period and staff will have discussions with 
the Arizona State Park on this process.   
 
Ms. Evans explained the money will be transferred to the Arizona State Parks, who will return the 
funding to the Town.  The Town will then return the money back to the Chamber.  She understands 
the redundancy in the process which is why staff will be having discussions with Arizona State 
Parks.  She is hoping that the Chamber will be able to remit the money directly to the State.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the Town values the partnership with the Arizona State Parks; however, 
this process does utilize the Town’s staff time and wants to adhere to their policy while doing so 
in an efficient manner.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired about the maintenance of the building and inquired if they are to 
install railing.  He inquired who is to pay for the railing and if the Town is responsible for the 
installation.  
 
Ms. Evans stated there are no set plans or schedule set.  There has been discussion as to who 
is responsible for that type of improvement.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it is his understanding that a State has not budgeted for this 
improvement as of yet.  It is their building and they would be responsible for the improvements.  
The last conversation with the State is that they were going to order railings from ACI and install 
the railings and ADA compliant ramps.    
 
Vice-Mayor stated that the caution rope is an eye-sore.  
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired about sections A and B of the agreement that refers to 
maintenance of the building and ADA compliance.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 24 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley explained that Section A pertains to general maintenance and that there is an ADA 
accessibility to the facility, so those two sections do not apply.  There are no health and safety 
issues.  He stated that it is not the Town’s responsibility to do improvements at the State Parks.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that staff can communicate with the Arizona State Parks for an update on 
when the improvements are scheduled to be made.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it is within the Council’s purview to spend money on improvements at 
McFarland State Park; however, there is no money in the budget that Council just approved.  He 
stated that the ropes were put up because the State would be liable should someone be injured.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the State Park is eligible to apply for a grant for up to $5,000 through 
the Town’s Façade Program to assist with that project.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Interagency Service Agreement (ISA) between Arizona State Parks and the Town of 
Florence to manage McFarland State Historic Park through June 30, 2020. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to adopt Resolution No. 1707-19 adopting the Uniform 
Video Service License and Application and adopt Ordinance No. 679-19 amending the 
Town of Florence Code of Ordinances to comply with Arizona State law governing Video 
Service License Agreements. (Lisa Garcia) 
  
Resolution No. 1707-19:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1707-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, REAFFIRMING 
TOWN POLICY BY ADOPTING A UNIFORM STANDARD VIDEO SERVICES APPLICATION, 
AFFIDAVIT, AND LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR VIDEO SERVICE PROVIDERS; AND 
DIRECTING STAFF TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO CARRY OUT THE PURPOSE 
AND INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that this ordinance is coming before 
Council because Senate Bill 1140 was passed in 2018 which requires uniform video servicing 
provider license throughout the State of Arizona.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Arizona League of Cities and Towns worked with municipalities to 
ensure that all municipalities adopted the same licensing agreement and have the same rules.  
Staff has brought forward the following: 
- A resolution that adopts the application and the policy  
- An ordinance that adopts language that needs to be modified within the Town Code based on 

the fact that the Town has pre-January 1, 2020 and post-January 1, 2020 applications.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 25 of 33 

Ms. Garcia stated that some agreements that are in effect will use the old language until such 
time that their agreements renews and then they will use the new language.  All new agreements 
will use the new language.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff will come before Council one more time to amend the ordinance once 
again, by removing the prior year language.  She stated that Cox communications’ license expires 
on September 5, 2021 and have the right to apply for a new application license under the current 
laws.  They would have the right to move forward under the new license rules.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the ordinance is statutorily required, therefore, it does not require two 
separate readings.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if this pertains to cable and inquired if there are other companies.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that there are other companies who offer cable service; however, Cox 
Communications is the only company that has infrastructure in the ground within our municipal 
boundary.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if Centurylink has lines in the Town.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that Centurylink does not have lines in the ground.  She stated that other 
servicers provide service but they do not proved cable video service.  Satellite providers fall under 
different rules.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. 1707-19. 
 
Ordinance No. 679-19:  
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 679-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 118, CABLE 
COMMUNICATIONS, TO COMPLY WITH ARIZONA STATE LAW REQUIRING THE USE OF A 
UNIFORM VIDEO SERVICE LINES AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019; PROVIDING 
FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Ordinance No. 679-19. 
 
Resolution No.1705-19:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1705-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
THE SUBMISSION OF APPLICATION(S) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 STATE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FUNDS, CERTIFYING THAT SAID 
APPLICATION(S) MEETS THE COMMUNITY'S PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED HOUSING AND 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 26 of 33 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE STATE CDBG 
PROGRAM, AND AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT AND 
COMPLETE THE ACTIVITIES OUTLINED IN SAID APPLICATION FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that staff is seeking authorization to apply for CDBG funding in the amount of 
$91,000 to replace non-ADA compliant ramps with ADA compliant ramps in 38 locations.  
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that she is not in agreement that the monies should be used only 
for sidewalks.  She would like some of the funding to be used for home repairs for the individuals 
who spoke (Ms. Vargas and Mr. Mack) before Council at tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that it is her understanding that the Town does not have a housing program 
at this time.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that she cannot guarantee funding to those two individuals.  Staff would have 
to open up an opportunity for people to apply and the funding would go to the most needy based 
on certain criteria.  She stated that there would have been to be limits set, such as roofing, 
plumbing, etc. and it would be evaluated on certain criteria.  She stated that there are time 
constraints as well.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired when the grant is due.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the grant application is due August 1, 2019 to CAG, which would provide 
for a very limited amount of time to pull up a new scope and bring back to the Council at the next 
meeting.  They must also implement the project within a 12-month period once the grant is 
awarded.  She stated that it may take one to two months to qualify a resident for funding.  She 
stated housing rehab projects are doable; however, it may be challenging with the time line with 
this specific grant.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she does not agree with asking the public for input when the 
staff already has decided on what project they are recommending to Council on the same agenda.  
This does not provide enough time for Council to consider the public’s input.  She agrees that 
replacing the crosswalks are important but does not want to disregard the public’s input.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Town normally has a two-year window to determine what the projects 
are in the previous year.  This is not the normal occurrence with CDBG funding.  Town staff had 
one month to vet a project that would meet the criteria as well as the timeline.  Staff had to 
determine where they could spend the funds, what the project would be, and follow the time 
constraints.  The Town provided for public outreach twice, once before and once at this meeting.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated with regards to the public proposing a different project, the Town would not 
be able to do the project because of the low to mod survey that needs to be completed.  He stated 
that another project considered was adding additional funding for the 12” waterline in which they 
funded two grants in a row, and they were unable to do so because there was not enough time to 
do a special income survey.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 27 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley stated that he agrees with Councilmember Cordes on how it appears; however, 
this is not how the process usually works and staff is trying to find the best project that will fit all 
of the criteria.  There are time constraints that must be adhered to if the Town wishes to apply for 
the funds.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town used to have a Housing Rehab Program and decided to stop 
the program for a number of reasons including cost and staff.  Florence has not had a housing 
rehab program for years.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that her frustration is that the public thought that they had input on 
what project to apply for.  She asked if staff can do a better job in explaining the process.  She 
was unaware that staff only had one month to find and vet a project that met the criteria and time 
line.  She understands that this is the only project that falls into place as meeting all of the criteria 
and that can be completed in the designated timeframe.  She wants the public to understand why 
the project was chosen over what they suggested.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that the Town was not expecting this funding and had to work hard 
to find a project that fit. She stated that this funding would have gone to Winkelman.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that the Town shared their funding with Winkelman and received 
funding every other year.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that it was communicated what direction Florence was moving in at the CAG 
meeting when Pinal County presented future CDBG funding.  She stated there was no voice 
opposition nor any conversation with staff following the meeting.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that with regards to CDBG funding, two public hearings must be held and after 
which the Council makes a decision of which projects the Town wants to move forward on.  There 
was no decision made prior to the meeting as to which project to proceed with.  The public 
hearings are very important to receive the citizen’s input.  She stated that at any time that Council 
feels that they need more time they can table the item.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that Council is hearing from its citizens and from staff.  Staff is making a 
recommendation on what they feel Council should utilize the funding for.  Council still has the 
independent choice on what project they want to proceed with.  She stated no decision has 
happened before tonight.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that this has communicated this very well.  The public provided input on their 
desires and provides feedback for something for Council to consider.   
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she values public input and had not made a decision on the 
project prior to the meeting.  She inquired what details need to be submitted in the application for 
the CDBG grant should they wish to pursue housing rehabilitation, such as housing plans, etc.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that they do not need to go into that much detail.  Staff needs to understand the 
priority of the Town Council and receive direction from the Council as to which project to proceed 
with.  Furthermore, staff needs to know the limitations such as full housing rehabilitation or a 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 28 of 33 

limited type program.  Staff would want as much time as possible to open the application process 
in order to go through the tasks to qualify the applicants, as this takes time.   
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired if staff would be responsible for everything including the contract 
work and coordination of the work.  She also inquired if there is a way to limit the dollar amount, 
or include stipulations, that limit the amount spent on each home.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the Town has flexibility on the parameters of how much can be spent on 
each home, such as $20,000.  Town staff or a hired consultant will manage the project.  The 
homeowner would not find its own contractors.  She stated in the last housing rehabilitation 
project, the families needed to vacate their homes for approximately four months and the Town 
paid for alternate living arrangements through the grant.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired how much employee time did this project take.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the project took the majority of their time.  
 
Discussion occurred on what the grant application entails and the requirements that must be met. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that housing rehabilitation is federally funded, which means all federal 
requirements must be met, inclusive of Davis Bacon, biding requirements, Federal scope 
requirements, as well as other paperwork.  There is no economy of scale, it is that amount of staff 
time and/or consultant time multiplied by that many projects.  The application would entail the 
following:  
-  
- Detail to the application 
- An analysis of the application  
- After the application 

• An analysis of each dwelling unit 
• Must complete project to make it safe, regardless of dollar amount allocated 

o Dwelling unit must be made safe to live in 
• Selection of contractors 
• Management of contractors 

o All paperwork that needs to be completed 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that housing rehabilitation is a very involved project.  He noted that 
approximately one third of the money was spent on the contractors which took away from what 
could have gone into the project.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired about someone who has needed repairs, obtained insurance money to do 
the repairs but did not do the repairs and is now requesting grant funding for the repairs.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that she does not know if there is a correlation between a previous insurance 
claim and a grant fund.  The work still needs to be completed.  The home will still need to be 
evaluated and go from there. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that even though the Town is appreciative of the funding, staff only had a 
limited amount of time in which to bring a project forward that meets all the criteria and timeframe.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 29 of 33 

From his perspective, the best opportunity in which to obtain the funds and be successful in the 
implementation will be the barrier removal project.  He stated if Council would like to move forward 
on a housing rehabilitation program, it can be included in the next year’s budget.   
 
Mayor Walter asked the process be clearly outlined and that there is ample time for feedback.  
She would also like projects that provide the biggest impact for all of the residents.  There are 
also other resources available that a person could apply for assistance.   
 
Ms. Evans state that with regards to leverage of funds, there are funds available in the current 
General Fund for ADA ramp improvements, and there is no funding available for housing 
rehabilitation.   
 
Councilmember Wall agrees with all of the comments made by the Council and is empathetic to 
those residents who have needs.  She stated that the Council needs to be fair when looking at a 
home repair program.  There are many residents who may benefit from such a program and how 
does the Council determine who is best qualified to receive funding.  It becomes a very person 
issue and she is not prepared to make that type of decision for that type of a program.  She 
believes the Council should consider projects that are for the greater good.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he would prefer that staff provide a plan for Council to review 
prior to a project being brought forth, along with the pros and cons and advantages and 
disadvantages of the project or program.    
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to adopt 
Resolution No. 1705-19. 
 
Resolution No. 1706-19:   
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1706-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, COMMITTING 
LOCAL FUNDS AS LEVERAGE FOR AN FY 2019 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT APPLICATION.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that this is the matching fund for the CDBG application.  The overall project is 
expected to be $139,000 and the Town would need to commit approximately $48,000 to complete 
the project.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. 1706-19. 
 
Resolution No. 1708-19:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1708-19 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ORDERING 
THE ABANDONMENT OF A PORTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY WITHIN FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS SITUATED IN THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 36, 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 30 of 33 

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA RIVER MERIDIAN, FLORENCE STREET 
BETWEEN EAST BUTTE AVENUE AND 11TH STREET.  
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Public Works Director, stated that the Town has been working with Pinal County 
on their project.  The benefit to their project is that while abandoning the right-of-way, the Town 
can remove some of the hinderances of the setback which will allow them to have more design 
flexibility.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that this is part of making Florence a walkable community.  The Town is 
abandoning a street and making it a pedestrian corridor to be able to walk the complex.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if there were discussions regarding a land swap.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that discussions occurred with the Town abandoning the street provides 
Pinal County some flexibility with setbacks on their project and they will make Park Street more 
of a boulevard concept so that it is more of an entry into the community instead of as it exists now.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he thought there would be conversation regarding the vacant 
lot that they had.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that they did not have that conversation. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. 1708-19. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract to Ellison Mills Contracting LLC, to 
install valves, fire hydrants, tapping sleeves, and concrete encased sewer, replace curb, 
sidewalk and asphalt as necessary, in an amount not to exceed $525,200.85 (Bid 
$456,696.39 plus a 15% Town contingency of $68,504.46) for CIP WU-83 Phase 3B 
Downtown 12” Loop.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that this is the final loop of this project.  Each part has improved the fire flows.  
Included in the project is upsized lines, new fire hydrants, especially were there were operational 
concerns or needs.   
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired about the time frame for the project.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that it will be completed before or after the Thanksgiving holiday.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that they have 120 days and if not completed in the timeframe, the 
contractor will be penalized $500 per day.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
award a contract to Ellison Mills Contracting LLC, to install valves, fire hydrants, tapping sleeves, 
and concrete encased sewer, replace curb, sidewalk and asphalt as necessary, in an amount not 
to exceed $525,200.85 (Bid $456,696.39 plus a 15% Town contingency of $68,504.46) for CIP 
WU-83 Phase 3B Downtown 12” Loop. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 31 of 33 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated Council asked for staff to put a priority on developing partnerships and 
relationships.  The Town has partnered with the Florence Unified School District (FUSD) to work 
towards a STEM school.  Both entities made commitments to each other in terms of expenditures 
and improvements made to benefit the other.  From the Town’s perspective, the Town agreed to 
do the 12” waterline loop to increase fire flows to the Florence K-8 school which has some real 
challenged from a fire flow perspective.  The Town also facilitated the ability for the school to do 
future projects and know that they have the fire flow necessary to meet the intent of the 2012 
Codes.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that from the Town’s perspective, the FUSD agreed to rehabilitate a number 
of old buildings that have various issues from lead-based paint to asbestos.  Both the FUSD and 
the Town has met those commitments.  This is an example of an excellent partnership.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town had an opportunity to be represented on television three 
different times. 
- Bullying video on News Channel 3 (which was shown to Council) 
- Active Shooter Exercise on News 15 
- Bullying video on Fox 10 News (will air soon) 
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired what the buildings will be used for. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the head start building will be used for a daycare facility.  They have 
installed new windows, new carpeting, new wall furnishings, ADA improvements, etc. in the other 
four buildings.  Those buildings will be used for school programs and for their Before and After 
School Program.  The Town of Florence is no longer providing the Before and After School 
Program as they have a new vendor.   
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Development  
Community Services 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Ms. Cathy Adams, Florence Resident, thanked the Council for the conversation for the CDBG 
grants.  She stated that it was very informative.  She said that many attended the first CDBG 
public hearing along with others to provide feedback because they thought it was an open slate 
and their opinions were being asked because there were possibilities.  If the Town clearly knew 
that there were time constraints to only provide a certain type of service, it should have been 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 32 of 33 

articulated at the meeting.  She stated that it is important to articulate to the public of any 
parameters, limitations or time constraints to any proposed grants.    
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he attended CPR training.  The training was opening to the 
Town employees and the CERT group.  He was surprised that there were not many participants.  
He would like to see more people attend the trainings.  
 
Councilmember Wall wished Councilmember Larsen a Happy Birthday.  She stated that it is her 
understanding that the tax rates will be as follows: 
- Primary property tax  Decrease by $0.03 
- MRCFD rate  Decrease by $2.56  
- MRCFD2 rate   Increase by  $0.27 
- SLID #1   No change 
- SLID #2   No change 
- SLID #3   Increase by $0.12 
 
Councilmember Larsen wished everyone a Happy Fourth of July.  
 
Councilmember Cordes attended the Historical Preservation Conference and stated that it was a 
wealth of information.  She networked with the Historic District Advisory Commission (HDAC) 
members and discuss goals.  HDAC will present a packet with their ideas and how they will 
implement their ideas to the Council.  They learned about millennials.  She would like to see more 
Councilmembers and HDAC members attend.   She said she learned a lot and thanked the 
Council for the opportunity to attend.  
 
Mayor Walter invited everyone to attend the Fourth of July events.  She attended the 60th 
Anniversary of the Arizona Mexico Commission and was able to participate in a meeting with 
Arizona Governor Ducey and Sonora, Mexico Governor Pavlovich-Arellano.  They discussed 
economic development, infrastructure and autonomous vehicles.  She stated that there was a 
wealth of information shared.  
 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and 
(A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation case number 
1100CV201500235-Assoc. of Florence Fire vs Town of Florence. 
 
Instruct staff with regards to negotiations of land purchases required for future 
infrastructure. 
 
Town’s position on potential and threated claim regarding HOA fees. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 1, 2019 
Page 33 of 33 

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Mayor Walter, and carried (6-0) to adjourn from 
Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 10:30 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 1, 2019, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON 
TUESDAY, JULY 9, 2019, AT 4:30 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.    
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Tara Walter, John Anderson, *Bill Hawkins, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle 
Cordes, Judy Hughes. 
(*Bill Hawkins appeared telephonically.) 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 9, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised 
or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council 
shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the 
matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) to 
consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 

 
a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of 

Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case 
No. 16-002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.  
 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa 
County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325, 
including counterclaims. 
 

On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to adjourn to 
Executive Session.  

 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 9, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

There were no comments.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 4:55 p.m. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 9, 2019, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING HELD ON 
MONDAY, JULY 15, 2019, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.      
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 
Present: John Anderson***, Bill Hawkins, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, 

Judy Hughes 
 
Absent: Tara Walter 
***Vice-Mayor Anderson appeared telephonically. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Hughes, and carried (6-0) to 
 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 1 of 33 

appoint Councilmember Wall to run the meeting.  
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Councilmember Wall called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Councilmember Wall led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised 
or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council 
shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the 
matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Carolyn Renee Deluzeo, Florence Resident, spoke regarding the proposed two roundabouts 
and the difficulty in maneuvering through them to get to her home.  You are unable to exit the 
roundabout if you are in the inner lane and people are not courteous to let you get through.  A 
stoplight is a better option.   
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 116-19:  
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 2 of 33 

Boardmember Wall read Ordinance No. MRCFD1 116-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2020, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
Mr. Rey Sanchez, District Treasurer, provided a presentation in which he outlined the following:  

 
- MRCFD 1 Tax Levy Adoption 

• State law requires the Town to advertise and adopt the secondary property tax levy in the 
same way as the primary tax levy.  
o The levy was advertised in the newspaper and Town website. 

• Council held a Public Hearing on July 1, 2019. 
• The recommended tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 will be set at $.72 per $100 of net 

assessed valuation (NAV). 
• CFD 1 levy will collect $208,464. 

 

 
 
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 3 of 33 

- Where tax can be found on their statement 

 
 
- CFD 1 Historical Rate 

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

3.55 $3.55 $3.55 $3.28 $0.72 

Example: $100,000 home equals $72 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 4 of 33 

Councilmember Cordes inquired if the fee is increasing by $0.72.  She also inquired why is there 
a difference in fees from MRCFD1 and MRCFD2 and when does this end.  
 
Mr. Sanchez explained that the fee is being reduced to $0.72 per $100 of NAV. The reason for 
the decrease is because the debt service in MRCFD1 has decreased.  There will no longer be 
rates once there is no debt service.  Debt service is normally for 20 to 25 years.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Hawkins, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, to adopt Ordinance 
No. MRCFD1 116-19.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Boardmember Hughes:  Yes 
Boardmember Cordes:  Yes 
Boardmember Larsen:  Yes 
Boardmember Wall:  Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins: Yes 
Vice-Chairman Anderson: Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 6; No: 0 
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
On motion of Boardmember Cordes, seconded by Boardmember Hughes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 216-19:  
 
Boardmember Wall read Ordinance No. MRCFD2 216-19 by title only.  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2020, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  
 
Mr. Sanchez provided a presentation, in which he outlined the following: 
 
- Tax Levy Adoption MRCFD 2 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 5 of 33 

• State law requires the Town to advertise and adopt the secondary property tax levy in the 
same way as the primary tax levy. The levy was advertised in the newspaper and Town 
website. 

• Council held a Public Hearing on July 01, 2019. 
• The recommended tax rate for FY19/20 will be set at $3.55 per $100 of NAV.  
• CFD 2 levy will collect $763,268. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 6 of 33 

- Where tax can be found on their statement 

 
 
- CFD 2 Historical Rate Data 

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

$3.55 $3.55 $3.55 $3.28 $3.55 

Example: $100,000 home equals $355 

 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 7 of 33 

On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Hughes, to adopt Ordinance 
No. MRCFD2 216-19.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Boardmember Hughes:  Yes 
Boardmember Cordes:  Yes 
Boardmember Larsen:  Yes 
Boardmember Wall:  Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins: Yes 
Vice-Chairman Anderson: Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 6; No: 0 
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
On motion of Boardmember Larsen, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS   
 
Public Hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the proposed zone change for APN (202-
04-0530) to Highway Business Commercial (B-2) and first reading of Ordinance No. 680-19.  
 
Councilmember Wall read Ordinance No. 680-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
THE HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL (B-2) ZONE CHANGE FOR ASSESSOR PARCEL 
NUMBER 202-04-0530 (PLZ-19-19).   
 
Councilmember Wall opened the public hearing.    
 
Mr. Larry Harmer, Community Development Director, provided a presentation in which he outlined 
the following: 
 
- Case PLZ-19-19 Rezoning  

• Property located South of the intersection at Highway 287 and west of Highway 79. 
• APN# 202-04-0530 
• Rezone from Single-Family Residential (R1-6) to Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 
• 2.09 acres 

 
- Public Outreach 

• Forms of outreach 
o Mailed notice to those within 150 feet    
o Advertisement posted in local newspaper 
o Public Notice sign on site 
o Citizen Review Meeting held on June 11, 2019 
o Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing held on June 20, 2019 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 8 of 33 

- Findings 
• Proposed rezoning is consistent with the 2020 General Plan  
• Rezoning should facilitate commercial development along State Route 79    

- Recommendation 
• Town Staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval subject to the 

following conditions: 
o The development of the subject site shall be in conformance to any applicable Town 

Code and Ordinances. 
o Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to Proposition 

207. 
o Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Planning and Zoning Commission 

and Town Council. 
 
Councilmember Wall closed the public hearing.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that the second reading will be held on August 5, 2019.  
 
Public Hearing to receive citizens’ comments on a request to change setbacks for new 
units, replacement units, and auxiliary buildings in Caliente Del Sol Units I, II, III, & IV and 
first reading of Ordinance No. 681-19. 
 
Councilmember Wall read Ordinance No. 681-19 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
CERTAIN NON-CONFORMING USES OF PROPERTY WITHIN UNITS I, II, III, & IV OF 
CALIENTE DEL SOL, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
Councilmember Wall opened the public hearing.   
 
Mr. Harmer provided a presentation in which he outlined the following: 

 
- Case PZ-19-17 Amendments  

• Community Development staff has been working with the Caliente Del Sol Property 
Owners Association (CPOA) regarding a request to change setbacks for: 
o New units  
o Replacement units 
o Auxiliary buildings  



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 9 of 33 

 
 
- Background 

• Old setbacks allowed for a 1-foot setback on the livable side and 2-foot setback on the 
carport side from the property lines  

• 2017: Setbacks not code compliant with the 2006 Building Code and placed a 5-foot 
setback on the side of the lots for new and replacement units   

• 2018: Staff contacted other municipalities and researched best practices 
• 2019: CPOA approved the recommended changes 

- Proposal 
• The Building Code allowed for modifications to the setbacks with three additional 

requirements:  
o Propane and gas to be removed from all new and replaced Park Model units 
o New and replacement units have an age requirement of no older than five years 
o All new and replaced Park Model units have carbon monoxide detectors  

- Ordinance Details 
• The Front Setback shall be two feet (which is back-of-sidewalk) from property line. 
• The Rear Setback shall be five feet from property line. 
• The Side Yard Setback for interior Park Models, or other fixed Recreational Vehicle units, 

shall be three feet; and two feet for street side yard (which is back-of-sidewalk). 
• Any new or replacement Park Model Unit shall be no more than five years in age from the 

date of original construction. 
• Propane and gas are to be removed from all new and replacement Park Model units 
• All new and replacement Park Model units have carbon monoxide detectors.  

- Public Outreach 
• Building Safety and the Fire Department staff met with Caliente residents and its board 

members 
• Two Council meetings on issue and proposal 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 10 of 33 

• Staff went to Council & Caliente Board meeting for the final approval from the residents, 
Town, and Staff.  

• The CPOA held a Citizen Meeting in February 2019 at Caliente Casa Del Sol 
• Advertisement posted in local newspaper 
• Public hearings/readings 

- Exhibit A 

 
 

 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 11 of 33 

 
- Findings 

• Staff and Planning and Zoning Commission offer the following findings for the consideration 
by the Town Council: 
o The proposed amendments are consistent with the needs of the community and the 

Town. 
o The proposed amendments of the site should facilitate ongoing development and 

replacement efforts of the local residents. 
- Recommendations 

• The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to conditions: 
o Any Additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

 
Vice-Mayor Anderson expressed his appreciation for all the work that was done and the 
partnership in working with Caliente.  On the onset, this was a difficult issue and he is happy to 
see a resolution.  
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired if there were any alterations to the drawings from the time they 
met with Caliente in 2018.  
 
Mr. Harmer stated that they fine-tuned some items such as defining how things were measured; 
however, there were no alterations.   
 
Councilmember Wall closed the public hearing.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that the second reading will be held on August 5, 2019.  
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 12 of 33 

CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Resolution No. 1709 -19:  
 

Councilmember Wall read Resolution No. 1709-19 by title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ACCEPTING 
TRIBAL GAMING FUNDS GRANTED BY THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY.  

 
b. Resolution No. 1710-19:  
 

Councilmember Wall read Resolution No. 1710-19 by title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUCSON POLICE 
DEPARTMENT REGARDING THE ARIZONA HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA.  

 
c. Ratification of expenditures for Truly Painting & More LLC, for repair and painting 

services to multiple Town facilities (Town Hall, Kokopelli and the Silver King 
Marketplace) in a final to not exceed amount of $45,906.37 for all locations.  (Chris 
Salas)  

 
d. Approval of the June 3, June 17, June 19 and June 21, 2019 Town Council Meeting 

minutes. 

e. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. May 29, 2019 Historic District Advisory Commission Meeting minutes 
 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda as written, with the exception of Item c. and Item e i.  
 

c. Ratification of expenditures for Truly Painting & More LLC, for repair and painting 
services to multiple Town facilities (Town Hall, Kokopelli and the Silver King 
Marketplace) in a final to not exceed amount of $45,906.37 for all locations.   

 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired what work was done on the Kokopelli since there is no longer 
a building.  
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Public Works Director, explained that work was done to the hair salon, north of 
where the Kokopelli stood.  They removed the beams, repaired the adobe, and painted to match.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins asked that the description be clear in the future. 
  



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 13 of 33 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) 
for ratification of expenditures for Truly Painting & More LLC, for repair and painting services to 
multiple Town facilities (Town Hall, Kokopelli and the Silver King Marketplace) in a final to not 
exceed amount of $45,906.37 for all locations.   
 

e. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. May 29, 2019 Historic District Advisory Commission Meeting minutes 
 
Councilmember Hughes asked for clarification on the boundary lines for the Redevelopment Plan. 
She read an excerpt from the minutes pertaining to the Redevelopment Plan and Opportunity 
zone.    
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff will provide this information to Council.  He stated that most of Main 
Street is in the Redevelopment District.  
 
Councilmember Hughes inquired about the opportunity zone.  She was provided a map that 
showed all of downtown and explained the boundaries.  She previously asked that the Opportunity 
Zone Map be added to the website and it is still not uploaded.  This is her second request to have 
the Opportunity Zone Map uploaded to the Town’s website by the end of the week.  
 
Councilmember Hughes asked that Mr. Harmer provide Historic District Advisory Commission 
Vice-Chairman Adams and Commissioner Carroll Michael with the corrected information and that 
he update his materials to explain how the Town’s position can help with issues on redevelopment 
and how these things overlap (Redevelopment Plan, Opportunity Map, and Infill District).      
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Redevelopment Zone does not work with the opportunity zones.  
One is a state designation and one is a federal designation and cover very different things.  The  
opportunity zone crosses boundaries with the Redevelopment Zone.  The GIS Department will 
place the Opportunity Zone Map on the website by the end of the week.  Mr. Harmer will speak 
with the HDAC Chair and Vice-Chair regarding the three unique areas and how they interact with 
one another.  
 
Councilmember Cordes asked that the deadlines be included for those who wish to participate in 
the opportunity zone.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff will provide Council a presentation on the opportunity zone.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hughes, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
accept the May 29, 2019 Historic District Advisory Commission Meeting minutes.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
Discussion and possible action on the proposed improvements for the roundabout at State 
Route 287 and State Route 79B.  
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 14 of 33 

Mr. Chris Salas, Public Works Director, stated that the Town had a public outreach meeting on 
July 10, 2019 and discussed the following: 
- Results of the Design Concept Report (DCR)  
- How the criteria was created for matrix scoring for all of the alternatives and the alternatives 

that were discontinued 
- CIP T-14 Roundabout Improvements State Route (SR) 287 and SR 79B 

• Purpose and Need, Design Concept Report (DCR) / Environmental Document and Joint 
Project Agreement 

 
 
- Alternatives 

• The DCR evaluates five alternatives: 
o No-Build 
o Four build alternatives: 
 Three roundabouts in various configurations 
 One signalized T-intersection 

- Design concept alternatives considered and discontinued 
• A single signalized intersection connecting SR287, SR79B, Main Street and Florence 

Heights Drive at a single point 
• Two signalized intersections, one at Main Street / SR287 / SR79B and a southern one at 

State Route 79B/Florence Heights Drive 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 15 of 33 

 
 

• Would take out the church 
• Alignment will not work  
• Eliminated as a fatal flaw 

 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired why they couldn’t move the curve more north to avoid having 
to encroach on the church.  He stated that there is ample room to move Main Street to the west. 
He does not agree with having a roundabout and it is a waste of money.  His preference would 
be an intersection.  There are minimal accidents in this area.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that it will not meet the geometric requirements outlined for design speed, site 
visibility and stopping distance.  There is no way to do an intersection or alignment without having 
to take someone’s property.  This intersection did not meet the stacking distance requirements 
between the signals and operations.  This option was removed as a fatal flaw because it did not 
meet the criteria.    



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 16 of 33 

 
 

 These alternatives resulted in geometry and operations that were not optimal or desirable.  
o Thus, those alternatives were discontinued.  

 The 4 new alternatives were developed for evaluation in this revised 
document, without the same geometric and right of way constraints 

- Design Criteria 
• Capacity / Level of Service 
• Queue lengths 
• Travel time 
• Access and circulation 
• Multimodal accommodations (i.e. pedestrians and bicycles) 
• Safety 
• Right-of-way 
• Irrigation canal impacts 
• Drainage patterns 
• Environmental impact area 
• Construction costs 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 17 of 33 

- Alternative Analysis 
 

 
- Alternative 3 scored the highest 

• Not weighted 
- Public Involvement General Concerns 

• Everyone agreed that the intersection needs to be upgraded, regardless of the preferred 
solution 

• Private property access – loss of access 
• Private property of affected parties still having public involvement as the process continues 

o Will meet with individuals independently 
• Drainage – the existing intersection already has some drainage concerns 
• Will this affect properties along Main Street from Keating St. to Celaya St.?  

o This is not a final design 
o If properties are affected, will meet with the individuals 
o Will have additional public outreach 

• Could there be more accidents in the first few weeks/months when the intersection is 
changed? (Specifically, to roundabouts) 
o It is possible for an opportunity due to confusion  

- Public Involvement Specific Concerns 
• Roundabouts are dangerous  

o Statistics show the roundabouts are more safe 
• Roundabouts are confusing  
• Roundabouts are more difficult for older citizens to negotiate 
• One resident would rather have longer delays versus the complexity of a roundabout 
• Will the curbs on the roundabout be mountable and/or damaged by semi-trucks? 

o Yes, the roundabout will contain curbs but will be designed for semi-truck use 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 18 of 33 

• There are a lot of semi-trucks that travel through the intersection, will the semi-trucks be 
able to negotiate the roundabout? 
o Yes, the turning template takes into consideration of large trucks 

• If the preferred alternative is implemented one person would recommend just a single lane 
roundabout for both roundabouts 
o Will not meet the needs of future growth – capacity issue 

• How do pedestrians cross the roundabout? 
o They are user family and it is possible 

• Will the school buses be able to negotiate the roundabouts 
o Yes, it will be part of the design template 

- Public Involvement Videos 
• Existing Conditions 

o Everyone agreed that something needs to be done 
• Alternative 4 – Traffic Signal with Stop Control at Florence Heights 

o Performed poorly  
o Large amounts of backup 

• Alternative 3 – Double Roundabout 
o Flow traffic was the best 

- Public Involvement Positives 
• Everyone agreed that the intersection needs to be upgraded, regardless of the preferred 

solution 
• There were no comments on the scoring criteria, rationale of the DCR, or anything 

mentioned regarding the DCR 
• A resident from Colorado said that while she and other residents didn’t originally like 

roundabouts, after the installation the City/Town loved them – they were great 
• Solution should facilitate economic growth and development of the Downtown 
• Other municipalities love roundabouts and the economic growth that occurred 
• No long delays – help economic development 

- Preferred Alternative – Alternative #3 
• Two Roundabouts 
• One main multi-lane roundabout and a single lane roundabout at Florence Heights 
• Florence Heights shifted further south to provide additional separation 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 19 of 33 

 
 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he prefers the intersection rather than having roundabouts.  He 
agreed with Councilmember Hawkins’ comments.  He explained how the intersection could be 
moved west to accommodate the intersection.  
 
Discussion occurred on the issues with having an intersection versus having roundabouts.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town was asked to review the DCR and ADOT would like the Town 
to approve it.  It is not the full design of the intersection.  The designer has not been selected yet; 
however, it does a quality job of analyzing the intersection, the travel demand, movement safety, 
etc.  The consultant, with their team, has provided an analysis on four alternatives.  The option 
preferred by Vice-Mayor Anderson and Councilmember Hawkins has been eliminated.  This is 
not a Town study, and ultimately, ADOT will choose which improvement is provided. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Council requested that additional outreach be done.  An additional public 
meeting was conducted as well as individual meetings with property owners.  The next step 
following the Town adopting the DCR will be for ADOT to hire a consultant to complete final design 
where more finite answer and more outreach will occur.    
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if Alternative 3 would not be eliminated.  
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 20 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley stated that ADOT’s consultant stated that Alternative 3 is the preferred alternative.   
If Council were to accept the DCR and its results, it would accept the preferred alternative for the 
individual study.          
 
Councilmember Wall inquired what the ramifications will be if Council does not approve the DCR 
at this time.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that ADOT will then need to decide if they will move forward with the project 
or not, but the Town would be responsible to pay for the design.  The Town agreed years ago that 
ADOT would pay for the DCR, design and environmental study of the project.  The actual 
construction is the responsibility of the Town.  The Town has gone through two different entities 
to receive a portion of the funding to offset the Town’s cost for the project and has received 
approximately $3.25 million in funding thus far.      
 
Councilmember Wall stated that her biggest concerns are the following: 
- Citizens’ concerns with regards to the design  
- Are the citizens are satisfied through the design process 
- Council mitigates impact on those citizens.   
 
Councilmember Wall understands that not everyone likes roundabouts and that they cannot make 
everyone happy.  It is important that they make everyone happy in that they are making an effort 
to mitigate their individual concerns.  She can support the DCR under those circumstances.    
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that her concern is with the mechanic shop and changes that were 
made previously which have resulted in him having water issues on his property.  She agrees with 
his concern and the ways to alleviate the water issues at his business.  She is concerned about 
limiting access to someone’s property.  She wants to ensure that people have the same amount 
of entrances and exists as they did before any changes were made.   
 
Councilmember Larsen is concerned about the driving distance to turn around to get into a 
business.  She would like easy accessibility to other businesses or easy access to make short 
turn loops.  She understands that an intersection is not feasible and that the Town has to work 
with ADOT.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that drivers adapt to changes and find alternate ways to gain access to other 
locations.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins reiterated his concerns, specifically with the ample room to move the 
project over so it does not encroach on other businesses.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that there may be another alternative, and if so, inquired if the 
public would be notified.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that it would not be another alternative, but a morphing of Alternative 3.  He 
stated that if there were a significant change they would do public outreach.   
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 21 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town worked with ADOT on another project just south of this 
proposed project and this project was initially scheduled for a roundabout and ultimately ended 
being a T-intersection.  He stated that something similar could happen with the project once the 
environmental study is completed.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired how many other engineers, aside from ADOT, have reviewed 
the DCR.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that a private consultant team, Mr. Billingsley, and himself all reviewed the DCR.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired in Mr. Salas opinion, there is no way to connect Florence 
Heights with State Route 287.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that the connection cannot be made because it does not meet the Aster Design 
Criteria or without involving private property.     
 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (Yes: 4: 
Wall, Larsen Cordes, Hughes; No: 2: Anderson, Hawkins) to accept the recommendations made 
by the Arizona Department of Transportation based on their DCR evaluation. 
 
Ordinance No. 676-19:  

 
Councilmember Wall read Ordinance No. 676-19 by title only.  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT 
TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE 
THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2020.  

 
Mr. Rey Sanchez, Finance Director, provided a presentation in which he outlined the following:  
 
- Tax Levy Presentation 

• Arizona Revised Statutes §42-17107 requires that whenever there is a proposed primary 
property tax increase a Truth in Taxation hearing must be held.   

• The Council held a Public Hearing on July 1, 2019.  
• The recommended tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 is $1.0738 per $100 dollars of net 

assessed valuation.   
• The levy will collect $1,166,611. 
• For homeowners, the combined primary tax levy from all taxing jurisdictions may not 

exceed 1% assessed evaluation. 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 22 of 33 

 
 
- Percentage of property tax 

• Florence 8.9% 
• Pinal County 31.9% 
• Florence Unified School District 39.2% 
• Central Arizona College 17.4% 
• Other 3.9%  

 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 23 of 33 

- FY 19/20 Property Tax Rates 
Jurisdiction Primary Tax Rate Secondary Tax Rate* Total Property Tax Rate
Town of Florence 1.0740 0.0000 1.0740 
City of Casa Grande 1.1244 0.2752 1.3996 
City of Coolidge 1.8759 0.0000 1.8759 
Town of Queen Creek 1.9500 0.0000 1.9500 
City of Apache Junction* 0.0000 3.2500 3.2500 
City of Eloy* 1.0867 2.4999 3.5866 
City of Maricopa 4.7845 1.1220 5.9065 

 
*Secondary Tax Rates include bond debts and taxes charged by fire districts for those jurisdictions 
that do not operate a fire department.  They do NOT include tax rates charged by other entities, 
Boards, or other districts (e.g., Flood Control, Street Light Improvement, or Community Facilities 
Districts). 
 
- Primary Property Tax - Historical Rate 

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

$1.1182 $1.1182 $1.1345 $1.1060 $1.0738 

Example: $100,000 home equals $107.38   

 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Hughes, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 676-19. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Hughes:  Yes 
Councilmember Cordes:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Larsen: Yes 
Vice-Mayor Anderson:  Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 6; No:  0 
 
Ordinance No. 677-19 

 
Councilmember Wall read Ordinance No. 677-19 by title only.  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICTS (1, 2, & 3) SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR STREET LIGHT OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY 
OF JUNE 2020.  
Mr. Sanchez provided a presentation in which he outlined the following: 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 24 of 33 

- SLID Tax Levy Adoption 
• Arizona Revised Statutes §48-616 requires that the governing body make annual 

statements and estimates of expenses of the District that shall be provided for by the levy 
and collection of ad valorem taxes on the assessed value of all the property real and 
personal in the District.  

• The Town advertised the levy increase in the newspaper and Town website. 
• Council held a Public Hearing on July 1, 2019. 
 

 
 
- SLID History 

• SLID Creation Dates 
o SLID 1 created by Resolution No. 965-05 on October 24, 2005  
o SLID 2 created by Resolution No. 985-06 on February 6, 2006 
o SLID 3 created by Resolution No. 1053-07 on April 16, 2007 

• SLID 1 and 2 have levied enough taxes between the creation years and 2012 to pay 
2019/2020 electrical cost and maintenance fees.  For these Districts, a levy has not been 
assessed since 2012. 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 25 of 33 

• SLID 3 has not required a levy since 2012, but there are not enough funds to cover the 
projected expenses for Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

 
 
- SLID 3 Tax Levy 

• SLID 3 is the only District seeking a levy increase.  



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 26 of 33 

• SLID 3 recommended tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 is $.1207 per $100 dollars of net 
assessed valuation.  
o A $100,000 home would pay $12.07.  

• The levy will collect $22,000. 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that the lights in the downtown area cost $80,248 annually and the 
lights in the Anthem are cost $87,841 annually.  The difference is minimal; however, the SLIDs 
are required to pay for their own lights, while the lights in the downtown area are paid for out of 
HURF.  He stated that all of the streetlights should be paid for from HURF funds.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the challenge is that the Town’s development ordinances and the Town 
Code requires that all new development and subdivisions have SLIDs, which is what has 
occurred.  Secondarily, the development agreements require SLIDs, which are contracts, which 
are why the SLIDs exist in Anthem.  The idea that the Town should not have SLIDs is folly by the 
Town Code and our contracts.  Per the Development Code, this would be the same requirement 
for any new development to have SLIDs in place.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated if it is Council’s desire, the Town could sponsor drives or efforts to enlist the 
public in the other parts of Florence to form new SLIDs.  With regards to Anthem, it is to remain 
status quo.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he is not suggesting that new SLIDs be formed, but rather that 
the Town come up with a way to charge streetlights fairly to all Florence residents.  He stated that 
the streetlights can be paid for with HURF.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that they pay a high amount in HOA fees to live in Anthem.  She 
inquired why the streetlights are not included in the HOA fees as some of the other maintenance 
items.  
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the streetlights are not included as part of the HOA fee because the 
streetlights are not in the common area but rather on Town right-of-ways and Town property.  The 
common areas are owned by the community and the lights in the common areas are paid for by 
the HOA.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the streetlights are improvements that are accepted by the Town, 
through the acceptance program, to accept and maintenance through perpetuity.  This is a 
common practice throughout the State of Arizona as the development community needed a way 
to offset security concerns with lighting in neighborhoods.  Municipalities would have denied the 
amount of lighting because it would be able to afford to pay for those electrical costs associated 
with those lights.   A section was added to the Arizona Revised Statutes that speaks specifically 
to SLIDs, the requirements of SLIDs and how they can be used.  They are a funding mechanism 
similar to CFDs.    
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she agrees with Vice-Mayor Anderson’s comments.  She 
inquired if there is any possibility to provide a percentage of funding from the Town to help offset 
the streetlight expense in the SLIDs so that it is fair to all residents (i.e. downtown area has four 
streetlights per street so that same percentage of payment would be applied to the Anthem area).   



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 27 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley stated that HURF funds are specifically used for roads.  He stated that they can 
use HURF funds for streetlights because they are required on the poles adjacent to traffic signals 
for safety reasons.  Streetlights are required on certain types of roadways, specifically in 
intersections of urbanized areas.  Anthem has a lot more lighting and not only on intersections 
such as in the downtown area.  You cannot do an apples-to-apples comparison because the 
service is not the same.  The reason for the increase in cost in the downtown area is due to repair 
and replacement of aging infrastructure.   HURF funds are utilized to run the Streets and Public 
Works Department.  Any monies used to pay for the streetlights from the HURF fund will need to 
be replaced with General Fund monies.   
 
Mr. Billingsley explained how the SLIDs work, how the funds are used to pay for the streetlights, 
and the reason for an increase in costs.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if the Council has the ability to revoke the bids.  
 
Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that he will need to research that possibility; 
however, there are development agreements that address SLIDs and the Town Code requires 
SLIDs.  There would be other implications that would affect the Town’s current long-term 
agreements and its obligations under the Town Code.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that per A.RS. § 48-616, there is the ability to revoke a SLID so long as the 
municipality is willing to absorb the total cost of the lighting and its maintenance in perpetuity; 
however, this does not address the contractual obligations with the landowners and the 
homeowners themselves as well as what is required under the Town Code.  
 
Councilmember Larsen explained her reasons as to why she does not believe the fees are fair.  
She would like an analysis done as to what lights would be required and their associated costs 
and move that cost from the HURF fund to cover the deficit.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that this amount has not been budgeted for.  It is clear in the budget as to 
what the HURF funds are budgeted for this fiscal year.  A budget amendment would need to be 
done.  He is unclear if this is legal to do and contractually, what would need to be done.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there are also time constraints that need to be considered as these 
figures need to be forwarded to Pinal County, and there are on a strict timeline.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that there are definite deadlines that need to be met and she proposes 
that the Council move forward and research what can be done in the future.  Otherwise, the Town 
is facing a $22,000 electrical bill that has not been budgeted for.  
 
Mr. Sanchez stated that there are time constraints in which to have this item approved as he has 
three days to submit the paperwork to Pinal County.  
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired why staff is waiting so long to bring these requests before 
Council, specifically because they know when the timeline is.   
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 28 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley stated that tax rates are set the same by law every year as it relates to the budget, 
budget approvals and the budget process.  The budget calendar went out in December 2018 and 
updates were provided in February and April 2019.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has a typical budget process; everything was properly placed 
on the agendas and there were discussions and many meetings.  Everyone knew the summation 
of this would be approval of a budget and setting of the tax rates.  The Town does this at the same 
time every single year as does every other community.  The dates for the public hearings and any 
other meetings were fully disclosed.  There is nothing that is being done at the last minute.       
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she was on the Budget Committee and they did not discuss 
SLIDs, the possibility of dissolving the SLIDs or a possible increase.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town did not know about it at that time.  
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she does not agree with the Council having limited time to 
consider the SLID increase with such a short deadline.  Council is not being provided ample time 
to consider other options and does not understand why Council needs to vote on it since they 
have no say and it appears that the decision has already been made.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Council, as far back as 2005, made the decision to use SLIDs.  The 
Town has contracts and development agreements as well as the Town Code that speak to this 
solution.  The Town has gone forward using the CFDs and SLIDs every year.  The SLIDs are 
analyzed what their ability is and what the costs are on an annual basis.  They have not had to 
levy in the past because of the sizable amounts that were levied between 2005 and 2012.  Staff 
first became aware of what the deficit was going to be last month when the valuations were 
completed.  Staff presented this to Council at the July 1, 2019 Town Council meeting, which was 
also the first public hearing.  This is the second public hearing.  Staff has not withheld information 
nor failed to provide ample opportunity for discussion.   Staff has followed the stated laws.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if there is not a $20,000 cushion in the $40 million budget to pay 
for the SLIDs.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Council can make a decision to amend the budget and to move the 
funds how they see fit.  The challenge is that the Town chose to utilize SLIDs and have contracts 
and ordinances to that effect.  That is the way that staff has proceeded.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that they want to change that and are looking at the Town Manager 
as to how to change it.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that the SLIDs are already in place and they do not want to add a 
SLID to the downtown area.  She is concerned because those who first moved in paid the fees 
up front and now, they are having to pay again.  She inquired why the newer residents are not 
being asked to pay for the fees.  She is under the impression that the new-builds have not paid 
their share as of yet.  
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 29 of 33 

Mr. Billingsley explained that is how taxing works and is the cost of doing business.  He explained 
how the rates were set when the SLID was first formed and taxed at the rate of $1.20.  The Town 
had never done a SLID before.  After several years, it was determined that the Town was 
collecting too much and the then-Council decided to stop charging and spend the money doown 
until a balance could be seen.  They will now charge a rate that coincides with the expenses on 
an annual basis.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that eventually all three SLIDs will have a rate to cover the expenses.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff will have much better data and will charge the appropriate rates to 
cover the expenses.  The charge will be actual cost plus 10%.  He stated that the Town will have 
two additional SLIDs (SLID 4 and SLID 5) that will come before the Council in the near future.  
 
Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that Pulte has been working on the SLIDs and 
acquiring signatures.  They need to have a certain percentage and number of signatures 
collected, which is what they have obtained.  
 
Councilmember Larsen asked that an analysis be done of the streetlights within the SLIDs.  She 
will continue to push for some type of equality with regards to SLIDs.  She stated that is unfair 
that the HURF funds are used to pay for streetlights in the downtown area and not for the entire 
Town.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Wall, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 677-19.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Hughes:  Yes 
Councilmember Cordes:  Yes 
Councilmember Larsen: No 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Anderson:  No 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 4; No: 2  
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1711-19:  

 
Councilmember Wall read Resolution No. 1711-19 by title only.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
A TOWN CORE INCENTIVE DISTRICT PLAN REQUEST FOR PINAL COUNTY APN 200-44-
0690 AND APN 200-44-0700 (CASE PZID-19-01). 

 
Mr. Harmer provided a presentation in which he outlined the following: 

 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 30 of 33 

- Properties 
• 155 West 11th Street; APN 200-44-0690 
• 110 North Willow Street; APN 200-44-0700 

 
 
- Request 

• 55 West 11th Street 
o Reduction of lot width from 75’ to 57.67’ 
o Reduction of required front yard setback from 20’ to 5’ (this is the existing condition) 

• 110 North Willow Street 
o Reduction of the required side yard setback from 12’ to 6’ (currently sits approximately 

11’ on 55 North 11th Street property) 

 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 31 of 33 

- Findings 
• The Town Core Infill Incentive Plan was lawfully adopted, and the District created under 

the rules and guidelines established by the State of Arizona. 
• The Town Core Infill Incentive Plan seeks to help remedy situations within the Infill 

Incentive District pertaining to: undeveloped lots; vacant structures; obsolete/inappropriate 
parcel configurations; and relatively lower investment activity. 

• The subject parcel is within the Infill Incentive District and the conditions and circumstances 
applicable to this parcel support this request.    

• This request supports The Town of Florence 2020 General Plan Housing Element 
Objectives to: 

• Promote proper maintenance of both private and public properties and educate and assist 
property owners whose properties do not meet existing standards; and 

• Encourage the redevelopment and/or substantial revitalization of existing residential areas. 
• The modifications noted are appropriate and will render both properties legal and 

marketable.  
• The Planning and Zoning Commission did condition that the application not be forwarded 

to the Town Council until it was brought into conformance for weed removal and general 
maintenance of the property. 

- Recommendations 
• The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Mayor and Town Council a 

favorable action for PZID-19-01, subject to any conditions deemed appropriate by the Town 
Council. 

 
Councilmember Hughes thanked the Community Development Department for bringing this item 
forward for Council’s consideration.  
 
Councilmember Cordes inquired how the owner of the two-story building gained the title, 
specifically because of how the property lines were incorrect.  
 
Mr. Harmer stated that he is unable to respond as the Town was not party to the sale or acquisition 
of either property.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the issue is between the person purchasing the property and 
the financial institution.   
 
Mr. Harmer stated that he was unable to find anything in the records of how the transaction 
occurred or when it was sold.  He is unable to answer as property sales do not come before the 
Town.  This type of situation is not uncommon for the downtown area.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that the property owners may need to go back to the title company 
and ask how they were able to get a clear title when the property did not have a clear title.   
 
Ms. Cindy Sills, Broker, Belva’s Real Estate, stated that she represents the owner of 155 Willow.  
She stated that at one point, the properties were one property and was owned by the White family.  
The property was purchased by someone else and foreclosed.  When they were foreclosed on by 
two different lenders, they became two different properties, and this is where the issue occurred.  



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 32 of 33 

She stated that sometimes when a property is sold or purchased, a survey is not done, and the 
issue will not appear until a survey is done.       
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) 
to adopt Resolution No. 1711-19.   
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has a new rehab truck and range trailer.  The Police and Fire 
Departments came up with solutions to provide resources that the Town could not afford.  They 
repurposed an existing Town vehicle that was no longer being utilized, purchased a used range 
trailer and had ACI outfit the vehicle.  This was done at a low cost and with the a limited budget.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager has been appointed as 
Chairman to the Digital Strategies Advisory Board for the International Cities and County 
Manager’s Association.  The Board influences members and perspective members with ICMA, 
through digital platforms such as ICMA.org and social media.  The Board also helps to identify 
knowledge sharing needs, local government professionals and provides feedback on the current 
member experiences as well as ideas and future applications.  Advisory Board Members serve 
ICMA and the digital committee by making active contributions in their areas of expertise and 
encouraging colleagues to do the same.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that according to Arizona Big Media, Florence was rated as one of the five 
best places to retire in Arizona being rated as No. 3.  He read a section of the article published, 
which stated: 

“If small towns and low rents are your thing, Florence is an excellent place to hang your hat.  
Located in Pinal County, Florence is one of the oldest Town’s in the state.  It has more than 25 
buildings on the National Register of Historic places, adding to its charm the quaint small town is 
surrounded by desert mountains and beautiful scenery.  Median rent prices is approximately $780 
per month and whether you live in a historic building or an upscale community you will enjoy a 
large comfortable home and great weather.”        

CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no public comments.   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Larsen is proud of Florence for being No. 3 on the list.  She also thanked Mr. 
Billingsley for thinking outside of the box and for allowing the Police and Fire Departments to outfit 
the truck and trailer.   
 
Councilmember Cordes congratulated Mr. Bitter on his appointment.  She also thanked Mr. Chris 
Salas, Public Works Director, on his public meeting.  
 



 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 15, 2019 
Page 33 of 33 

Councilmember Hughes thanked the Pinal County Board of Supervisors for approving their share 
of the CDBG funding for $989,036 that will be awarded to upgrade water infrastructure in 
downtown Florence.    She appreciates Pinal County’s support.   
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that part of the article that Mr. Billingsley read was a report on the 
analysis of impediments to the Fair Housing Choice Report.  The report identified five major 
needs: 
- Renovation and repair 

• Assistance for low income elderly residents and residents with disabilities 
- Infrastructure improvements 

• Water and wastewater 
- Affordable housing 
- Housing services to the homeless 
- Job training and employment support 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson thanked Councilmember Wall for her assistance in running the meeting.  
He also thanked the well wishes that he received.  He is on his way to recovery and thanked 
everyone for their support.  
 
Councilmember Wall thanked everyone for their support.  She wished a Happy Birthday to Ms. 
Jennifer Evans.  She also wished Councilmember Hughes a belated happy birthday as well.     

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:19 p.m. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on July 15, 2019, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 













































 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a. 

MEETING DATE:   August 19, 2019  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Larry C. Harmer,  
                                     Community Development Director               
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 682-19 Florence Gardens Wall and 
Fence Height Overlay PZ-19-1 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject: Ordinance No. 682-19: Florence Gardens Zoning Overlay Request             Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019   
Page 1 of 3 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Ordinance No. 682-19:  AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AN OVERLAY FOR FLORENCE GARDENS UNITS A, B, C, D, E, AND F.  
 
OVERVIEW AND ANALYSIS: 
 
Community Development staff has been working with the Florence Gardens 
Manufactured Home Association (FGMHA) regarding a request to increase the front yard 
fence height from three feet to four feet and to allow up to 18 foot height for golf course 
screen/protection fences to protect property from golf balls from the Three Parks Fairways 
golf course.  The overlay would apply to Units A-F.   The complete draft overlay is attached 
to this staff report. 
 
Over many years, several residents in Florence Gardens have erected front yard fences 
in the required front yard that exceed the allowable three-foot height in the Town of 
Florence Development Code.  The primary reason has been to allow a larger roaming 
area for family pets.  The FGMHA regulations mirror the Town code.  Staff was contacted 
by the Park Manager to discuss the possibility of amending the Code.  We met with the 
manager and later with the FGMHA Board of Directors and agreed that a zoning overlay 
would be the best solution and, if approved, would allow the FGMHA to amend their 
standards to accommodate the change without jeopardizing the intent of the Development 
Code for any future manufactured home development. 
 



 

Subject: Ordinance No. 682-19: Florence Gardens Zoning Overlay Request             Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019   
Page 2 of 3 

Errant golf-ball protection screening has also been installed by many residents that border 
the Three Parks Fairways golf course.  These, too, were constructed without permits or 
any structural review. 
 
Staff has drafted overlay language to accommodate the request that has been reviewed 
by FGHMA.  Their Board formally approved the overlay earlier this year.  Excerpts from 
the draft that addresses the specifics of fence height are: 
 

 The maximum height of any fence in a required front yard shall be four feet, with 
no greater than two feet being opaque. The fence may be constructed of non-
slatted chain link, split rail, wrought iron, or pickets.  Natural or synthetic materials 
may be used.  In rear and side yards, the maximum height shall be four feet.  If 
chain link is used for the front, side and rear property lines, slats are not permitted. 

 
 The maximum height of a golf course screen fence for an interior side yard or rear 

yard is eighteen feet (18’) and may be constructed of chain link or nursery screen 
material.  If chain link is used, slats are not permitted. A Building Permit must be 
obtained from the Town of Florence prior to installation.  A Building Permit 
application must be accompanied by appropriate engineering documentation. 

 
Additional criteria can be found in Exhibit “A” of the attached Ordinance No. 682-19. 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission offers the following findings for the consideration 
of the Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the needs of the community and 

the Town. 
 

2. The proposed amendments should facilitate ongoing development of lots within 
Florence Gardens. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Town Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised 
Statutes regarding public notification and public participation. A notice for the Planning 
and Zoning Commission Public Hearing was advertised in the local Town paper and the 
Town’s website. Meetings and public outreach for this overlay were conducted with the 
cooperation of the Florence Gardens Manufactured Home Association. 
 
The tentative Planning and Zoning Commission/Town Council meeting schedule for this 
application is as follows: 
 
July 18, 2019                Planning and Zoning Public Hearing 
 
August 5, 2019   Town Council Public Hearing and 1st Reading 



 

Subject: Ordinance No. 682-19: Florence Gardens Zoning Overlay Request             Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019   
Page 3 of 3 

August 19, 2019   Town Council and 2nd Reading/Action 
 
All meetings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers – 775 North Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona 85132. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Approval of the Florence Gardens Overlay will facilitate use of lots contained therein.  This 
will have limited or no financial impact on the Town. 
 
A “NO” VOTE WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Florence Gardens Overlay would not be approved.  
 
A “YES” VOTE WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Florence Gardens Overlay would be approved and would affect all lots contained 
therein.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adoption of Ordinance No. 682-19.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 682-19 
Exhibit A 



ORDINANCE NO.  682-19 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING CERTAIN USES OF 
PROPERTY WITHIN UNITS A THROUGH F OF FLORENCE 
GARDENS .   

WHEREAS, the development known as Florence Gardens Units A, B, C, 
D, E, and F has recognized the need to modify certain allowed wall and fence 
heights in an effort to accommodate upgrades to individual parcels and the 
manufactured home development, as a whole; and 

WHEREAS, a request to change the existing wall and fence height 
requirements has been proposed and a public hearing has been held by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found this change 
is in conformance with the intent of the 2020 General Plan and the Town of 
Florence Development Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the 
Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation for the 
Florence Gardens Overlay; and 

WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council 
of the Town of Florence and the recommended Florence Gardens Overlay has 
been found to be appropriate and further found to promote the health, safety and 
welfare of the residents of the Town and its orderly growth. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

The conditions contained in Exhibit “A” shall be allowed and titled §150.071 
Overlay District, Florence Gardens, and shall be unique to Florence Gardens 
Units A, B, C, D, E, and F. 

All other/new buildings, structures, sites and uses shall comply with the Town of 
Florence Development Code §150-056, “Manufactured Home Subdivision”, as 
existing on this date, or as may be amended or replaced. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence this 19th day of August 2019. 



______________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

1 
 

FLORENCE GARDENS EXHIBIT “A” 
August 19, 2019 

 
§ 150.071 Overlay District; Florence Gardens 
 
(A) Purpose 
 

(1) To promote and protect the health, safety and welfare of the residents of Florence 
Gardens while recognizing the uniqueness of the community.  This overlay 
provides for modification of development criteria contained within the Town of 
Florence Development Code that recognizes that uniqueness.  Where not 
specifically addressed in this overlay, the Town of Florence Development Code 
prevails. 

 
(B) Applicability 
 

(1) This Overlay applies to all common areas and privately held properties contained 
within the development known as “Florence Gardens, Units A, B, C, D, E and F” 
within the Town of Florence, Arizona, and recorded as such with Pinal County, 
Arizona. 

 
(C) Definitions 
 

(1) The definitions contained herein are in addition to those contained in the Town of 
Florence Development Code and apply specifically to the Florence Gardens 
Mobile Home Association.   

 
Corner Lot. A lot adjoining two or more streets at their intersections. No walls, 

buildings or other obstructions to view, more than two feet in height, shall be placed on 
any corner lot within a triangular area formed by the street right-of-way lines and a line 
connecting them at points 25 feet from the intersection of the street right-of-way lines. 
 

Front Yard Setback. (also, Required Front Yard)  Minimum required 
unoccupied setback distance as measured from the Street Right-of-way to the closest 
point of the foundation or any supporting post or pillar of any building or structure related 
thereto of the building envelope for the Mobile or Manufactured Home and extends the 
full-width of the lot.   In the case of Florence Gardens, that distance is ten feet (10’). 
 

Golf Course Screen Fence. Screen fencing that protects private property from 
errant golf balls for lots that back onto, or are immediately adjacent to, the Three Parks 
Fairways Golf Course. A Golf Course Screen Fence can be located on the privately-
owned lots or on the Three Parks Fairways Golf Course. 
 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

(D) Approval Requirements 
 

(1) With the adoption of this overlay zone, the Community Development Director, or 
designee, may administratively approve, or approve with conditions, any request 
that complies with the overlay criteria.  Should the Community Development 
Director, or designee, not approve a request, or if the applicant does not agree 
with conditions of approval, the applicant has the right to appeal the decision to the 
Planning & Zoning Commission in writing with 15 calendar days of that denial or 
conditional approval. 

 
(E) Development Criteria 
 

(1) A Town of Florence Building Permit must be obtained prior to the installation of 
any fence or wall that exceeds six feet in height.  In the Florence Gardens Mobile 
Home Association, its Rules and Regulations shall control the maximum fence and 
wall heights which may be more restrictive than that allowed by the Town of 
Florence. 

 
(2) All fences or walls shall be permanently affixed and located entirely upon the 

private property of the persons, firms or corporation constructing or causing the 
construction of the fence unless the owner of the property adjoining agrees in 
writing that the fence or wall may be erected on the division line of the respective 
properties. 

 
(3) The maximum height of any fence in a required front yard shall be four feet, with 

no greater than two feet being opaque.  The fence may be constructed of non-
slatted chain link, split rail, wrought iron, or pickets.  Natural or synthetic materials 
may be used.  In rear and side yards, the maximum height shall be four feet.  If 
chain link is used for the front, side and rear property lines, slats are not permitted. 

 
(4) The barriers to clear, unobstructed vision at corner lots of intersecting streets shall 

be limited to a height of not over two feet above the established elevation of the 
nearest street line, for a distance of twenty-five feet (25’) along both the front and 
side lot lines, measured from the point of intersection of the property lines.  Within 
the triangle, in cases where yards are terraced, the ground elevation of the front 
yards shall not exceed two feet above the established street line elevation at the 
intersecting streets.  Landscaping within the triangle must be kept trimmed by the 
property owner.  In the case of shrubs or ground covers, no higher than 2’ and in 
the case of trees, no lower than 7’. 

 
(5) The maximum height of a golf course screen fence for an interior side yard or rear 

yard is eighteen feet (18’) and may be constructed of chain link or nursery screen 
material.  If chain link is used, slats are not permitted.  A Building Permit must be 
obtained from the Town of Florence prior to installation.  A Building Permit 
application must be accompanied by appropriate engineering documentation. 

 



 

3 
 

(6) Height of walls and fences in residential districts shall be measured from the lowest 
adjacent grade, except when adjacent to street right-of-way which has a higher 
grade than the adjacent site, then the height shall be measured from the top of the 
crown of road (if no curb). Height of screening devices shall be measured from the 
highest adjacent grade. 

 
(7) It shall be unlawful for any person to erect or maintain any electric fence or any 

fence constructed in whole or in part of barbed wire.  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9a.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/  
                                     Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Notice of Intent to establish Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
SLID 4 by adopting Resolution No. 1715-19.

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Resolution No. 1715-19: Establishing SLID 4 Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 3 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Resolution No.  1715-19:  Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO 
ESTABLISH A STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT TO PURCHASE ENERGY 
FOR LIGHTING THE PUBLIC STREETS IN THE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT “A”, 
ATTACHED HERETO; DECLARING SUCH IMPROVEMENTS TO BE OF MORE THAN 
LOCAL OR ORDINARY PUBLIC BENEFIT AND THAT THE EXPENSES THEREOF BE 
PAID FOR BY THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES UPON THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF ALL REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY IN A CERTAIN 
DISTRICT TO BE KNOWN AS “ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH, LIGHTING 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 4” (The District); AND ORDERING THAT SUCH 
IMPROVEMENTS BE PROVIDED FOR UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 
48-572 and 48-616 ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On July 15, 2019 the Town received majority petitions containing the necessary 
signatures to establish Anthem at Merrill Ranch SLID 4.   The petitions on file at the 
Clerk’s Office contain 78 percent of owners signing with 54 percent of the assessed 
valuation within the boundaries of the District. Arizona law requires that notice of the 
new District be posted and published, and that the property owners have the opportunity 
to protest the formation of the District.  



Subject:  Resolution No. 1715-19: Establishing SLID 4 Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 

It is the intention of the Town to make and order the expense of the Improvements 
payable from the levying and collection of ad valorem taxes upon the assessed value of 
all real and personal property in the District to be known and designated as “Town of 
Florence, Arizona, Anthem at Merrill Ranch SLID 4 Lighting Improvement District” and 
hereby declare that the District is as legally described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
with the boundaries as shown on the map in Exhibit “B” attached hereto.   
 
After adoption of Resolution No. 1715-19, the Superintendent of Streets shall post or 
cause to be posted notices of the Resolution of Intention, and the Town Clerk shall 
cause the Resolution of Intention to be published in a newspaper published and of 
general circulation in the Town, pursuant to A.R.S. §48-578. Any Protest to the 
proposed District and /or Improvements may be filed and will be heard by the Town 
Council pursuant to A.R.S. §48-579 and §48-580. 

 
The SLID 4 shall not be authorized to issue bonds and no assessment for District 
purposes against the property within the District shall exceed One Dollar and Twenty 
Cents ($1.20) per each hundred dollars of taxable valuation thereof in any year. 
 
Calendar for processing SLID 4: 
 
August 19, 2019:   Consideration of Resolution No. 1715-19 
August 20, 2019:  First day to receive protests 
August 29, 2019:       First Notice in Florence Reminder 
September 5, 2019:  Second notice in Florence Reminder 
    Property will be posted during this time frame  
September 20, 2019: Last Day to receive protest 
October 5, 2019:  Council consideration of Resolution No. 1716-19 Creating  

SLID 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

That staff will not proceed in completing the following actions to form Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch SLID 4:  
 
The Superintendent of Streets of the Town shall post or cause to be posted notices of 
the Resolution of Intention, and the Town Clerk shall cause the Resolution of Intention 
to be published in a newspaper published and of general circulation in the Town, 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-578. Any Protest to the proposed District and/or Improvements 
may be filed and will be heard by the Town Council pursuant to A.R.S. §48-579 and 
§48-580. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Staff will take all necessary action to form Anthem at Merrill Ranch SLID 4.  

 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1715-19: Establishing SLID 4 Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Developer pays all costs until the SLID is formed including costs associated with 
establishing the SLID.   Those living in SLID 4 would not be taxed until 2020.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1715-19 with exhibits. 
 



 

1 | P a g e  
Resolution No. 1715-19 
 

RESOLUTION No. 1715-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ESTABLISH A STREET 
LIGHT IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT TO PURCHASE ENERGY FOR 
LIGHTING THE PUBLIC STREETS IN THE AREA WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT “A” AND EXHIBIT “B”, ATTACHED HERETO; 
DECLARING SUCH IMPROVEMENTS TO BE OF MORE THAN LOCAL 
OR ORDINARY PUBLIC BENEFIT AND THAT THE EXPENSES 
THEREOF BE PAID FOR BY THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AD 
VALOREM TAXES UPON THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF ALL REAL 
AND PERSONAL PROPERTY IN A CERTAIN DISTRICT TO BE KNOWN 
AS “ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH LIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT 4” (THE “DISTRICT”); AND ORDERING THAT SUCH 
IMPROVEMENTS BE PROVIDED FOR UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
SECTIONS 48-572 AND 48-616, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES. 

 
WHEREAS, the undersigned Petitioners comprise a majority of the real property 

owners, exclusives of mortgagees and other lienholders, of all the property within the 
proposed lighting improvement District described herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Petitioners have submitted a Petition pursuant to § 48-616 and § 

48-617 (B), Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.), requesting the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona (“Town”), to adopt a Resolution of Intention to form a lighting 
improvement District for the real property legally described in Exhibit “A” (“District”) and 
with boundaries shown in the map attached as Exhibit “B”, and to order the purchase of 
energy for the lighting of the public street, all as set forth in the lighting facilities plans and 
specification for the ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH SLID 4 Lighting Improvement District 
on file with the Town Engineer (“Improvements”) and approved by Arizona Public Service 
Company; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town has verified that Petition contains the signatures of a 

majority of the real property owners, exclusive of mortgagees and other lienholders, within 
the boundaries of the District; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Town has jurisdiction to adopt this Resolution pursuant to A.R.S. 

§48-576. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows. 

 
Section 1.    The “TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA ANTHEM AT MERRILL 

RANCH SLID 4  LIGHTING IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT” shall be formed to contain the 



 

2 | P a g e  
Resolution No. 1715-19 
 

area legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and with the boundaries shown in 
the map in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, and shall exist, pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 
§48-572, §48-616, §48-617, as may be amended from time to time. 

 
Section 2. The public interest or convenience requires, and it is the intention of 

the Town to order the Improvements. 
 
Section 3. The proposed Improvements, in the opinion of the Mayor and Council 

of the Town, is of more than local or ordinary public benefit and is of special benefit to the 
respective lots, pieces and parcels of real property in the District. 
 

Section 4. It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the Town to make and 
order the expense of the Improvements payable from the levying and collection of ad 
valorem taxes upon the assessed value of all real and personal property in the District to 
be known and designated as “Town of Florence, Arizona, ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH 
SLID 4 Lighting Improvement District” and hereby declare that the District is as legally 
described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto with the boundaries as shown in the map in 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto. Any public street or alley within the District shall be omitted 
from the assessment. Any lot belonging to the United States, the State, a county, Town, 
school District or political subdivision or institution of the state or county within the District 
shall be omitted from the assessment. 

 
Section 5. The Superintendent of Streets of the Town shall post or cause to be 

posted notices of this Resolution of Intention, and the Town Clerk shall cause the 
Resolution of Intention to be published in a newspaper published and of general 
circulation in the Town, pursuant to A.R.S. §48-578. Any Protest to the proposed District 
and /or Improvements may be filed and will be heard by the Town Council pursuant to 
A.R.S. §48-579 and §48-580. 

 
Section 6. It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the Town to make 

annual statements and estimates of the expenses of the District, which shall be provided 
for by the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes upon the assessed value of all the real 
and personal property in the District; shall publish notice thereof; shall have hearings 
thereon; and shall adopt them at the times and in the manner provided for incorporated 
cities and towns by the applicable portions of Section 42-17101 et seq., 42-17152, 
Arizona Revised Statutes. The Mayor and Council of the Town shall, on or before the 
third Monday in August of each year, fix, levy and assess the amount to be raised by ad 
valorem taxes upon all of the property of the District and collect, as Pinal County, Arizona 
(the “County”) taxes are collected, the amounts shown by the statements and estimates 
as adopted by the Mayor and Council of the Town. All statutes providing for the levy and 
collection of State of Arizona and County taxes, shall be applicable to District taxes as 
provided to be levied under Sections 48-616, 48-572 Arizona Revised Statutes. 

 



 

3 | P a g e  
Resolution No. 1715-19 
 

Section 7. The District shall not be authorized to issue bonds and no 
assessment for District purposes against the property within the District shall exceed One 
Dollar and Twenty Cents ($1.20) per each hundred dollars of assessed valuation thereof 
in any year. 

 
Section 8. The District shall not engage in any activity other than as provided in 

Section 48-616, Arizona Revised Statutes, i.e., contracting for and purchasing of energy 
for street and public park lighting. 

 
Section 9. The formation of the District shall not be considered as preventing 

the subsequent establishment of improvement Districts for any other purpose authorized 
by law, including improvement Districts for the purpose of construction street lighting 
facilities within any part or all of the same territory as the District. 

 
Section 10. The type of lighting facilities to be installed in the District and the 

locations thereof shall consist of those lighting facilities and locations described in the 
petition submitted by Petitioner, or as may be approved by the Town. 

 
Section 11. The rate to be paid for purchasing the energy for the District shall be 

the rate described in the petition submitted by Petitioner, or as may be approved by the 
Arizona Public Service Company. 

 
Section 12. Any resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provisions 

of this Resolution are hereby repealed. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
           
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 

 
 

 _______          
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 

 



















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9b. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
                                       
SUBJECT:   Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc., Contract  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships     

 Transportation and Infrastructure   Statutory      None 
Subject: RCA – Bestway Electric Motor Svc Contract  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to contract with Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc., to provide 
electric motor rewind, repair and purchases for water and wastewater projects in an 
amount not to exceed $100,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town of Florence is now requesting to enter into a contract with Bestway Electric 
Motor Service Co., Inc., through the cooperative contract with the City of Tucson (on file 
with Town Clerk’s Office), to provide electric motor rewind, repair and purchases for 
waterline and wastewater projects in an amount not to exceed $100,000 from July 1, 
2019 through June 30, 2020. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would delay the motor rewinds, repairs and purchase of waterline and 
wastewater line parts for maintaining the system.    
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean quicker repairs for system leaks, emergency repairs and 
improvements of waterline and wastewater line systems. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 



Subject: RCA – Bestway Electric Motor Svc Contract  Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

The cost to provide parts will not exceed $100,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
- Approved Bid Tabulation for Blanket Purchase Order 
- Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract with Exhibit 1 
 
 
 





  
   

1 | P a g e
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc.

 

 
    

  
 

 
  

  
 

   
   

    
 

 
 

 
     

 
   

 

  
  

 
 

    
 

 

   
   

   
   

    
  

 
  

 

     

    

   
 

 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF THE CITY OF TUCSON # RFP 161530, CONTRACT

NO. 161530-02 ELECTRIC MOTOR & CONTROLS: REWIND, REPAIR SERVICES AND
PURCHASES.

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 19th day of August, 
2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and Bestway   
Electric Motor Service Co., Inc. (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract Documents   
referred to and incorporated  herein,  is  the  “resultant  contract” contemplated  in  the City  of 
Tucson RFP  161530,Contract # 161530-02 for Electric Motor & Control: Rewind, Repair Service and 
Purchases and Contract Amendment dated September 18, 2018. The Town and the Contractor are   
sometimes referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary electric motor  controls:
rewind,  repair  services  and  purchases  as described in  the  attached  scope  of  materials  and 
services set forth in Exhibit “1” (the “Goods” or “Services”). The Contractor shall provide the 
Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, 
"Living Wage Requirement", "Revised Price Page 11/22/2016", "Request for Clarification", 
Amendments Nos. 1 and 2", "EASA AR100-2015 Recommended Practice-Rev. August 2015",  
including all exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard 
Terms and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, Submittals 
and  Attachments.   Contractor  agrees, at  its  own  cost  and  expense,  to  do all  of  the  work  and 
furnish  all of the  equipment,  personnel  and materials  necessary  to  provide in  a  good  and 
substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Goods.

2. PRIORITY  OF  DOCUMENTS. It  is  further  expressly  agreed  by  and  between  the  Parties  that
should  there  be  any  conflict  between  the  terms  of  this  Contract,  the  Master  Contract,  or  the 
Contractor’s  Proposal,  then  this  Contract and the provisions  of  the  Contract  Documents shall 
control  and  nothing  herein  shall  be  considered  as  an  acceptance  of  the  terms  of  the  said 
Proposal conflicting herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein.

3. INCORPORATION: For  and  in  consideration  of  this  Contract  and  other  good  and  valuable
consideration,  the  Contractor  agrees  that  the  master  cooperative  solicitation/contract  (City  of 
Tucson # RFP 161530,  Contract  #  161530-02 for Electric Motor  &  Control:  Rewind,  Repair 
Service and Purchases and Contract Amendment dated September 18, 2018 ("Master 
Contract") is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are 
incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in terms 
between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: “City of Tucson”,
“Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be andr efer to the Town of Florence; the terms: 
“Maricopa County” shall be deemed to be and refer to“Pinal  County”;  the  terms:  “Deputy 
Finance  Director”  shall  be  deemed  to  be  and  refer  to  the Town  of  Florence Town  Manager;
and the  terms: “Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract documents, which
by reference are incorporated herein:

 City of Tucson RFP # 161530

 City of Tucson Contract # 161530-02

 Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract with Exhibit 1

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and
Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), and shall not exceed $100,000.

 



2 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc. 

 
6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through 

satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services 
and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to the terms of this Contract. 

 
7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 

A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with 
Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town that the 

Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually obligated to 
comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and 
A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 

Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s 

employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town 
in regard to any such inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records 

of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random verification 
performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached 

the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it has 
complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona 
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 

8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is to 
be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which clearly 
indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that progress.  
All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town.  All invoices are to 
be emailed to accountspayable@florenceaz.gov. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may terminate, 
suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s convenience without penalty 
or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed 



3 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc. 

and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods 
and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

 
10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent 

contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not be 
deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal relationship 
with Town. 

 
11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to have 

been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, addressed as 
follows:   

 
Town: Town of Florence   Contractor: Bestway Electric Motor Service Co. Inc  
Town Clerk      Ray McDannell 
PO Box 2670     728 S. Campbell Avenue 
Florence AZ 85132; and    Tucson, AZ 85719 
      (520) 237-2659 
      rmcdannell@bestwayelectric.com 
 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 
assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, 
from and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have 
resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the Goods or Services 
in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives 
and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of 
property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this Contract including any 
employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. 
In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from 
the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the requirements 
of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Services will be performed in a good, 
workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided 
by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods 
or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, 
Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless 
otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be new, unused, of most current 
manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless 
otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published specifications. 



4 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Bestway Electric Motor Service Co., Inc. 

 
14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy (the “Policy”) 

govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by this reference. 
Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance with the Policy, including demonstrating 
its lawful presence in the United States. 
 

15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in 
accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference 
to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The exclusive forum selected for any 
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, 
Arizona. 
 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution 
of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this 
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective Date 
set forth above. 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 

        
 
By: __________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk                                Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

 
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         

 



EXHIBIT "1"











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9c. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E.  
                                      Public Works Director 
                                      
SUBJECT:   Ferguson Enterprises, LLC Contract 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
Subject: RCA – Ferguson Enterprises LLC Contract   Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to contract with Ferguson Enterprises, LLC, to provide parts for water and 
wastewater projects in an amount not to exceed $250,000.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town of Florence is requesting to enter into a contract with Ferguson Enterprises 
LLC, through the cooperative contract with the Arizona Department of Administration 
(on file in the Town Clerk’s Office), to provide parts for waterline and wastewater 
projects in an amount not to exceed $250,000 from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, 
being used to purchase stock parts for any repairs for system leaks, emergency repairs, 
improvements of waterline and wastewater line systems as well as any new projects 
that arise. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
A vote of no would delay the much-needed purchase of waterline and wastewater line 
parts for repairs and maintenance.    
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
A vote of yes would mean quicker repairs for system leaks, emergency repairs and 
improvements of waterline and wastewater line systems. 
 



Subject: RCA – Ferguson Enterprises LLC Contract   Meeting Date:  August 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
The cost to provide parts will not exceed $250,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
- Approved Bid Tabulation for Blanket Purchase Order 
- Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract with Exhibit 1 
 
 
 





  
  

1 | P a g e
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Ferguson Enterprises LLC 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
    

  

   
 

 
  

 
 

 

    
 

 

 

  

  
   

 
  

   

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF AZ DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

SOLICITATION NO ADSPO14-00003936, CONTRACT NO. ADSPO14-074945 FOR BUILDING
AND PLUMBING MATERIALS.

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 19th day of August, 
2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and
Ferguson Enterprises LLC (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract Documents 
referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated in the AZ Department 
of Administration Solicitation No. ADSPO14-00003936, Contract No. ADSPO14-074945 for
Building and Plumbing Materials to include Water Elbows, Fittings, Pipe, Shafts, Flanges, 
Nipples, Bushings Reducers, Clamps, Stops, Conversions Tees, Resetters, Couplings and 
Miscellaneous Items - Requirements Contract and Contract Amendment dated July 8, 2019. The 
Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and 
each individually as a “Party”.

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, material,
transportation services and equipment to provide Building and Plumbing Materials to include
Water Elbows, Fittings, Pipe, Shafts, Flanges, Nipples, Bushings Reducers, Clamps, Stops,
Conversions Tees, Resetters, Couplings and Miscellaneous Items per contract specifications
described in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” (the “Goods”
or “Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached
in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master Contract
including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and Conditions, Special Terms and
Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at
its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish all of the equipment, personnel and
materials necessary to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the
Town, the Goods.

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the Parties that
should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the Master Contract, or the
Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the provisions of the Contract Documents shall
control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said
Proposal conflicting herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein.

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and valuable
consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/contract (AZ
Department of Administration No.ADSPO14-00003936, Contract No. ADSPO14-074945 
for Building and Plumbing Materials to include Water Elbows, Fittings, Pipe, Shafts, 
Flanges,Nipples, Bushings Reducers, Clamps, Stops, Conversions Tees, Resetters, 
Couplings and Miscellaneous Items - Requirements Contract and Contract Amendment dated 
July 8, 2019) is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract 
are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in terms 
between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: “AZ Department of 
Administration”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence;
the terms: “Maricopa County”shall be deemed to be and refer to “Pinal County”; the terms: 
“Deputy Finance Director” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town 
Manager; and the terms: “Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor”
shall be deemed to be and refer to the
Contractor under this Contract.

 
 



2 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Ferguson Enterprises Inc. 

  
 

  
  
  

 
 

  
 

   
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract documents, which
by reference are incorporated herein:

AZ Department  of Administration (ADOA) Solicitation ADSPO14-00003936
ADOA Contract Ferguson Enterprises LLC Contract # ADSPO14-074945
Cooperative Cover Contract Town of Florence and Ferguson Enterprises Inc

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and
Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), and shall not exceed $250,000.

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through
satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services
and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to the terms of this Contract.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS.
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with

Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free
Workplace Act of 1989.

B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town  that the
Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually obligated to
comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and
A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”).

C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this
Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town.

D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s
employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town
in regard to any such inspections.

E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records
of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s Immigration
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random verification
performed.

F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached
the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it has
complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A.

G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into
with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under this Contract or any
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
 



3 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Ferguson Enterprises Inc. 

 

 
   

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

     

8. METHOD OF PAYMENT. Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is to
be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which clearly
indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that progress.
All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town. All invoices are to
be emailed to accountspayable@florenceaz.gov.

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may terminate,
suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s convenience without penalty
or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed
and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods
and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment.

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent
contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not be
deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal relationship
with Town.

11.Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to have
been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, addressed as
follows:

Town: Town of Florence Contractor: Ferguson Enterprises LLC 
Attn: Town Clerk      Attn:  Brandon Perez 
PO Box 2670      111 E. Buckeye Road, Suite 5 
Florence AZ 85132     Phoenix, AZ 85004 
(520) 868-7500     (602) 495-8420 
       brandon.perez@ferguson.com 
 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 
assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, 
from and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have 
resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the Goods or Services 
in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives 
and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of 
property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this Contract including any 
employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. 
In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from 
the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the requirements 
of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Services will be performed in a good, 



4 | P a g e  
Town of Florence Cooperative Cover Contract – Ferguson Enterprises Inc. 

 

  
 

 
   

 

 
 

 

 
 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided
by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods
or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town,
Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless
otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be new, unused, of most current
manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless
otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published specifications.

14.PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy (the “Policy”)
govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by this reference.
Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance with the Policy, including demonstrating
its lawful presence in the United States.

15.GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in
accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference
to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The exclusive forum selected for any
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County,
Arizona.

16.PROHIBITED BOYCOTT. Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution
of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective Date
set forth above.

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation
 

        
 
By: __________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk                                Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         

 



 

 

Attachment III State of Arizona 
State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15th Ave, Suite 201 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Solicitation No.:  ADSPO14-00003936 

Description:  Building and Plumbing Materials - Statewide 

 
Attachment III 

Discount Off & Core List Pricing Schedule 
Category Discount Off: 
*Sub-Category Discount is not required, but may be utilized in addition to category discount off if desired. Sub-Category may be 
utilized to identify a specific brand name or subcategory. If you need additional room for pricing please attach a separate excel 
spreadsheet utilizing the below format identifying additional pricing discounts.  
 

Percentage (%) of discount off Concrete, Cement & Masonry: 0     % 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Lumber: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Roofing: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Drywall: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Paints: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-CategoryWOOSTER: 62.5% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Windows & Doors: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Fasteners: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

Percentage (%) of discount off Locking Systems & Parts: 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 

*Percentage (%) of discount off Sub-Category     : 0% 
 

Percentage (%) of discount off Plumbing Tools & Sundries Manufacturers: 

A.O. Smith 25% Haws 10% 

Acorn 10% Hersey 5% 

Alsons DELTA% Huntington Brass 5% 

American Standard 45% Jay R Smith Manufacturing 50% 

Ames Fire and Waterworks Co. 25% Jones Stephens 25% 

Ameteck 10% Kohler 42.5% 

Anvil 65% Leonard 10% 

Apollo 25% Milwaukee Valve 50% 

Aquapure 45% Moen 37% 

Arrowhead 40% Mueller 40% 

ASCO 10% Nibco 55% 

EXHIBIT "1"



 

 

Attachment III State of Arizona 
State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15th Ave, Suite 201 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Solicitation No.:  ADSPO14-00003936 

Description:  Building and Plumbing Materials - Statewide 

 

Beeco 5% Orbit 50% 

Bell & Gossett 30% Parker 30% 

Bemis 40% Pasco 50% 

Bonney Forge 5% Powers 50% 

Bradley 10% Precision Plumbing Products 38% 

Brass Craft 60% Price Pfister 37% 

Caroma 10% Pro-Flo 60% 

Cerro 30% Reed 15% 

Chicago 30% Rheem 20% 

Clampette 5% Ridgid Kollman 15% 

Conbraco 25% Sioux Chief 45% 

Crane/Flowseal/Centerline 5% Sloan 45% 

Cuno 45% Speakman 40% 

Delaney 41% Spears 50% 

Delta 37% Spirax-Sarco 10% 

Ebco Oasis 30% Symmons 40% 

Eljer 5% T & S Brass 40% 

Elkay 50% Taco 50% 

Elkhart 70% Teel 5% 

Febco 60% Toto 5% 

Fernco 72% Victaulic 10% 

Fiat 40% Watts 35% 

Fisher 47% Weldbend 38% 

Fluidmaster 50% Western China 5% 

Ford Meter Box Co. 5% Wike 5% 

GA Industries 5% Wilkins 60% 

General Wire 20% Willoughby 10% 

Grohe 45% Woodford 35% 

Grundfos 50% Zoeller 32% 

Halsey Taylor 33% Zurn 20% 
Core List Pricing: 
Pricing for core items shall be completed by utilizing the provided table below. Attachment III must be attached to Offerors Bid within 
ProcureAZ in accordance with Uniform Instructions to Offerors. Use of a brand name is for the purpose of describing the standard of 
quality, performance, and characteristics desired and is not intended to limit or restrict competition. Products substantially equivalent 
to the brands designated qualify for consideration. If Offeror is proposing an equivalent item this shall be indicated by checking the 
applicable field provided. Having identified an equivalent product, Offeror shall attach within ProcureAZ, separate documentation 
verifying brand quality is equivalent to the requested item.  

Paint Core List  

Item Mfg Part # Manufacturer Unit Price 
Equivalent 

Item 
1 Quart Metal Paint Tray RM400 Linzer Each $2.29  

1" General Masking Tape: 2020 3M Each $0.91  

1" Poly/Nylon Paint Brush: 1825-1 Linzer Each $0.39  

2" General Masking Tape: 203 3M Each $1.80  



 

 

Attachment III State of Arizona 
State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15th Ave, Suite 201 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Solicitation No.:  ADSPO14-00003936 

Description:  Building and Plumbing Materials - Statewide 

 
2" Poly/Nylon Paint Brush: 1825-2 Linzer Each $3.63  

3" Poly/Nylon Paint Brush: 1825-3 Linzer Each $4.24  

9" x 3/4" Pylam Synthetic Lambskin Roller Cover: RC145-9 Linzer Each $2.55  

9" x 3/8" Pylam Synthetic Lambskin Roller Cover: RC143-9 Linzer Each $1.74  

Banner Red Int/Ext Aerosol: K02108 Krylon 16 OZ $       

Gloss White Speed Enamel Aerosol: Z397 Zynolyte 16 OZ $       
Hydropox #1 Water Reducible High Gloss 
Styrenated Acrylic Enamel (Please Reference 
Exhibit 1 for Standards of Quality) 

N/A Various 5 Gallon $       

Industrial Tough Coat Machinery Lt Gray: S00326 Krylon 16 OZ $       
Interior/Exterior Grade 100% Acrylic Flat Paint 
(Please Reference Exhibit 1 for Standards of 
Quality) 

N/A Various 5 Gallon $       

Interior/Exterior Grade 100% Acrylic Gloss Paint N/A Various 5 Gallon $       
Interior/Exterior Grade 100% Acrylic Semi-Gloss 
Paint (Please Reference Exhibit 1 for Standards of 
Quality) 

N/A Various 5 Gallon $       

Light Gray Primer Aerosol: Z8072 Zynolyte 16 OZ $       

OSHA Paint Red Aerosol: K02116 Krylon 16 OZ $       

OSHA Paint Safety Yellow Aerosol: K01813 Krylon 16 OZ $       

Roller Covers 4" x 3/8" Nap: 4EAP038DH Quali-Tech 2 Pack $2.48  

Semi Flat Black Int/Ext Aerosol: K01613 Krylon 16 OZ $       

SemiGloss White Int/Ext Aerosol: K01508 Krylon 16 OZ $       

Stone Gray Int/Ext Aerosol: K01605 Krylon 16 OZ $       

Tough Coat Enamel OSHA Black Aerosol: S01770 Krylon 16 OZ $       

Building Materials Core List  

Item Mfg Part # Manufacturer Unit Price 
Equivalent 

Item 
¼” x 4 x 8’ Fir Plywood Pine N/A Various Each $       

½” x 4 x 8’ Sheetrock N/A USG Each $       

¾”x10” Copper Tube 38R50S Cambridge Lee Each $       

1 x 2 x 8’ Kiln-Dried Douglas-Fir Larch Eazed Edge N/A Various Each $       

12THHN Standard Wire White 500’ 22965858 Southwire Each $       

2½“ x 8’ Metal Stud 20ga 250S8.0-030 Universal Each $       

2 x 4 x 10 #2 Kiln-Dried Douglas-Fir S4S  N/A Various Each $       

2 x 4 x 8’ Kiln-Dried Hem-Fir N/A Various Each $       

2’ x 4’ x 5/8” Radar White Ceiling Tile 2310 USG Each $       

2” x 2” x 96” Kiln-Dried Douglas-Fir Stud N/A Various Each $       

24” x 48” x 5/8” Ceiling Tile 793 Armstrong Each $       
3/8”x50’ Copper Tube 34L10 Cambridge Lee Each $       

40# Concrete Mix 1101 Quikrete Each $       

40# Mortar Mix 1102 Quikrete Each $       

60# Concrete Mix 1101 Quikrete Each $       

8” x 4” x 16” Cinder Block 30163700 Superlite Each $       

8” x 6” x 16” Cinder Block 30163765 Superlite Each $       



 

 

Attachment III State of Arizona 
State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15th Ave, Suite 201 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Solicitation No.:  ADSPO14-00003936 

Description:  Building and Plumbing Materials - Statewide 

 
8” x 8” x 16” Cinder Block 30163807 Superlite Each $       

8” x 8” x 8” Cinder Block 30163871 Superlite Each $       

80# Concrete Mix 1101 Quikrete Each $       

80# Mason Mix Type S 1136 Quikrete Each $       

Slip-Lok Tee Nozzle 3/8” 10121W Orbit Each $       

Z-MAX Galvanized 18-Gauge Hurricane Tie  H2.5AZ 
Simpson Strong-
Tie 

Each $       

Locking Systems and Parts Core List  

Item Mfg Part # Manufacturer Unit Price 
Equivalent 

Item 
Key Blank  Everest-D, DND, Emboss ED 35-002 D145 Schlage Each $       
Key Blank  Everest-D, DND, Emboss ED 35-002 D135 Schlage Each $       

Key Blank  Everest-D, DND, Emboss ED 35-002 D150 Schlage Each $       

Key Blank  Primus/Everest Standard Emboss  
35-004-LVL9 
D145 

Schlage Each $       

Key Blank  Primus/Everest Standard Emboss 
35-004-LVL9 
D150 

Schlage Each $       

Soft Lock Pad 1-1/2 W 3/4T D 1S A1105BRN American Lock Each $       

Soft Lock Pad 1-1/2W 3/4T D 1-1 A1106BRN American Lock Each $       
Aluminum Heavy Duty, Surf, MT, Extra Duty 
Sprayed Aluminum Arm Closer 

4041 EDA-AL LCN Each $       

Aluminum TBMS Heavy Duty Surf, Delay, Reg 
Arm w/p, Sprayed Aluminum Closer 

4041 RW/PA 
DEL 

LCN Each $       

Tamper-Proof Key Ring 2” Diameter 270 Key Systems, Inc. Each $       

Tamper-Proof Key Ring 1-5/8” Diameter 278 Key Systems, Inc. Each $       

Best Big Bow Coined w/o keyway Blank Key 1A1J1-NS-BB Jet Hardware Each $       

#2 Master Pins 34-202 Schlage 100/pk $       

#4 Master Pins 34-204 Schlage 100/pk $       

#6 Master Pins 34-206 Schlage 100/pk $       

#0 Bottom Pins 34-300 Schlage 100/pk $       

#1 Bottom Pins 34-301 Schlage 100/pk $       

#3 Bottom Pins 34-303 Schlage 100/pk $       

#5 Bottom Pins 34-305 Schlage 100/pk $       

#7 Bottom Pins 34-307 Schlage 100/pk $       

#3 Top Pins 34-103 Schlage 100/pk $       

Hub Spring (J Lever Only) 97-0566 Sargent Each $       

5” Corrections Handcuff Key ZT70B Zak Tool Each $       

Flat Grip Handcuff Key ZT25 Zak Tool Each $       

7 Pin SFIC Core IC7B J 26D General Lock Each $       

Restricted Tumbler AK6WR2BOX American Lock Each $       

Combolock with Key Override  1525LH V643 Master Lock Each $       

Plumbing Parts and Supplies  

Item Mfg Part # Manufacturer Unit Price 
Equivalent 

Item 
.5 gpm Flow Control 0469-005-000 Acorn Each $3.52  



 

 

Attachment III State of Arizona 
State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15th Ave, Suite 201 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Solicitation No.:  ADSPO14-00003936 

Description:  Building and Plumbing Materials - Statewide 

 
¼” O.D. Poly Tubing 44-2029-1 Jones Stephens Foot $0.13  

½” Copper 90 Elbow 10031272 Elkhart Each $0.44  

½” Copper Pipe Strap 10032416 Elkhart Each $0.09  

½” Copper Pipe Type L N/A Streamline Foot $1.31  

½” Copper Street 90 Elbow 10031460 Elkhart Each $0.67  

½” Copper X MIP Adapter 10030310 Elkhart Each $0.92  

¾” Copper Coupling 10030898 Elkhart Each $0.67  

¾” Copper Pipe Strap 10032420 Elkhart Each $0.10  

¾” Copper Pipe Type L N/A Streamline Foot $2.10  

¾” Copper X MIP Adapter 10030330 Elkhart Each $1.55  

1 ½ Poly Slip Joint Washer T180-150 Jones Stephens Each $0.07  

1 ½ Standard Slip Joint Washer T79-150 Jones Stephens Each $0.08  

1 ½” Copper Pipe Type L N/A Streamline Foot $7.43  

1 ½” x 1 ½” Rubber Closet Spud Gasket 2088 Pasco Each $0.95  

1.6 gpf Closet Kit A41A Sloan Each $15.30  

1.6c Master Repair Kit Closet R1004A Sloan Each $17.66  
10/32” MIP x .0625 Barb Fitting 600480 Willoughby Each $2.27  

3.5 gpf Closet Kit A38A Sloan Each $10.96  

Cover Packing F28G Delany Each $1.56  

Handle Seal B39 Sloan Each $0.66  

Renewal Closet Kit F141KC Delany Each $18.84  

Repair Kit 24V Mod Plug MCR1001A Sloan Each $121.83  

Reseal Kit for 600276 Cartridge 600103 Willoughby Each $5.12  

Royal Vacuum Breaker Kit V651A Sloan Each $2.15  

Vacuum Breaker Repair Kit V551A Sloan Each $1.67  

Water Diaphram 2563-010-001 Acorn Each $9.15  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit I 



 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9d.  

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher Salas, P.E. 
                                     Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval to enter into a Contract with 
Cactus Asphalt (aka Cactus Transport), for asphalt 
maintenance and repair services for CIP Project T-69 
Pavement Preservation 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Cactus Asphalt Contract    Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 

Page 1 of 3 

 Community Vitality    Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to enter into a contract with Cactus Asphalt, for pavement preservation 
treatment, for CIP Project T-69 Pavement Preservation.  The contract amount 
shall not exceed $363,653.36 (Proposal amount of $316,220.31, with a 15% 
contingency of $47,433.05). 
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The surface of the various locations throughout Florence are worn and in need of 
asphalt preservation. The areas targeted for the fall of 2019 are on Exhibit B. 
 
On June 26, 2019, Pinal County renewed their contract with Cactus Asphalt (on 
file in the Clerk’s Office), to provide asphalt maintenance and repair services, 
which the Town of Florence can piggyback off.  The first option year contract has 
been extended through June 27, 2020, with options to extend.  
 
Per section 4.12 of the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Department Heads must 
approve all purchases regardless of dollar value.  This does not preclude the 
Department Head from obtaining the necessary approval from the Town 
Manager and/or Town Council, nor does this allow them to have signature 
authority on contracts.  The Town Manager has signature authority on purchases 
up to $24,999.  Town Council approval is required on any purchases of $25,000 
or more. 



 
 

Subject:  Cactus Asphalt Contract    Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 

Page 2 of 3 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would be delayed until the following fiscal year. The 
asphalt pavement would continue to incrementally deteriorate. As preventative 
maintenance is delayed, the cost to maintain the streets is increased. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would occur as scheduled and the future costs would 
continue as projected. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to Contract with Cactus Asphalt in the amount of $316,220.31, plus 
15% contingency of $47,433.05 making the not to exceed amount $363,653.36. 

 
The fixed fee proposed for this project has been negotiated by staff and obtained 
through a sole source selection.  Per section 4.4 of the Town’s Policy.  
 
 4.4 Sole Source Purchase 
   
Departments may procure and contract for supplies and services without using 
competitive procedures when it is clearly determined to be impractical to procure 
through the competitive bidding process.  The Department Head shall submit a Sole 
Source/Emergency Purchase Justification Form (Supplement 7.7) to the Town 
Manager for pre-approval.  If approved by Town Manager, the Department Head 
shall process the corresponding requisition. 
 
In the event a Sole Source Purchase exceeds $25,000, the Department Head shall 
obtain Town Council pre-approval, and, if approved, the purchase shall be 
processed by the Department in accordance with the Purchasing Policy. 
 
Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 
Purchases of $25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection). 
 
5.632 Vendor Selection 
 
5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by necessity or by 
the Town Manager as indicated by Emergency / Sole Source Purchase, cooperative 
purchase, state contract or any other method authorized.  The Finance Director 
reviews for budget availability and bidding procedures.  The Town Manager reviews 
for need. 
 
 
 
4.12 Purchasing Policy  
  



 
 

Subject:  Cactus Asphalt Contract    Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 

Page 3 of 3 

Department Heads must approve all purchases regardless of dollar value.  This 
does not preclude the Department Head from obtaining the necessary approval from 
the Town Manager and/or Town Council, nor does this allow them to have signature 
authority on contracts.  The Town Manager has signature authority on purchases up 
to $24,999.  Town Council is required on any purchases of $25,000 or more. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Exhibit A – Fall 2019 Proposal 
 Exhibit B - Map 
 Cooperative Contract 8/19/2019 
 

 









1 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF PINAL COUNTY JOB ORDER 

CONTRACT NO. 175923 FOR ASPHALT MAINTENANCE & REPAIR SERVICES 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 19th day 
of August, 2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Cactus Transportation dba Cactus Asphalt (the “Contractor”) and together 
with the Contract Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant 
contract” contemplated in Pinal County RFP & Contract No. 175923, originally entered 
into on June 27, 2018, to provide asphalt maintenance & repair services. The term of the 
contract is extended through June 26, 2020.  The Town and the Contractor are sometimes 
referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to provide polymer modified 
asphalt paving, per contract specifications described in the attached scope of 
materials and services set forth in Exhibit “A” (the “Goods” or “Services”) and the 
targeted locations for asphalt paving, shown in Exhibit “B” (the “Map”). The 
Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in 
Exhibit “A”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master 
Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and 
Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, 
Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to 
do all the work and furnish all the equipment, personnel and materials necessary 
to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, 
the Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting herewith 
or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 

valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract (Pinal County, 175923) provides asphalt maintenance and 
repair services. Requirements Contract and Contract Amendment dated June 26, 
2020 (“Master Contract”), is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of 
the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an 
agreement identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master 
Contract, the terms: “Pinal County”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and 
refer to the Town of Florence; the terms: “Deputy Finance Director” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town Manager; and the terms: 
“Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  



2 
 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
 This signed Cooperative Contract 
 Exhibit A 
 Pinal County FY19/20 Pavement Preservation and Repairs, Requisition 

#55035 
 Pinal County Contract Renewal for FY19/20, #175923, Expires 6/27/2020 
 Pinal County JOC – Executed Contract #175923 
 Pinal County Request for Qualifications for Contracting Job Order 

 
5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 

Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “A” (Price Sheet) 
and shall not exceed $363,653.36 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date 
through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter 
“Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town regarding any such 
inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 

employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town regarding any random verification performed. 

 



3 
 

F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 
materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration 
and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-
214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all its subcontractors who provide Services under this 
Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time 
or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services 
include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation 
facility or improvement to real property. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “A”.  If 

payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as determined 
by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or Services 
requirements and schedule for payment. 
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this 
Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, 
or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 
 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Cactus 
Asphalt, A Division of Cactus Transport, Inc, Bryan Glazer, 8211 W. Sherman 
Street, Tolleson, AZ 85353. 

 
12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 

successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), and 
all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged 



4 
 

to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of 
the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors 
related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s 
duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  
Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees 
shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or 
destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by 
Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the 
performance of this Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of 
Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. In consideration 
of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for 
losses arising from the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The 
Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve 
Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or Services are 
of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, Contractor, 
at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable 
satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be 
new, unused, of most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of 
defects in materials and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with 
manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless otherwise 
specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published 
specifications. 
 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy (the “Policy”) govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this 
Contract by this reference. Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance 
with the Policy, including demonstrating its lawful presence in the United States. 

 
15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 

construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 
 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, 
by execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 



5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 

By: __________________________ Date: _________________________ 
 Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  

Approved as to Form 

______________________________ 

Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

CONTRACTOR 

By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 

Its: __________________________ 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9e. 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT:  Zumar Industries Inc. contract 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    
Subject:  Zumar Industries  Meeting Date: 8/19/2019   
 

 Partnerships and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to enter into a contract with Zumar Industries Inc., to purchase various street, 
warning and informational signs as well as poles and pole accessories for all signage 
within the Town of Florence Town limits using the MCDOT Cooperative Contracts, Serial 
16136-C and Serial 14105-C (on file with the Clerk’s Office, for an amount not to exceed 
$35,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town currently has an inventory system of all the in-place signs as well as back stock 
warehoused at the Public Works Campus.  Signs are needed to replace sun worn signs 
that are no longer reflective enough for night visibility.  Signs are also needed as back 
stock in order to support replacement when signs are damaged by vehicles or other 
objects immediately.  
 
The Town is also working on replacing all the U-channel poles with the currently Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) approved square, break away poles.  The square break-
away poles that are proven to cause less damage to vehicles when impacted. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Another year of sun damaged signs with low reflectivity and a limited inventory of new 
signs; falling further behind in replacing U-channel poles with the breakaway square 
poles. 
 



Subject:  Zumar Industries  Meeting Date: 8/19/2019   
 

 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Enable the Town of Florence to replace damaged signage throughout the Town and keep 
a usable inventory on hand. Continue upgrading the U-channel poles with the square, 
break away poles. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to contract with Zumar should not exceed $35,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Town of Florence Contract with Zumar Industries 
 



TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE 
USE OF MARICOPA COUNTY CONTRACT/SERIAL 16136-C, FOR 
TRAFFIC SIGNING MATERIALS, AND ALSO CONTRACT/SERIAL 
14105-C FOR TRAFFIC SIGN POSTS, HARDWARE AND 
ACCESSORIES. 

 
THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract") is made and entered into effective as of the 19th day 
of August 2019 ("Effective date"), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
"Town"), and Zumar Industries, Inc. (the "Contractor") and together with the Contract 
Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the "resultant contract" contemplated 
in the Maricopa County Solicitation/Contract Serial Nos. 16136- C for Traffic Signing 
Materials, and Serial 14105-C for Traffic Sign Posts, Hardware and Accessories effective 
October 1, 2019. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in this 
Contract collectively as the "Parties" and each individually as a "Party”'. 

1. SCOPE OF WORK:  The Contractor shall provide the Town the materials and 
services described in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in 
Exhibit "1" ("Scope of Materials" or "Goods"). The Contractor shall provide the 
Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in Exhibit "1", and the Contract 
Documents, including all exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited 
to the Contractor's Response Serial 16136-C and 14105-C, Specifications, 
Technical Requirements, Attachment A, and Special Terms and Conditions. 
Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish 
all of the equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide, in a good and 
substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Goods. 

 
2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS:  It is further expressly agreed by and between the 

parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor's Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting 
herewith or the Master Contract, unless expressly state herein. 
 

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract (Maricopa County Solicitation/Contract Serial Nos. 16136-C 
for Traffic Signing Materials, and Serial 14105-C for Traffic Sign Posts, Hardware 
and Accessories effective October 1,2019 is in full force and effect, and all terms 
and conditions of the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this 
Contract, creating an agreement identical in terms between the Town and 
Contractor. In the Master Contract, the terms: "County”, "Maricopa County" "Using 
Agency", shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence, and the terms: 
"Contractor", "Respondent" or "firm" shall be deemed to be and refer to the 
Contractor under this Contract. 

 
4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract 

documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
A. This signed Contract. 



B. The solicitation Documents for the Maricopa County Solicitation/Contract 
Serial Nos. 16136- C for Traffic Signing Materials, and Serial 14105-C for 
Traffic Sign Posts, Hardware and Accessories effective October 1,2019, 
between Maricopa County and Zumar Industries, Inc., including, but not 
limited to: Instructions, Fee Schedules; Notices; Checklists; Requirements for 
Proposers; General Conditions; Special Conditions; Scope of Work; Work 
Schedule; Certificates of Compliance; Warranties for Work; Work Forms; 
Attachments; Price Sheets; Questionnaires; Response Forms; Specifications 
and Pricing Sheets; Special Provisions and Specifications; Technical 
Provisions and Specifications; Schedules; Cooperative Authorizations; 
Specifications; Technical Requirements; Special Terms and Conditions; 
Attachment A; Contract No. Serial 16136-C and Serial 14105-C; Maps and 
Addenda (the "Contract Documents" or "Master Contract"). 
C.  

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract  
Documents and Contractor's Proposal and is listed in Exhibit "1" (Price Sheet) and 
shall not exceed $35,000. 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date 
 through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and       
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS: 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. 

B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 
Town that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter 
"Contractor Immigration Warranty"). 

C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 
breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 
Subcontractor's employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty. Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 
employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor's Immigration Warranty. Contractor agrees to assist 
the Town in regard to any random verifications performed. 

F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 
materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration and 
Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, 



Subsection A. 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under 
this Contract or any subcontract. "Services" are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor. Services 
include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation 
facility or improvement to real property. 

H. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 
enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this 
Contract or any subcontract. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT: Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit "1". If payment is to be 

made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which clearly indicate 
the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices 
shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 

9. TERMINATION: Town may terminate this Contract, or any part thereof for its sole 
convenience, at any time without penalty or recourse. Contractor shall receive 
payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as 
determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or 
Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

 
10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: It is understood that Contractor shall be an 

independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this 
Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or 
to have any other legal relationship with Town. 

 
11. Notices: Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 

deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or 
registered mail, addressed as follows: Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 775 N. 
Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Zumar Industries, 
Inc., 7833 N. 106th Avenue, Glendale, AZ 85340, Jody Case. 

 
12. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 

successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, 
representatives and employees, from and against all demands, claims proceedings, 
suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court 
costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), and all claim adjustment and handling 
expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, Goods of the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of 
Contractor's subcontractors related to the Goods in the performance of this Contract. 
Contractor's duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its 
Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and 
employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or 
destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by 
Contractor's acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods in the performance of this 
Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor's 



subcontractors or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, 
Goods, the Contractor may be legally liable, including Town of Florence. 

 
13. WARRANTY: Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the 

requirements of this Contract. Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Goods and 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner. The 
Town's acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve 
Contractor from its obligations under this warranty. If any Goods or Services are of a 
substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, Contractor, at no 
additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until they 
are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town's reasonable satisfaction. 
Unless otherwise agree, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be new, unused, of 
most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in materials 
and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with manufacturer's standard 
warranty for at least one (1) year unless otherwise specified, and will perform in 
accordance with manufacturer's published specifications. 
 

14. PURCHASING POLICY: The Town of Florence, Town Code and Purchasing Policy 
govern this procurement and are Incorporated as part of this Contract by this 
reference. 

 
15. GOVERNING LAW: This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 

construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The 
exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or 
incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________  Date:___________________________ 
      Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By:________________________________ Date: ______________________________ 
Its: 


	August 19, 2019 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. PB&J Challenge
	6b. ADEQ CCR Presentation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Resolution No. 1712-19 AMR Unit 41 Final Plat
	7b. Resolution No. 1713-19 AMR Unit 43 Final Plat
	7c. Resolution No. 1714-14 AMR Unit 45 Final Plat
	7d. Bingham Equipment Company
	7e. Arizona Generator Technology Inc.
	7f. Glenn Jones Ford
	7g. Waxie Sanitary Supply
	7h. Rottweiler Controls LLC
	7i. Copper Basin Railway Inc.
	7j. Pinal County Cert Tariler
	7k. Caselle Annual Software
	7l. Stale Checks
	7m. Disposal of Vehicles
	7n. Hill Brothers Chemical Co.
	7o. July 1, 2019 Council Minutes
	7o. July 9, 2019 Council Minutes
	7o. July 15,  2019 Council Minutes 

	7p i. May 16, 2019 Florence Youth Commission Minutes
	7p ii. January 16, 2019 Library Advisory Board Minutes
	7p ii. April 17, 2019 Library Board Minutes
	7p iii. April 25, 2019 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Mintues
	7p iv. June 6, 2019 Planning and Zoning Minutes
	7p iv. June 20, 2019 Planning and Zoning Minutes


	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Ordinance No. 682-19 PZ-19-18 Florence Gardens 8-5-2019

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a. Resolution No. 1715-19 SLID 4
	9b. Bestway Electric Motor Co. Inc.
	9c. Ferguson Enterprises Inc.
	9d. Cactus Asphalt Contract
	9e. Zumar




